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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of ART Housing Finance (India)
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 315 March 2022, the Statement
of Profit and Loss (including other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and notes to the Ind AS financial

Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “the Financial Statements”)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the India
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended, (“Ind As”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, the Profit
and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Audilor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
financial Statements.

Emphasis of Matter

1. Attention is drawn to Note No. 4 and 5, wherein, during the earlier financial year, a FIR was
registered by Cenlral Bureau of In vestigation (CBI), on 7th March 2020 against the promoters
and Group Companies. On the Basis of the aforesaid FIR, Enforcement Directorate (ED) also
filed an ECIR dated 7" March 2020 and thereafter a Charge sheet as well as supplementary
charge sheet on the same day and was carrying out investigations in this regard. Also, during
the earlier year, Provisional Attachment Orders were issued by ED, attaching the bank
accounts and fixed deposits of the Company having a balance of Rs. 5263.59 Lacs. The
Company had, subsequently, filed a petition in Honorable Delhi High Court for release of
these funds. Accordingly, the Honourable Delhi High Court vide order dated 10th June 2020
gave liberty to the Company to operate its bank accounts mentioned in the impunged
provisional attachment order subject to the amount attached by the ED. =
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The management had also, in the previous year, initiated the adjudication process as per the
provision of PMLA with the Adjudication Authority, PMLA, New Delhi.

2. Further, vide another order of the Honourable Delhi High Court, dated 25t September 2020,
an amount of Rs 4285.33 Lacs was released by the bank, in favour of National Housing Bank
(NHB) towards settlement of loan availed by the Company in the previous year. As on the
close of the current financial year an amount of Rs. 978.26 Lacs stands attached by the ED.

3. Attention is drawn to Note No. 39 where due to the outbreak of corona virus (COVID-19)
pandemic globally and in India had caused significant disturbance and slowdown of
economic activity. The Company’s operations and revenue during the period were impacted
due to COVID-19. The Company has carried out a detailed study to assess the impact of
COVID-19, including the second wave, on its liquidity position and on the recoverability and
carrying values of its assets and has taken into account the possible impact of COVID-19 in
preparation of the Ind AS financial statements, including its assessment of recoverable value
of its assets based on internal and external information upto the date of approval of these
audited Ind AS financial statements and current indicators of future economic conditions.
The impact assessment of COVID 19 is a continuous process given the uncertainties
associated with its nature and duration. The management will continue to monitor material
changes to the future economic conditions which may have an impact on the operations of
the Company.

4. In continuation to the earlier lockdown and ongoing restrictions for major part of the
financial year announced by the Indian Government to prevent the spread of the virus and
subsequent resumption of services in a phased manner, additional lockdown measures were
announced across certain states during the current financial year. In view of this the entire
audit was carried out online based on remote access of data, as provided by the management,
instead of standard conventional Audit. This resulted in need for carrying out alternative
audit procedures as per the Standards on Auditing prescribed by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI). The Audit has been carried out based on the advisory on
“Specific Considerations while conducting Distance Audit/ Remote Audit/ Online Audit
under current Covid-19 situation” issued by the Auditing and Assurance Standards Board
of ICAL

We have been represented by the management that the data provided for our audit purposes
is correct, complete, reliable, and are directly generated by the accounting system of the
Company without any further manual modifications. We bring to the attention of the users
that the audit of the financial statements has been performed in the aforesaid conditions.

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the
following matter to be the Key audit matter to be communicated in our Report. ~5;
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Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response
Subijective Estimate Our Audit procedures included considering the
1. Recognition and measurement of | appropriateness of the Company’s accounting
impairment relating to loans and | policies for impairment of financial assets and

advances to  customer involves assessing compliance with Ind AS 109,
significant management judgement.

* Understood Company’s new processes,
As per Ind AS 109 credit loss assessment is systems and controls implemented relating to
now based on Expected Credit Loss (ECL) impairment  allowance process including
Model and applicable to the Company. governance controls over the development and
implementation of the ECL model;

Test checked the design and implementation of
key internal financial controls over loan
impairment process used to calculate the
impairment charge and test checked
management review controls over
measurement of impairment allowances and
disclosures in the financial statements;
Evaluated appropriateness of the impairment
principles based on the requirements of Ind AS
109 considering our business understanding

The Impairment Loss provision is computed | o
based on management estimates including
the historical default and loss ratios.
Management  exercises judgement in
determining the quantum of loss based on
range of factors.

The most significant areas  involving
significant measures estimates are: .

e Loan Staging criteria

e Calculation of probability of default/loss and industry practice.
given default/Exposure at default * Performed substantive procedures over
e Consideration of probability weighted validating completeness and accuracy of the
scenarios and forward looking macro- data and reasonableness of assumptions used in
economic factors. the model;
Ind AS 109 requires an entity to determine | * We engage? our specialists to test the working
Expected Credit Loss (ECL) amount on a of the ELL model and reasonableness of
probability weighted basis. There is a large assumptions used; o .
increase in the data inputs required for the | ® Broadly ercllua'ted management’s judgement in
computation of ECL. This increases the risk the determination of ECL;

of completeness and accuracy of the data that | Performed cut off procedures on a sample basis
has been used as a basis of significant relating to recoveries at year end that would impact

assumptions in the model. staging of loans.

Information Other than the Ind AS financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information does not include the financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial
Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial Statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.




Res ponsibilities of the Management and those charged with governance for the Ind AS
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act, with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other Comprehensive Income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting
prindples generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial Statements, Board of Director is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is nota guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial Statements. As a part of an audit
in accordance with the SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the Audit.

We also:

o Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial Statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to desi gn
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing an opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.




o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial Statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. QOur conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial Statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial Statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.,

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial Statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.

We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

573 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kopt
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;
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c)

)

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of accounts.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind As specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on 31
March, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is
disqualified as on 31t March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure 2”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls
over financial reporting.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 2022 has been
paid/provided by the Company to its directors is in accordance with the provision of
Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position as at 315 March 2022;

ii. The Company does not have long-term contracts including derivative contracts
requiring provision for material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by theCompany to or in
any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall,directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the
Company or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

b) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been received by the Company from any personsor entities,
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that th y shall directly or indirectly,
lend or investin other persons or enti \ in any manner whatsoever
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(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding Parties or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalfof the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

¢) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule
11(e) contain any material mis- statement.

v. The company had neither declared any dividend in the previous year nor paid any
dividend during the current year.

For SM M P & Company
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 120438W

Chintan Shah

Partner

Membership No. - 166729

UDIN No. 22166729AHNZPE5161

Mumbai, dated April 19, 2022



Annexure 1 to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Ind AS Financial Statement
(Referred to Paragraph 1 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report to the Members of ART Housing Finance (India) Limited of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations given to us and the books and records examined by
us and on the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate, we further report as under:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

a)

b)

c)

d)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant
details of right-of-use assets.

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Property, Plant
and Equipment and right-of-use assets, by which all Property, Plant and Equipment
are verified annually. In our opinion the periodicity of such physical verification is
reasonable having regards to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. As
explained to us there were no discrepancies on such verification carried out by the
management.

The Company does not have any immovable property (in the nature of ‘Property,
Plant and Equipment’). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(i)(C) of the order is not
applicable to the Company during the year under review.

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
right-to-use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

Inventory

a)

b)

The Company is in the business of rendering services and consequently does not hold
any physical inventory. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii)(a) of the order are
not applicable to the Company during the year under review.

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits, at any point of time
during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current
assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Loans Granted by the Company

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of records
verified by us during the year, the Company has granted loans, secured as well as
unsecured, in the normal course of its business, to companies, firms, and other parties
during the year. The Company has not made any investments or provided any guarantee
or any security, to any other entity during the year.

a)

The Company is registered as a Housing Finance Company with the National
Housing Bank, Hence, considering the fact that the principal business of the Company
is to give loans, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(a) of the gz ot applicable to the
Company during the year under review. :




S MM PlgiCompany

(iv)

vii)

b) Inour opinion, the loans granted and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans,
during the year are, prima facie, no prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

¢) In respect of the loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments of principal
amounts and the receipts of interest are generally regular as per the stipulation.

d) In respect of loans granted by the Company during the year, there is no overdue
amount remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date.

e) The Company is registered as a Housing Finance Company with the National
Housing Bank. Hence, considering the fact that the principal business of the Company
is to give loans, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(e) of the order are not applicable to the
Company during the year under review.

f)  The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms of period of repayment during
the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii)(f) is not applicable.

Based on the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of records verified
by us, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 of the Act in respect
of a loan granted. The Company has not made any investments and has not given any
guarantees or provided securities to the parties covered under Section 185 of the Act. The
Company is registered as a Housing Finance Company with the National Housing Bank.
Therefore, the provisions Section 186 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iv) of the order are not applicable, to this extent,
to the Company during the year under review.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
any deposits as per the directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of
Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there
under. Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 3 (v) of the order are not applicable to
the Company.

The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under
Section 148(1) of the Act, for any products of the Company. Accordingly, the provisions
of clause 3(vi) of the order are not applicable to the Company during the year under
review.

As per the records verified by us and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including
Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance, Goods and Services Tax (GST), Profession Tax,
Income Tax and other material statutory dues with the appropriate authorities during the
year and there were no amounts representing outstanding balances for more than six
months as on the Balance Sheet date.
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viii)

ix)

According to the information and explanation given us and as per the records verified by
us, the Company does not have disputed statutory liability during the year under review
in respect of Goods & Services Tax (GST), Provident Fund, Sales Tax, Value Added Tax,
Cess and other material Statutory dues. In respect of Income Tax the details of disputed
liability is given in the table below:

Name of Statute Nature of Amount Period to which | Forum where
Dues (Rs. In Lacs) it relates pending
Income Tax Act, 1961 |[Income Tax 125.90 2017-18 CIT (Appeals)-1
Income Tax Act, 1961 |Income Tax 14.95 2016-17 ITAT

As per the records verified by us, there were no transactions relating to previously
unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

Loans and Borrowings

a) As per the records verified by us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of
term loan availed by the company from a bank during the year under review. The
Company has no loans or borrowings payable to financial institutions and
government during the year.

b) The Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

¢) The Company has not availed any term loan from any banks of financial institutions
during the year and there was only one term loan continued from the earlier years
which was applied for the purpose for which the loan was obtained.

d) Onan overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company
has not raised any funds on short term basis during the year and hence the reporting
under clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company
has not taken any loans from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiary.

f)  the Company has not raised any raised any loans during the year and hence the
reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

Initial/further public offer and Preferential/Private placement of Shares or Debentures

a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial/further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting on clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable.

b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence
reporting on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.
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xi)

Xii)

xiii)

Xiv)

XV)

xvi)

Frauds on or by the Company

a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company,
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and
according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come
across any instance of fraud on or by the Company or its officers or employees, noticed
or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of such case by the
management.

b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been
filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this
report.

¢) Based on the information and explanations provided to us, no whistle blower

complaints were received by the Company during the year and upto the date of this
report.

The Company is not a Nidhi company during the year under review and hence the
provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order arc not applicable.

As per the information and explanations given during the course of our verification, in
our opinion, all transactions with the related parties made by the Company were in
compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such
transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS Financial Statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

Internal Audit

a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate
with the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the
Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent
of our audit procedures.

As per the information and explanations provided to us, during the year, the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
the directors within the purview of Section 192 of the Act. Accordingly, provisions of
clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

Registration with Reserve Bank of India and Core Investment Company in the group

a) As per the information and explanations provided to us and based on the overall
operations of the Company, the Company is not required to obtain registration under
Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

b) The Company has a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the National Housing
Bank (NHB) under section 29A of the National Housing Bank Act 1987, for
conducting housing finance activities. '
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¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India.

d) The Company has more than one Core Investment Company (CIC) within the Group
(as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016). On
our examination of records provided by the Company, there are a total of 14 CIC
(including CICs exempt from registration) in the group.

xvii) The company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit
and the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii) There has been no resignation of the Statutory Auditors of the Company during the year.

xix) ~ On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come
to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the
date of the audit report indicating that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of the balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
upto to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx)  Corporate Social Responsibility

a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on
other than ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to
the Companies Act, 2013 in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of
Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order
is not applicable for the year.

b) In respect of ongoing projects, the Company did not have any unspent amount
towards CSR as at the end of the financial year and hence, reporting under clause
3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For SM M P & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 120438W

Y

Chintan Shah
Partner
Membership No. 166729

UDIN No. 22166729AHNZPE5161

Mumbai, dated April 19, 2022



Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Ind AS Financial Statement

(Referred to paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the members of ART Housing Finance (India) Limited of even date)

Independent Auditors Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ART Housing Finance
(India) Limited (“the Company”) as of 315t March, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind
AS financial Statements of the Company comprising of the Balance Sheet as at March 315t 2022,
the Statement of Profit and Loss including Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in
Equity and Cash Flow Statement for the period then ended.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT). These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by the ICAI deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those standards and the
Guidance Note that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial Statements, whether due to fraud
Or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial c stem over financial
reporting,.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting :

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion :

According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, the Company has, in
all material respects, established an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting on criteria based on or considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31st 2022,

For SM M P & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 120438W

Chintan Shah

Partner

Membership No. 166729

UDIN No. 22166729AHNZPE5161

Mumbai, dated, April 19, 2022



ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Note Kew 7 K
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4 606,12 2,118.90
Bank balances other than cash and cash cquivalents 5 2056.60 1,043.86
l.pans 0] 3742412 41,266.45
Investments 7 : 4,905.40 11243
— e e AT e = - 8 314.29 124.10
Total financial assets 45,306.53 44,665.78
Non-financial assets
Current tax asscts (net) 9 120.78 16.71
Deferred rax assets (net) 9 167.66 321.04
Property, plant and cquipment 10 191.93 32517
Orher intangible assers 10 74.04 138.29
Right-of-use assets 10 107.62 22375
. Other non-financial assets . 11 320,05 166.66
Total non-financial assets 982.08 1,191.62
i R R R R AT S 1
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Financial liabilities
Payables
T'rade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 12 0.43 1.37
enterprises
(it) rotal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 12 10.77 17.94
enterprises and small enterpriscs
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 13 1,997,33 3,492.32
Orther financial habilites 14 4006.56 42270
Total financial liahilities 2,415.09 3,934.33
Non-financial liabilities
Provisions 15 0.21 2.14
Other non-fAnancial liabilities 16 227.80 132,28
Total non-financial liabilities 228.01 134.42
EQUITY
liquity share capital 17 38,500.00 38,500.00
Other equity 18 5,145.51 3,288.65
Total equity 43,645.51

[

41,788.65
it

5.2

ummary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Ind AS Financial Statements

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date
I'or S M M P & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

I{irm Registration Number: 120438W ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Chartered Accountants

Chintan Shah Rabdfl Kumar Pandey Vipin Jain
Partner Chairperson Managing Director & ClIO)
Membership No: 166729 DIN: 00250437 IIIN: 03456031

Bharat Dhall itika Bhatia

Chiefl Financial Officer ‘holetime Director &
PAN: AFDPDOSI2M Company Sceretary
[DIN: 08741012
em No ACS 24016

PPlace: Mumbai

Date: April 19, 2022 / 1
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Place: Gurugeam
Date: April 19, 2022
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ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Ind AS Financial Statements

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date

ForSMMP & Company
Firm Registration Number: 120438W
Chartered Accountants

Chintan Shah Rat-(Km

Partner
Membership No: 166729

ffll:lirpcrsml
IPIN: 00250437

‘%_;

Bharat Dhall
Chief Financial Officer
PAN: AEDPD6S12ZM

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 19, 2022

Place: Grurugram
Date: April 19, 2022

Part T p Note For the year ended|  For the year ended|
@ s 2 No. March 31, 2022 ‘March 31, 2021
Revenue From Operations
Interest income 19 4,959.00 6,262.00
Iees and commission income 20 163.67 82.82
Net gain on fair valuc changes 21 167.52 81.86
Unrealised Gain on Assigned Loans 323,05 0.00
—{Total TOVERUE ffom operations 5,613.24 6,426.68

Other income 39.57 180.92
Total income 5,652.81 6,607.60)
EXPENSES
linance costs 22 304.99 1,086.81
Impatrment on financial instruments 23 247.67 770,23
limployee benefits expense 24 1,529.48 2,014.36
Depreciation and amortization expense 10 336,44 484.78
CSR ixpenditure 25 37.70 32.70
Other expenses 26 (55.54 519.50
Total expenses 3,111.82 4,908.37
Profit before tax 2,540.99 1,699.22
Tax expense:
Current tax 9 550.62 598.44
Deferred tax 9 151.38 21643
Net profit after tax 1,838.99 1,317.22
Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 8.19 33.69

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit (2.00) (8:00)

or loss
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,845.18 1,342.91
liarnings per equity share

Basic (Rs) (.48 0.35

Diluted (Rs) 0.48 0.34
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1-3

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

Vipin Jai

Managing Director & C130)

DIN: 03456031

itika Bhatia

DIN: 08741012

b lem No ACS 24016



ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the vear ended on March 31, 2022
{Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

A, Equity Share Capital
Particulars Amount
Balance as at March 31, 2020 38,500.00

Changes in Equity Share Capital due 1o prior pernod ereors -
Restated balance at the beginning of the year 38,500.00
(Changes n equity share capital during the year

Balance as at March 31, 2021 38,500.00

Changes in Equity Share Capital duc to prior period erors o

Restated balance at the beginning of the year 38,500.00
Changes n cquity share eapital duning the year .

Balance as at March 31, 2022 38,500.00

B. Other Equity (Refer Note 18)

Reserve and Surplus
Particulars Sixced Based Statutory Special Retained
Payments . Total
z Reserve Reserve Earnings
Reserve
Balance at the March 31, 2020 66,72 168.23 4H4.006 1,202.60 1,921.61
Changes in accounting policy or prior period crrors -
lance inning of the .
Restated balance at the beginning of the 6672 | 16823 484.06 1,202.60 | 1,921.61
previous reporting period
Profit afier tax for the year 1,317.22 1,317.22
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) 25.69 25.6Y
‘Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 1,342.91 1,342.91
I'ransfer to statutory reserve u/s 29C of the NHB
Act, 1987
'J'r:msfur' lf'n special reserve u/s 36(1))(vini) of the 300,55 (399.55)
Income Tax Act, 1961
Shared based payments 2413 2413
Balance at the March 31, 2021 90.85 168.23 883.61 2,145.96]  3,288.65
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - & = e
Rtm?tcd bﬂ]ﬂtl(.:l: at t]u.: beginning of the 90.85 168.23 883.61 2,145.96 3,288.65
previous reporting period
Profit after tax for the year 1,838.99 |, 838.99
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (net of tax) 6.19 619
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - - 1,845.18 1,845.18
o i . y SEp Y s MW .
Iransfer to statutory reserve u/s 29C of the NI 3 43.05 (83.05) -
Act, 1987 -
T'ransfer to special reserve u/s 36(1))(viil) of the = )
284, 284,

Income 'Tax Act, 1961 4.75 (284.75)
Shared based payments 11.68 11.68
Balance at the March 31, 2022 102.54 251.28 1,168.36 3,623.34 5,145,52
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1-3

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Ind AS Financial Statements

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

lor SMM P & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Fieen Regrwiiun Mol 120A800 ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Chartered Accountants

Chintan Shah ahul Kumar Pandey

Partner Chairperson

Membership No: 166729 DIN: 00250437
[4

Place: Mumbai

Date: Apnl 19, 2022 Bharat Dhall Ritika Bhatia
Chief Minancial Officer Wholetime Dircetor &

PAN: ADPD6812M Company Secrctary

DIN: 08741012

Place: Guragram Mem No ACS 24016

Date: April 19, 2022




ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the yvear ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

;" : ~ Yearended Year endec
TSR | March 31, Mareh 31, 2021
1. Cash flow from operating activitics:
et Profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and 1aoss 2,540,99 1,699.22
Adjustments for:
Interest income on loans (4,907.94) (6,146.79)
Depreciation and amortisation expense 336,44 48478
Impairment on finaneial instruments - Expeered eredit loss (EC1) 196.25 TH0.57
Interest on borrowings 276.48 1,086.51
Interest on lease liability 28.51 (14.43)
Loans and advanees written off g =TT
Share based pagments 11.68 24.13
Net gain on fair value changes (167.52) (B1.86)
Interest Income on bank deposits (51.06) (115.21)
Interest received on loans 441097 6,195.09
Interest paid on borrowings (27119 (1,115.27)
Loss on sale of property, plant and cquipment (3.13) 1.92
Cash generated from operations before waorking capital changes 2,420.43 2,735.67
Working Capital Changes
(Increase) / deercase in Other financial assets (177.22) (47.90)
{Increase) / decrease 1n non-financial assets [153.3Y) 621,44
Increase / (deerease) in financial liabilities 19.54 (463.36)
Increase / (deerease) in provisions 7.98 4.27
Increase / (decrease) in non-financial liabilities U5.52 (78.74)
Loans repaid/ (disbursed) (net) 4,119.39 H773.42
3,961.82 8,809.13
Direct taxes (paid)/adjusted (652.701) (486.26)
Net cash used in operating activities (I 5,729.55 11,058.54
11. Cash flow from investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and Intangible asscts (9.25) (10.80)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and cquipment 6.56 47.31
Sale/ (purchase) of investments measured at VP, (net) (h625.41) 2,282.73
Decrease/ (Increase) in deposits with banks (1,012.74) 147.71
Interest received on bank deposits 3810 105,57
Net cash used in investing activitics (I1) (5,602.75) 2,572.46
111, Cash flow from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of share capiral - -
Borcowings ather than debt seeurities issucd (net) (1,5(1).28) (15,316.07)
Payment of lease liability (139.30) (187.33)
Net cash generated from financing activities (111) (1,639.58) (15,503.40)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash cquivalents (I+T1+11T) (1,512.78) (1,872.41)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,118,990 3,991.31
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 606.12 2,118.90
(1,512.78) (1,872.41)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Notes 1-3)
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Ind AS Financial Statements

This is the Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report of even date
lior§M M P & Company

[iem Regstration NMumber: 120438W

Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

Chintan Shah ahul Kumar Pandey
Partner Marfajing Dhirector & (10
Membership Nos 166729 [DIN: 00250437 IYIN: 0345603 1

Place; Mumbai "—:‘%%‘
Date: April 19, 2022 Bharat Dhall

AN itika Bhatia
N : Nlmlt!rimc Director &
5 | Company Secretary
; DN OR741012
S Mem No ACS 24016

Chiel Financial Officer
PAN: AFDPDGR12ZM

Place: Curugram
Dhare, Apail 19, 2022




ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

L

Company overview

ART Housing Finance (India) Limited (the 'Company') was incorporated on July 16, 2013 with irs registered office in
New Delhic The Company is a subsidiary of ART Business and Consumer Finance (India) Private Limited (the 'Holding
Company’),

The Company 15 eegistered with the National IHousing Bank (NTIB) under scetion 297 of the National Housing Bank
Act, 1987 as non deposit taking Housing Finance Company vide registration no. 01.0176.19. The main objcets of the

Company, inter alia, are to carry oul the business of providing long term finance fur 1_\\_._|_r__L_'ha-;g:_/_ggm;_&l,g.g.c_l._i@_a_u{_mm_and

21

22

2.3

2.4

renGvation of new/ existing flats/ houses for residential purposes. The business is conducted through its branches in
India and supported by a network of agents For sourcing loans. ART Housing Finance (India) Limited is the holding

company for investrments in its associates and substdiary companics.

Basis of Preparation and Presentation

Statement of Compliance and basis of preparation

The financial statements (“financial statlements”) have been prepared in accordance with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 ag per Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant amendment rules issued
thereafter (“Ind AS™), the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (ihe “Act”) and the guidelines issued by the
Reserve Bank of India ("RBI") and National | lousing Bank (“NIHB") 10 the extent applicable. Financial statements are

prepared on the historical cost basis except for ecrtain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end o

each reporting period as explained below.

Additional information required in terms of Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — [Housing Finance
Cumpuny (Reserve liank} Directions, 2021 DORFIN I, Mo 120/03.10.036/2020-21 dated February 17, 2021
have been prepared on the basis of Ind AS,

Prescntation of Financials Statements

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Changes in Liquity are prepared and
presented in the format preseribed in the Division 1 of Sehedule 11 1o the Act. The Statement of Cash Flows has been
prepared and presented as per the requirements of Tnd AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”.

The Company presents its Balance Sheet in the order of liguidlity.

"The Company penerally reports financial assets and financial Tabilitics on i gross basis in the Bulance Sheet, They are
offset and reported net basis only when Tnd AS specifically permits the same or it has an unconditional legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on 4 future event, Similarly, the Company
offsets incomes and expenses and reports the same on a net basis when permitted by Ind AS specifieally unless they arc
material in nature.

Amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded off 10 the nearest
lacs as permitted by Schedule 11 to the Act, except when otherwise stated.

Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a accrual basis as a going concern under the historical cost convention
except for cerfain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting date as required
under the relevant Tnd AS. A historical cost is a measure of value used in aces wnting in which the price of an asset on
the balance sheet is based on its nominal or original cost when acquired by the Company.

Use of Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires the management o make use of
estimates, judgements and assumptions in view of the inherent unecetaintics and a level of subjectivity involved in
measucement ol items, it is possible thar the outcomes in the subsequent financial years could differ from those on
which the Management’s estimates are based. Accounting estimates could change from period to period and revisions 1o
accounting estimates are recognised praspeetively. ‘The Management belicves that the estimates used n preparation of
the financial statements are prudent and reasonalle,

In particular, information about significant arcas of estimation, uncertainty and eritieal judgments in applying accounting

policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the

following notes: %/ ﬁ

-




ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

241

Business Model Assessment

The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how the Company's financial instruments are
managed together to achieve a particular business objective.

Based on this assessment and future business plans of the Company, the management has measured its financial ASSCLS
at amortised cost as the asset is held within business model whose objeetive is 1o calleet contractual ¢ash Mows, and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principle and interest (‘the.

2.4.2

243

2.4.4

2.45

246

SPPIEntcHea)." - -

Monitoring is part of the Company’s continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining
financial assets are held continues to be appraprate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in

business model and so a prospeetive change to the classification of those instruments.

Determination of Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”)

The measurement of impairment losses (15C] 2) across all categories of financial assets, except assets which are valued
Fair Value theough P&L (F'VI'IL), requires judgement. In particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future
cash flows based on Company’s historieal experience and collateral values when determining impairment losses along
with the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk, These esumates are driven by a number of factors, changes in
which can result in different levels of allowanees,

The Company’s Expected eredit loss (ECL) caleulations are outputs of complex models with @ number of underlying
assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Hlements of the 15CL models that are
considered in accounting judgements and estimates include:

The Company’s model, which assigns Probability of default (PD)s
The Company’s eriteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in eredit risk and so allowances for financial

assels should be measured on a Lifetime expected credit loss (ITECL) basis

The sepmentation of financial assets when their ECIL is assessed on 4 collective basis

Development of TKCL models, including the various formulas and the choice of nputs

Determination of associations between macrocconomic seenarios and, ceonomic inputs, and the effect on Pl2s, -
Fisposure at default (HEAD)s and Loss given default (LGLY)s

Selection of forward-looking macrocconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive the cconomic inputs
into the ECL models

Defined Benefit Plang

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations, An actuarial valuation involyes making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future, These include the deteemination of the diseount rate, future salary inereases and moriality
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly

sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date,

Share-Based Payments

Fstimating fair value for share-based payment teansactions requires use of an appropriate valuation model which is

dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant, "The Company mcasures the cost of equity-settled transactions with
employees using Black-Scholes Model to determine the fair value of the options on the grant date. [nputs into the

valuation model, includes assumption such as the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield.

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method

The Company’s EIR methodology, recognises interest income using 4 eate of retuen that represents the best estimate of
a constant rate of rcturn over the expected behavioural life of loans, ‘This estimation, by nature, requires an clement of
judgement reparding the expected behaviour and 1i fe-cycle of the instruments,

Fair Value measurement

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilitics recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based
on yuoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation technigues including the DCE maodel.
The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where passible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of mputs such as liquidity risk, credit

risk and volatlity. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial

instruments, W




ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the wvear ended March 31, 2022

247 Leases
The Company evaluates if an arrangement ualifics to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116, Identification of
a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses sigmificant judgement in assessing the lease term (including
anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate, “The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable
period of a lease, together with hoth periods covered by an option to exténd the lease if the ¢ «ompany 1s reasonably
certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the ¢ -ompany is reasonably
certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the

Company is reasonably. certain. o oxercise an option te—

extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that
ercate an economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not 1o exercise the option
to terminate the lease. The Caompany revises the lease teem if there is change in the non-cancellable period of 1 lease.
The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specifie to the lease being evaluated or for a
portfolio of leases with similar characte

1ICs,

3 Summary of the Significant Accounting Policies
This note provides a summary of the significant acc minting policies adopted in the prepacation of these finaneial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

3.1 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the cconomic benefits will flow 1o the Company and the

revenue can be reliably measured and there exists reasonable certainty of its recovery.

311 Interest
[nterest income on financial instruments is recognised on o time proportion basis tiking into account the amount
outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable,
Effective Interest Rate (“EIR?)

FEIR is calculated by considering all costs and incomes attdbutable (o acquisition of a financia

1ssel or assumption of a
financial liability and it represents a rate that exactly discounts estimated future eash payments/reecipts through the

expected life of the financial asset/ financial liability to the gross earrying amount of a financial asset or to the amortised
cost of a financial liability.

Interest income/expenses s caleulated by applying the EIR 1o the gross carrying amount of non-credit impaired
financial assets/liabilitics (i.c. at the amortised cost of the financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss
allowance). For eredit-impaired financial assets interest income is caleulated by applying the IR 1o the amortised cost

ol the credit impaired financial assets (Lo, the gross carrying amount less the allowanee for expected credit k sses).

3.12  Overdue Interest and other charges

Overdue interest and other ancillary charges in respecet of loans is recognized upon realisation,

3.1.3  Net gain on fair value changes
Vinancial assets are subscquently measured at BVIPL. The G mpany recognises gains/losses on fair value change of

financial asscts measured at FVTPL and realised gains/losses on derccognition of finaneial asset measured at FVIPL.

3.14 Dividend Income
Dividend income on equity shares is recognised when the mpany’s right to receive the payment is established, which
is generally when sharcholders approve the dividend.

3,15 Fee and Commission Income
lec and commission income include fees other than those that are an integeal part of EIR. The Company recopnises the
fec and commission income in accordance with the teems of the relevant contracts/ agreement and when it is probable
that the Company will collect the consideration.

3.1.6 Other Income
Other Income represents income carned from the activities incidental 1o the business and is recognised on acerual basis

when the right to receive the income is established as per the terms of the contract.
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ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022

317 Taxcs

32

3.21

Incomes are recognised net of the Goods and Services ‘T / Service Tax, wherever applicable.
Expenditures

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs include interest expense ealeulated using the EIR on resp

ve linancial instruments measured at

amortised cost and finance charges on lease.

3.22

3.2.3

3.3

34

3.41

3.4.11

3412

Fees and commission expenses
FFees and commission expenses which are not directly linked o the sourcing of financial assets, such as commission/
incentive incurred on value added services and products

stribution, cte., are recognised in the statement of profic and
loss on an accrual basis.

Taxes
Lixpenses are recognised net of the Goods and Services ‘T'ax/Service Tax, except where eredit for the nput as is not

statutorily permitted,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash compriscs of cash on hand and demand deposits with banks, Cash equivalents are short-term deposits with banks
(with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of placement) and cheques on hand. Short term and
liquid investments being subjeet to more than insignificant risk of change in value, are not included as part of cash and
cash equivalents.

Financial Instruments

A financial insteument is defined as any contract that gives risc to a financial asset of one entity and a financial lbility
or equity instrument of another catity, ‘rade reccivables and payable, loan reccivables, investments 1n securities and
subsidiaries, debt securitics and other borrowings, preferential and cquity capital ete. are some examples of finaneial
instruments,

All the financial instruments are recognised on the date when the Company becomes party to the contraciual provisions
of the financial instruments, For tradable sceurities the Company recognises the financial instruments on settlement
date.

Financial Assets
Financial assets include cash, or an equity instruments of another entity, or a conteactual right o reccive eash or another
financial asset from another entity cte. ew examples of financial assets are loan reccivables, investment in cquity and

debt instruments, trade receivables, eash and cash cquivalents, and bank balances.

Recognition and Initial Measurement of Financial Assets

l'inancial assets, with the exeeption of Loans and advanees 1o customers, are initially recognised on the trade date, i.c.
the date that the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the insirument. Loans and advances to
customers are recognised on disbursement of the loan. The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition
depends on their purpose and characteristics and the management’s intennon when acquiring them.

Financial assets arc initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs and revenues that are diceetly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial asscts [other than financial assets measured at Faie value through profic or loss (IFVTPL)]
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets, as appropriate, on initial recognition,

Transaction costs and revenues dircetly attributable to the acquisition of finaneial asscts at FVIPL are recognised
immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement of Financial Asscts
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, the Company classifies and measures all its financial assets based on the
business model for managing the assets and the asset’s contractual terms, cither at:

* Amortised cost

* Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Incomqe (Vo
* Fair Value through Profit and Loss (F'V'TP1) : %
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3.4.1.21

Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost
The Company classifics and measures Cash and Bank balances, Loans, T'rade Reecivable, certain debr investments and

other financial assets at amortised cost if following condition is met:

* Financial Assets that are held within 24 business madel whose objective is to colleet the conteactual cash flows, and that

have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal outstanding,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

3.4.1.2.2

3.4.12.3

3.413

3414

3.4.2

rate-(LilR) method less impairment fosses. Amortised cost is cafculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the IR, The EIR amortisation is included in interest income

in the statement of profit and loss. The losses ;

ising from impairment are reeognised in the statement of profit and

loss.

Financial Asscts measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (“FVOCI™)

The Company classifies and measures certain debt instruments at FYOCT when the investments are held within a
business model, the objective of which is achieved by both, collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
instruments and the contractual terms of the financial instruments meet the SPPI rest.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Interest income and impairment loss are recognised in statement of
profit and loss. Any gain or loss on subsequent measurement is recognised in OCH and on derecognition the cumulanve

gain or loss recopnised in QCH will be reeyeled to statement of profit and loss.

Financial Asscts measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (“FVTPL”)

Financial assets at FVIPL are:

* Assets with contractual eash Mows that are not SPPL; and/or

* Asscts that are held in a business model other than held to collect contractual cash flows or held to collect and sell; or
* Assets designated at FVTPL using the fair value aption.

These assets are subscquently measured at fair value, Net gain and losses, including any interest or dividend ineome, are
recognised in statement of profit and loss,

Reclassification of Financial Asscts
If the business model under which the Company holds fnancial assets changes, the financial assets affected are
reclassified. T'he classification and measurement requirements related o the new category apply prospectively from the
first day of the first reporting period following the change in business model that result in reclassifying the Company’s
financial asscts. During the cureent financial yui

and previous accounting perod there was no change in the business
model under which the Company holds financial assets and therefore no reclassifications were made.

Derecognition of Financial Asscts

The Company derecognises a financial asset (or, where applicable, a pact of a financial asset) when:

The rights to reccive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

"The Company has transfeered its rights 1o receive cash fows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a thied party under an assignment arrangement and the Company
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, Onee the asset is derecognised, the Company does not
have any continuing involvement in the same.

When Company transfers its financial assets through the partial assignoment route and accordingly derecognises the
transfeered portion as it neither has any continuing involvement in the same nor docs it retain any control. If the
Company remins the right to service the finaneial asset for a fee, it recopnises vither a servicing asset or a servicing
liability for that servicing contract.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between:

The carrying amount {measured at the date of derecognition) and The consideration reecived (including any new asset
obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised in profit or logs.

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities include linbilities that represent a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial assets o
another entity, or a contract that may or will be settled in the enfities own equity instruments. Few examples of financial
liabilities arc trade payables, debt seeurities and other bo owings.
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3.421 Initial recognition and measurement of Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are elassified and measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classificd as at VP
if it is classified as held-for trading or it is designated as on ininal recognition. All financial labilifics are recognised
initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borcowings and payables, net of dircetly attributable trnsaction costs,
The Company's financial liabilitics include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank averdeafts.,

3.42.2 Classification and Subsequent Measurement of Financial Liahilities
Financial liabilities arc subscquently measured ar amortised cost using the Lffective Interest Rate method. Interest
expense is recognised in staterment of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derccognition is recognised i statement of
profit and loss. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

3.42.3 Reclassification of Financial Liabilities
The Company docsn’t reclassify irs financial assers subscquent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional
circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates u business line, Financial liabilities are never
reclassified.

3.42.4 Derecognition of Financial Liabilities
A financial liability is derecopnised when the obligation under the lability 1s discharged, cancelled or expires, Where an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different teems or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a dercengnition of the original
hability and the recognition of a new liability. "The difference hetween the carrying value of the orginal financial liability
and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

3.43 Impairment of Financial Assets
3.43.1 Overview of ECL principles

()

lixpected Credit Losses (ECLY) are recognised for financial assets held under amortised cost, debt instruments
measured at FVOCI, and certain loan commitments,

Financial assets where no significant inerease in credit risk has been abserved are considered to be in ‘stage 1" and for
which a 12 month ECL is recognised. Financial assets that are considered to have significant increase in credit risk are
cansidered to be in ‘stage 2' and thase which are in default or for which there s an objective evidenee of impatrment are
considered to be in ‘stape 3 for which a lifeume BCL s recognised.

At initial recognition, allowance 15 required for TCL towards default events that are possible in the next 12 months, or
less, where the remaining life of financial asset is loss than 12 months.

In the event of a significant increase in eredit risk or default, allowanee is required for HCLL towards all possible defauli
events over the expected life of the financial instrument ("lifctime 19C1)).

Financial assets (and the related impairment allowances) are written off in full, when there is no realistic prospect of
recovery.

Treatment of the different stages of financial assets and the methodology of determination of ECL

Credit impaired /default (stage 3)

The Company recognises a financial asset to be credit impaired and in stage 3 by e msidering relevant objeetive
evidence, primarily whether:

- Contractual payments of either principal or interest are past due for more than 90 days;

- The loan is otherwise considered to be in default.

Definition of Default

‘The Company considers the following as canstituting an cvent of defaul:

* the borcower is past due more than 90 days on any material credic obligation to the Company; or
* the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full.

When assessing if the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligation, the Company takes into account both qualitative
and guantitative indicators, The information assessed depends on the type of the asset, for example in corporate lending
a qualitative indicator used is the breach of covenants, which is not as relevant for individual lending, Quantitative
indicators, such as overdue status and non-payment on another obligation of the samq counterparty are key inputs in
this analysis,

T
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(b) Significant increase in credit risk (stage 2)
An assessment of whether credit sk has increased significantly since initial recognition is performed ar cach reporting
period by considering the change in the risk of default of the loan exposure. However, unless identified at an earlier
stage, 30 days past due is considered as an indication of financial assets to have suffered a significant increase in credit
risk. Based on other indications such as borrower's Frequendy delaying payments beyond due dates though not 30 days
past due are included in stage 2 for mortgage loans.,

The measurement of risk
S e e

of defaults undee stage 2 is computsd on homogenous portfehios, penertly by nature of foars,

tenors, underlying collateral, geographics and borrower profiles. The default msk is assessed using PD (probability of

default) derived from past behavioural trends of default across the identificd homogenous portfolios. These past trends

factor in the past customer behavioural trends, credit transition probabilitics and macrocconomic conditions, The

assessed PDs are then alipned considering future economic conditions that are determined to have a bearing on Bl

(c) Without significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition (stage 1)
BCLL resulting from default events that are possible in the nest 12 months are recognised for financial instruments in
stage 1. The Company has ascertained default possibilitics on past behavioural trends witnessed for cach homogenous
portfolio using application/behavioural seore cards and other performance indicators, determined statistically.

3.43.2 Measurement of Expected Credit Losscs (ECL)

The Company calculates HCL based on probability-weighted scenarios and historical data 1o measure expected cash
shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the portfolio EIR. A cash shortfall is the difference between the eash Tows
that are duc to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to reccive.
When estimating ECL for undrawn loan commitments, the Company cstimates the expected portion of the loan
commitment that will be drawn down over its expected life. The ECL is then based on the present value of the expeeted
shortfalls in cash flows if the loan is drawn down. The expeeted eash shortfalls are discounted at an approximation to
the expected EIR on the loan.

The Company measures ECL on an individual basis, or on a collective basis for portfolios of loans that share similar
economic risk characteristics. The measurement of the loss allowance is based on the present value of the asset’s
expected cash fows using the asset’s original BIR, regardiess of whether it is measured on an individual basis or a
collective basis.

The mechanics of the ECL ealeulatons are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

Exposure at Default (EAD) is an cstimate of the exposure at i futre default date, taking into account expected
changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and interest, whether scheduled by
contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed facilities and acerued interest from missed payments,

Probability of Default (PD) is the probability of whether borrowers will default on their obligations which is
caleulated based on historical default rate summary of past years using origination vintage analysis.

Losgs Given Default (LGD) is an estimate of the loss from a financial assct given that a default occurs. The LGD is
computed using a “Workout approach” based on the Company’s own loss and recovery experience. It is usually
expressed as a percentage of the 1EAD,

3.4.3.3 Collateral Valuation and Repossession

To mitigate the eredit risk on financial assets, the Company secks o use collateral, where possible as per the powers
conferred on the Housing Finance Companics under the Securitisation and Reconstruetion of Financial Assets and
Linforcement of Sccurities Interest Act, 2002 (“SARFALSI™), The Company provides fully secured, partially secured and
unsecured loans to individuals and Corporates.

In its normal course of business, the Company does not physically repossess propertics or other assels in its retail
portfolio, but engages extemnal agents to recover lunds, generally at auction, to settle outstanding debr. Any surplus
funds are returned to the customers/obligors. As a result of this practice, the residential propertics under legal

TEPOSSESSION Process

are not recorded on the balance sheet and are treated as non—cureent assets held for sale at i)

fair value less cost to sell or (i) principle outstanding, whichever is lesg, ar the repossession date,
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3.434

3.43.5

Forward looking information
In its ECL maodels, the Company relies on a broad range of forward looking information as economic inputs. The
inputs and models used for caleulating ECL may not always capture all characteristics of the market risk at the date of
the financial statements. 1o reflect thi

qualitative adjustments or overays are oceasionally made as tempuorary
adjustments when such differences are significantly material,

Write-off

Loans and debt sceuritics are written off when the Company. has o cealistic. prspeetaos ble expectations of

35

recovering the financial asset (cither in its entirety or a portion of it). This is the case when the Company determines
that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash Jows (o repay the
amounts subject to the write-off. A write-off constitutes a derece wnition event. The Company may apply enforcement
activitics to financial assets written off, Recoveries resulting from the Company’s enforeement activities could result in

impairment gains.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date using viluation
techniques.

Fair value s the price that would be received 1o sell an asser or paid to transfer a lability in an orderdy transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

- In the absenee of a principal market, in the maost advantageous marker for the asset or liabiliry

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would vse when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their cconomic best interest

A fair value measurement of 2 non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to penerate ceonomic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it 10 another market participant that would use the
assel in its highest and best use,

The Company uses valuation techniques that are apprapriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data arc
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable mputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair valuc hicrarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant o the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant o the fair value measurement is
dircetly or indireetly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest lovel input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable Ior assets and labilities that are recognised in-the financial statements on a recureing basis, the € ompany
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hicrarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair value mensurcement as a whole) at the end of each reporting year,
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3.6 Property, Plant and Equipment (“PFE")
PPE held for use are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated deprectanon and accumulated impairment
losses. PP s recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item is expected to flow
to the Company and the cost of the item ean be measured reliably. PP is stated at orginal cost net of tax/duty credits
availed, if any, less accumulated depreciation and cumulative impaiement, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and
any attributable cost of bringing the asset 1o irs warking condition for its intended use. Capital expenditure incurred on
i-properties-is classified w5 *Bemsehold improvements™ ander TP1E
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecagnised upon disposal or when no Future cconomic benefits are
expeeted to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the careying amount of
the asset and is recognised in the statement of profit and logs,
3.7  Intangible Asscts
Software which is not integeal part of the hardware is classificd as intangibles and 15 stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation. These are recognized as assets if it is probable that future cconomic benefits attributable 1o such assets will
flow to the Company and the cost of the assets can be reliably measured, Intangible assets acquired separately are
measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recopnition, intangible assets e carried ar cost less any
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
3.8 Capital work-in-progress
Capital work-in-progress ineludes assets not ready for the intended use and is carricd at cost, comprising direct cost and
related incidental expenses.
3.9 Depreciation and Amortisation
3.9.1  Depreciation on property, plant and equipment:
() Useful lives of assets are determined by the Management by an internal technical assessment except where such
assessment suggests a life significantly different from those preseribed by Schedule 1T — Part € of the Companies Act,
2013,
(b) Depreciation on leaschold improvements is provided on straight line method aver the primary period of lease of
premises or estimated useful life whichever is lower.
() Depreciation on addition to assets and assets sold during the year is being provided for on a pro rata basis with
reference to the month in which such asset is added or sold as the case may be.
(d) Tangible assets which are depreciated over useful life different than those indicated in Schedule 1 are as under:
PPE Full Life
Building 00 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Office equipment 5 years
Motor Vehicles B years
Servers 0 years
Computers and printers 3 years
3.92  Amortization of Intangible Assets
The intangible assets are amortised using the straight line method over period of six years, which is the Managemoent's
estimate of its useful life. The uscful lives of intangible assers are reviewed at cach financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, it uppropriate.
3.10  Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on
internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset excecds its
recoverable amount, “The recoverable amount is the preater of the assets, net selling price and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated futore cash Nows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
retlects current market a

ssments of the time value of money and risks specific to the assee. In determining net selling
price, recent marcket transactions are taken into aceount, if availible, 1F no such transactions can be identificd, an

appropriate valuation model 15 vsed. @ q\
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ER b
3.11.1

Employee Benefits

Share-based payments

The stack options granted to employees pursuant 1o the C.umpany’s Stock Options Schemes, are measured at the fair
value of the options at the grant date using Black-Scholes Model. ‘T'he fair value of the options determined at grant date
is accounted as employee compensation cost over the vesting period on a straight line basis over the period of option,
based on the number of grants expected to vest, with corresponding increase in cquity.

At the end of cach reporting year, the Company revises.its estimate. o6 the aumbes.of wyuity instrarments expected to

3.11.2
3.zl

3.n2z2

3.12

3.13

vest. The impact of the revision of the original

mates, if any, is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss such that
the cumulative expenses reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the Share Based Payments
Reserve.

Retirement and other employce benefits

Provident Fund

All eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund. The Company makes a
contribution to provident fund on monthly basis. The contributions are rec gnised as an expense in the year in which
they are incurred.

Gratuity

lor defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity fund is determined basis actuarial valuations being carried ar cach
balance sheet date, The reticement benefit obligation rec gnised in the Balance Sheet represents the present value of the
defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost, as reduced by the fair value of planned assets,

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in
net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan asscrs (excluding amounts included in net intorest
on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or eredit
to retained earnings through OCI in the year in which they oceur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent years,

Past service costs are recognised in Profit or Loss on the cardicr of: The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is caleulated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asser. “The Company
recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation s an expense in the statement of profit and loss.
Service costs comprising current service costs, past-serviee costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements; and Net interest expense or income

Leases

Company has applicd Ind AS 116 ‘Leases’ it 1o all lease contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using the Modified
Retrospective Approach. Based on the same and as permitted under the specific transitional provisions in the standard,
the Company has not restated the comparative figures. On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in
recognition of an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.c., the right-of-use asser)
and a corresponding liability to make lease payments (e, the lease liability). Company will separately recognise the
interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-ofuse asset. The Company has further
clected not to recognise ROU assets and lease liabilitics for leases of low value assets and for short-term Jeases (less than
12 months),

Investments in Subsidiaries
Tnvestment in Subsidiaries is recognised at cost and are not adjusted 1o fair value at the end of cach reporting period.
Cost of investment represents amount paid for acquisition of the said investments.

The Company assesses at the end of cach reporting period, if there are any indications that the said investments may be

impaiced. 17 so, the Company estimates the recoverable value/amount of the investment and provides for impairment, if

any 1e. the deficit in the recoverable value over cost. @’ Q
LQ// "%
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3.14

Foreign currency translation

The Company's financial statements are presenied in Indian Rupec, which is also the Company's functional currency.
Initial recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying ta the forcign currency amount the

exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction,

Conversion

3.15

3.16
3.16.1

3.16.2

Foreign currency monetary items are re-translared using the exchange rute prevailing at the reporting date, Nonmonetary
items, which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in i foreign currency, are reported using the exchang
rate at the date of the rransaction.

Exchange differences

All exchange differences are accounted in the Statement of Profit and 1 oss.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are caleulated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable ro equity sharcholders
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a
fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled 1o participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity
share during the reporting year,

Vor the purpose of caleulating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable o cquity
sharcholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effeets of all
dilutive potential equity shares,

Taxes on Income

Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured ar the amount expected to be recovered from or paid 1o the taxation
authorities, in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961; and the Tncome Computation and Disclosure Standards
(ICDS) preseribed therein, The tax eates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date,

Current tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
cither in OCI or directly in other equity, Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with
respeet to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject 1o interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate,

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax assets and labilities are recognized using the balanee sheer approach for the futuee tax consequences of
tempaorary differences between the carrying values of assers and labilities and their respective tax bases, and unutilized
husiness loss and depreciation carry-forwards and tax eredits, Deferred tax assets ace recognized to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable income will be available apainst which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax
losses, depreciation carry-forwards and unused tax ceedits could be utilized,

The carrying amount of deferred tas assets is revi

wed at cach reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date, and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset 1o be recovered,

Deferred tax assets and Jiabilities are measured based on the tax rates that are expeeted to apply in the period when the
asset 18 realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and fax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date,

Deferred tax relating o items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised cither in OCI or dircetly in other equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilitics are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax asscts against

current tax liabilities and when they relate to ineome taxes levied by the same mxation authority and the Company
. agaw . /
intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilitics on a net basis,

0
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3.7

Provisions, Contingent Liabilitics and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognised only when;

(1) The Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 2 past event; and

(ii) It 15 probable that an outflow of resourees embodying cconomic benefits will be required to settle the oblipation; and
(i) A reliable estimate ean be made of the amount of the abligation.

Provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation and when the effect of time value

h lows,

of money is material, the carrying amount of the provision is the present value of those

3.18

3.19

Contingent liability is disclosed in case of:

() A present obligation artsing from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; or

(i) A present obligation arising from past events, when ne reliable estimare is possible.

Contingent Assets:
Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements.
Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of cconomic benefits is probable,

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at cach Balance Sheet date.

Non-Current Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classificd as held for sale if their carrying amount is intended to be recovered principally through
a sale (aather than through continuing use) when the asset is available for immediate sale in it present condition subject
only to terms that are usual and customary for sale of such asser and the sale is highly probable and 15 expected to

qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets chissified as held for sale are measured at lower of their carrying amount and Fair value less costs to

sell.

Statement of Cash Flows
Statement of Cash Flows is prepared segregating the eash lows into operating, investing and financing acti

U,

Cash flow from operating activities is reported using indireet method as set out in the Ind AS -7 adjusting the net profit
for the effects of;

i. Changes during the period in opeeating receivables and payables transactions of a non-cash nature;
il. Non-cash items such as depreeiation, provisions, deferred taxes, unrealised forcign currency gains and losses; and

iii. All other items for which the cash effects are in vesting or nancing cash flows,

Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in the Statement of Cash Flows exclude items which are not

available for general use as on the date of Balance Sheet. %/
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4 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Cash on hand 19.40 11.57
Balances with banks:
In Current Acct "Wﬂf:ﬂu‘e .i(a}) 586.77 2,107.33
In Deposit accounts with original maturity of 3 months or less - -
Total 606.12 2,118.90
4(a) During the FY 2020-21, a sum of Rs 34.40 lacs were provisionally attached by Enforcement Direcrorate on May 5

2020 in connection with the ongoing litigation in matter of promoter group.
Adjudicating Authoritry in 15D for release of these funds and matter 18 under process.

5 Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company had filed petition with

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
In Deposit accounts with banks
Original maturity more than 3 months ((refer note 5(a)) 2,056.60 1,043.86
Total 2,056.60 1,043.86
5(a) During the financial year 2020-21, Iixed Deposit lying with the Com pany were provisionally attached by Linforcement

Dircctorate (D) in connection with the ongoing litigation in matter
petition in Honorable Delhi High Court for release of these funds,

of promoter group. ‘The Company had filed a

Subsequently as per Honorable Delhi High Court Order dated 25th September 2020, bank had released an amount of

Rs 428533 Lacs to NIB against refinance availed under 1ift
current financial year an amount of Rs. 943.86 Lacs which is still attached.
The Company had filed petition with Adjudicating Authoritry in 11D for
with Adjudicating Authority in 15D,

Scheme from fixed deposits. As on the close of the

release of these funds and matter is pending

6 Loans
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Loans (Amortised Cost)
loans to Individuals 31,286.32 41,182.20
Other Loans 7,582.60 1,329.08
Total Gross 38,868.92 42,511.27
Less: Impairment loss allowance (I ixpected Credit Loss) 1,444.80 1,244.82
Total Net 37,424.12 41,266.45
Secured by tangible assets
(Property including land and building)
Total Gross 31,819.98 42,511.27
Less: Impairment loss allowance (Fxpected Credit Loss) 1,416.60 1,244.82
Total Net 30,403.38 41,266.45
Loans in India
Public Sector -
Oithers 38,868.92 42.511.27
Total Gross 38,868.92 42,511.27
Less: Impairment loss allowance (xpected Credir Loss) 1,444.80 1,244.82
Total Net 37,424.12 41,266.45

Loans and recetvables are non-derivative financial assets which vencrate
"

Company. "The carrying value may be affected by changes in the credit rigk of the

f

a fixed or variable interest income for the

Qumcrpmliw
Mo /
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ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

(b) lLoans granted by the Company are secured by equitable mortgage/registered mortgage of the property and/or
undertaking to create a security and/or personal guarantees and/or hypothecation of assets and/or assignments of life

insurance policies.

(€) Loans sanctioned but undisbursed loans and pending disbursements of partial disbursed loans amount is Rs 1924.36

lacs as on March 31, 2022 (Previous Year: Rs 2050.49 lacs)

()_The company is not granting any-loansagpinst-goldjewellery-as-colbrrer:

() The company is not granting an y Loans against sccurity of shares as collateral,

() The Company has assigned a pool of certain loans amounting to Rs 7058.61 lacs (Previous Year Nil) by way of a direct
assignment transaction. These loan assets have been de- recognised from the loan portfolio of the Company as the sale

of loan assets is an absolute assignment and transfer on a ‘no-recourse’ basis, In
the Company pays to assignee, on a mon thly basis, the pro-rata collection amounts.

terms of the assignment agreement,

(£) Impairment loss allowance includes Rs 864.62 lacs (Previous Year: Rs 534.02 lacs) on account of COVID-19 and

management overlay.

(h) Loans including Instalment and Interest outstanding which are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related

partics (as defined under Companies Act, 2013), cither severally or jointly with any other person, that are

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Amount of loan or| Percentage to | Amount of loan or Percentage to
advance in the | the total Loans advance in the the total Loans
nature of loan  |and Advances in nature of loan and Advances in
outstanding the nature of outstanding the nature of
loans loans
Due from Directors - -
Due from related partics 7,048.94 18.14%%
A




ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022
(Amount 17 INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

6.1
 ———
]
62
/
6.3
|
|
|
-
6.4

Loans to Individuals

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount of Loans to Individuals and the corres

ponding ECL allowances, as follows:

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2022 Year ended March 31, 2021

Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3|  Total
GiroSS carrying amount opemng balance 38,906.84 1,200).44 1,074.92 41,182.20 48,098.06 425.94 148,80 | 48,672.80
New assets onginated 4,314.31 4,318.31 061499 961,99
Assets Derecognized under Dircer Assignments (7,058.61) (7,058.61) - -
Assets repuid in part or full (exeluding write offs) (6,556.08) (251.85) (327.10) (7,135.63)[  (8,440.34) 16.20 (21.73)| (B,445.87)
Assets written off {6203 {2.28 SRR {1994y oty (6.71)
Transfers to Stage 1 625.65 (533.49) (92.16) - 53.77 (33.77) -
Transfers to Stage 2 (389.78) 403.54 (13.77) - (| 110007 i
T'ransfors to Stage 3 (132.50) (257.77) A90.27 - (659.76) (28H.0H) 947.84 -
Gross carrying amount closing balance 29,706.93 558.60 1,020.78 31,286.32 | 38,906.84 1,200.44 1,074.92 41,182.20
Reconciliation of ECL allowance for Loans to Individuals is given below:
Particulars Year ended March 31, 2022 Year ended March 31, 2021

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3|  Total
i1, opening balance 166.83 24575 426,82 839.40 #9.13 90,63 41,91 221.67
New  assets orginated 54.96 54.96 226 2.26
Assets Derecognized under Direct Assignments (15.62) (18.62) -
ECL. Remeasurements due to changes in BAD / 59.58 114.26 116.66 290.50 533.22 T4.560 7.68 615.46
assumptions (Net)
Assets written off (0.22) (0.47) (1ot (12.29) - -
I'ransfers to Stage 1 141.64 (109.05) (32.59) - 0.23 (0.23) -
Transfers to Stage 2 (4.83) 9,70 (4.87) g @270 22470 .
Transfers to Stage 3 (2.15) (52.93) 55.00 = (233.32) (143.92) 377.23 -
ECL closing balance 397.18 207.26 549,50 1,153.94 166.83 245.75 426,82 839.40
Other Loans
An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount of Other Loans and the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to loans is, as follows:
Particulars Year ended March 31, 2022 Year ended March 31, 2021

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3| Total
Gross carrying amount opening balance - 1,329.08 - 1,329.08 2,204,84 - - 2,204.84
New assets onginated 10,048.94 - 10,048.94 £ 5
Assets repaid in part o full (excluding write offy) (3,000.00) (795.42) (3,795.42) (R75.77) (875.77)
Assets written off - - -
Transfers to Stage 1 - . = 2
T'ransfers to Stage 2 - (1,329.08) 1,329.08 "
Transfers to Stage 3 - - - - =
Gross carrying amount closing balance 7,048.94 533.66 7,582.60 - 1,329.08 - 1,329,08
Reconciliation of ECL allowance for Other Loans is given below:
Particulars Year ended March 31, 2022 Year ended March 31, 2021

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3| Total
14C1L opening balance - 405,43 - 405.43 335.40 - 335.40
[{C1. on New assets onginated 28,20 28.20
LCL Remeasurements due to changes in [EAD / - (142,78) (142.78) T3 70.03
assumptions (Net)
Assers written off - i 3 o
I'ransfers to Srage 1 - - - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - - (405.43) 405,43 -
Transfers to Stage 3 - - - - - -
ECL closing balance 28.20 262.65 - 290.85 - 405.43 - 405.43
Summary of gross carrying amount of loans
Particulars As at As wmt

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

(1) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered pood 36,755.87 38,906.484
(it) Undisputed T'rade Receivables - which have significant incecase in credit risk 1,092.26 2,529.52
(i) Undisputed Trade Reeeivables - Credit ITmpaired 1,020,78 1,074.92
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant inerease in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired

Summary of Impairment loss allowance (Expected Credit Loss)

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
March 31,2022 42538 469.91 549.50 1,444.80
March 31,2021 166,83 051.17 420,82 n 1,244.82




ART Housing Fi (India) Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year envded March 31, 2022

(Amountin INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

7 Investments
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Investments in Subsidiary
ART Distabution (1) Prvare Limited
50,000 equity shares of INR 10 each (March 31, 20212 50,01 ) 5000 5.0
|Investments measured at Fair Value

Through Other Comprehensive Income -

Through profit or loss

Designated at Fare Value Through Profit or Loss

Investment in Mutual Funds 4,900,40 107.47
Total Investments measured at Fair Value 4,900.40 107.47
Total Investments (A) 4,905.40 12.47
Investments outside India
Investments in India 4,905,400 112.47
Total Investments (B) 4,905.40 112.47
Total (A) o tally with (B) 4,905.40 1247
Less: Allowance forlmpairment loss (C) :
Total Net D = (A) - (C) 1,905.40 11247
The Company has accounted for its invesuments o Subsidiary at amortised cost.
8  Other Financial Assets
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Interest accrued on bank deposits 32.58 19.61
Secunty Deposits (5.61 59,26
115 Receivable (Refer note 8(a)) 217.66
Iix Giratta - Interest Refund 90.47
Total Gross 315.85 169,34
Jeess: Expected Credit Loss on Ex-Gratia - 45.23
Jess: Pixpeeted Credit Loss on Recevable on Assigned Loans 1.56
Total Net of Expected Credit Loss 314.29 124.10
Ba) Under Ind AS, with respect to Assignment deals, Ce mpany has created an Fxcess Tnterest Spread (108) recevable, wath
corresponding eredit to Statement of Profi and loss for the year, which has been computed by discounting 1415 1o present value,
9 Taxes on Income
9.1 Current tax Assets (Net)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Advance Tax (Net of Provigion) 12078 16.71
Total 120.78 16.71
9.2 Deferred Tax Assets
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 167.66 321,04
Net Deferred Tax Asset 167.66 321.04
9.3 The major comy of i tax exy for the year
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current income tax:

Current year Income tax charge 550,62 5U8.44

Adjustments in respect of current mcome tax of previous year
Deferred tax:

Relating to ongination and reversal of temporary differences 151.34 (216.43)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 702.00 dgzm
ocI
Deferred tax related to items recogmised i OC] durmg the year:

Net loss/ (gain} an re-mensurements of defined benefit plans 2.00 B0
Income tax charged to OCI 2.00 8.00




ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amountn INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

9.3.1

9.3.2

9.3.3

934

Reconciliation of income tax cxpense and accounting profit of the year multiplied by corporate tax rate
Particulars As at As ar

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Profit before tax 2,540.99 1,6499.22
Tax at corparate tax eate of 25.17% {previous year: 25,17%) 639.57 427.69
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit (net) (17.28) 27132
Lcduction undec section 36(1) i) of the dncome tax-Aet- 496} T {7
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year -
Income tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss 550.62 598.44 |

“The tax rate used for the reconciliations above 15 the corporate tax rate of 25.17% for the year 2021.22

corporate entities in [ndia on taxable profits under tax law in Indian junschction.

and 2020-21 payable by

Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) recorded in balance sheet
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(A) Deferred Tax Assets
Impairment on Financial Instruments (11C1.) 363.64 31904
Financial msteuments (Loans) measured at H1R 38.99 160.74
Lease lability smpact 4.22 1.39)
Provisions 005 (5.21
Share based payments 2581 22.87
Others 0.37 105
Total (A) 433,08 49611
(B) Deferred Tax Liabilitics
Unrealised net gain on fair value changes 10.50 1.33
Deduction of special reserve as per section 36(1)(vit) of the Income Tax Act, 204,05 222,39
1961
Other Financial Assets 33.92 -
Financial instruments (Borrowings) measured at IR .51 .85
Drepreciation and amortisation expeoses (73.56) (50,500
Total (B) 265.42 175.07
Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) (A-B) 167.66 321.04
Changes in deferred tax recorded in other comprehensive income
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Remeasurements of emiployee benefits through OC) (2.00) [CXED)
Changes in deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) recorded in profit or Loss
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Deferred tax relates to the following:
Impairment on Financial Insteuments (1501 {44.60) (156.82)
Iinancial insteuments (Loans) measueed at 11 121.75 (V1.82)
Difference between tax depreciation and depreciation/ amortization charged for (23.06) (3707
the financial reporting
Lease liability impacr {5.61) 149
Share based payments (2.94) (3.44)
Unrealised net gain on fair value changes vz 6.50)
Deduction of special reserve as per section 36(1)(viif) of the Income Tax 71.66 008
Financial instruments (Horrowings) measured at IR (1.34) (2.68)
Others 26.35 (1.57)
Deferred Tax charged (o of profit and loss account 5 151.38 (216.43)
]

/
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ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Amount 10 INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

11  Other Non-Financial Assets
’E}_ﬁcnhm As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Unseccured; considered good

Orher Advances 43.21 30,58
Prepaid Expenses 42.06 4256
Balance wmrgnvcmmenr authorifies 105.32 88.33
Assets held for sale (Refer note 1 1(a)) 211.43 12.90
Total Gross 402.91 174.37
Less: Provision for Expeeted Credit Loss (ECL) 82.87 7
Total Net of ECL 320.05 166.66

11(a) Assets obtained by taking possession of collateral
‘The Company obtained the following assets during the year by taking possession of collateral held as sccurity against loans and

12.1

13

advances and held at the year end. The Company’s
non-cash collateral for its operations.

policy is to realise collateral on 4 timely basis. ‘The Company does not use

Assets acquired during the year under SARIA LIS by obtaining possession of immoveable propertics for Rs 198,53 lacs

(Previous Year: Nil),

Trade Payables

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

T'otal outstanding dues of micro cnterprises and small enterprises 0.43 1,37

T'otal ourstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 10,77 17.94

and small enterprises

Total 11.20 19.31

Based on and to the extent of the information received by the Company from the suppliers reparding their status under the

Micro, Small and Medium Einterprises Development Aet, 2006 (MSMIEDY Act), the relevant particulars as at the year-end

are
furnished in the note 33 below
Trade Payables ageging
. Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment ey
Fartieutin Less than 1 year 1-2 years | 2-3 years | More than 3 years Fotnl
(1) MESME, 0.43 - - - 0.43
(i Others 10.77 = - 10.77
(i) Disputed dues - MSME = E - " =
(iv) Disputed dues - Others -
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

At Amortised Cost
Secured
Term Loans

I'rom Banks 1,997.33 3,492.32
Total Borrowings (A) 1,997.33 3,492.32
Borrowings in India 1,997.33 3,492.32
Borrowings outside India - :
Total Borrowings (B) 1,997.33 3,492.32




ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes:

13.1 Secured term loans from Banks is towards loan from State Bank of India

a and carry rate of interest of 9.50% peit. The loan is
having tenure of 7 years from the date of disbursemient and are repayable in 20 quarterly instalments after 2 moratorium of 24

months, the repayment commences from December 31, 2019 These loans are secured by hypothecation (exclusive charge) of

theloans given by the Companye

The interest rate for the aforementioned term loans are hinked to the Marginal Cost of F'und Based Lending Rate (MCLR) of
the respective lenders.

13.2 Changes in liabilities arising from financing activitics

As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Borrowings (other than debt securities)
Opening balances as at beginning of the year 349232 18,800.17
Movements

Cash flows (1,500.28) (15,316.07)

Other- amortisation of transaction cost 5.29 822
Closing balances as at end of the year ) 4 1997.33 3,492.32




ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

13.3 Terms of repayment of borrowings outstanding as at March 31, 2022

1y 4 Un: 156
g RepNpmEns Rate of . I,)“c Duclw?2] Due2tw3|Duc3tos| Due>5 ndms)rlu:&.d
Particulars frequency and within 1 borrowing Total
g Interest years years years years
Original tenure year s cost
Quarterly i
| EromBankse QUYL o0, 10000000757 : 204 1,997.33
F'enure > 3 years
Total - 1,000.00 999.37 - - (2.04)| 1,997.33
Terms of repayment of borrowings outstanding as at March 31, 2021
: Repayment Rate of : I.)uc Duelto?2 Duc2t03|Due 3w 5| Due>5 Unamorm.wd -
Particulars frequency and within 1 borrowing Total
wity Interest years years years years
Original tenure year cost
Quarterly # . S LR e
5 509 500.0( 000.0( 0.0 9.6: i
From Banks Phauee > Hyeais 1.50% 500.00 | 1,000.00 1,000.00 999.65 (7.33)] 3,492.32
Total 500.00 | 1,000.00 1,000.00 |  999.65 - (7.33)| 3,492.32
13.4 Detail of Loans against Current Assets:
AT — Particulars of Amount as A‘mm:n; 45 Amount
Quarter Securitics per books I:tpnr’c "; of Reason for material discrepancies
Provided of account | "€ duarterly difference
statement
: Present and Future
1 (s : ; )2 2
Jun-2021 [State Bank of India kit Rioiiukies 3.021.18 3.021.18
. Present and Nuture
Sep-2021 |State Bank of Tudia S 2,999.65 2,999.65
loan Receivables
. Present and Future
c-2021 |State Ba : . 2,999.6° 2.999.65
1Dee-2021 |State Bank of India PP —— 999,65 099,65
Mar-2022 [State Bank of India Parencgnd Fotan 1,999.37 1,999.37
Loan Receivables




ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise st wred)

14 Other Financial Liabilities
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Fmployee related payables 117.02 129.05
Lease Obligation (Liability) 124.42 218.20
Orthers 165.13 74.55
Total 406.57 422.70
15 Provisions
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Provision for Employee Benefits - Gratuity ((refer note 15(a)) (18.88) (20.67)
€1, on undisbursed loan commitment ((refer note 15(1)) 19.09 22.81
Total 0.21 2.14
15(a) I'und value of asssets is more then the lihality towards gratuity as determined by actuarial valuacr
15(b) When estimarting 1iCLs for undisbursed loan commitments, the Company estimates the undishursed portion including sanction
undisbursed loans. The 13C, is then computed applying prevailing 15C1, pereentages on standard loans,
16 Other Non-Financial Liabilities
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Statutory dues 13.00 12.82
Advances from customers 214.80 119.46
Total 227.80 132.28
17 Equity Share Capital
Details of authorized, issued, subscribed and paid up share capital
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Authorised Share Capital
100,00,00,000 (As at March 31, 2021: 100,00,00,000) Liquiry Shares 100,000.00 100,000.00
of Rs 10 cach
Total 100,000.00 100,000.00
Issucd, Subscribed and Fully Paid-up
38,50,00,000 (As At March 31, 2021; 38,50,00,000) liguity Shares 38,500.00 38,500.00
of Rs 10 each
Total 38,500.00 38,500.00
17.1 Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Number of Amount| Number of Shares Amount
Shares (Rs in lacs) (Rs in lacs)
liquity shares as at the beginning of the year 385,000,000 38,500.00 385,000,000 38,500.00
Shares issued during the year = S .
Equity shares as at the end of the year 385,000,000 38,500.00 385,000,000 38,500.00
17.2 Details of shares held by the Holding Company
Name of the sharcholder As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Number of % of holding| Number of Shares % of holding
Shares
ART Business & Consumer Finance (Tndia) 385,000,000 100.00%% 385,000,000 100.00%,
Private Limited *

* As per the records of the Company, including its register of sharcholders/members anc

shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above sharcholding represents hoth legal ¢ 1|1LU

I other declarations,
i beneficial owne

\(

Fany, received from

rship of ~|‘|.1 :




17.3 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company are given helow:

Name of the shareholder As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Number of %o of holding| Number of Shares % of holding
Shares
ART Business & Consumer Finance (India) 385,000,000 100.00% 385,000,000 100.00%
Private Limited *

* As per the records of the Company, including irs regrister of shareholders/members and other declarations, if any, received from
sharcholders regarding beneficial interest, the above sharcholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares,

124 Details. of Shareholding of Promotess

Shares held by promoters at the year ending March 31, 2022 Change during the year
S.No. Promoter Name No. of Shares | % of total Shares No. of Shares Yo
1 ART Business & Consumer Finance 385,000,000 100.00% Nil Nil

(India) Private Limited

Total 385,000,000 100.00% Nil Nil

17.5 Terms/ rights attached to equity shares
‘The Company has only one class of cquity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. lach holder of cquity shares is entitled to
one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining asscts
of the Company after settlement of all the Habilitics. 'T'he distribution will be in proportion to the number of cquity shares held by
the sharcholders.

FFor details of shares reserved for issue under the Employee Stock Option Plan (145¢ W) of the Company, refer note 32,

18  Other Equity

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Statutory reserve ufs 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 251.28 168.23
Special Reserve u/s 36(i)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 1,168.36 883.61
Share based payments Reserve 102.54 90.85
Retained Harnings 3,623.34 2,145.96
Total 5,145.51 3,288.65

18.1 Nature and purpose of reserve
18.1.1 Statutory reserve and Special reserve
Section 29C of The National 1Housing Bank (NHB) Act, 1987 defines that every housing finance institution which is a Company

shall create a reserve fund and transfer therein a sum not less than twenty percent of its net profiv every year as disclosed in the
statement of profit and loss before any dividend is declared. Tor this purpose any special reserve ereated by the Company under
Seetdon 36(1) (viii) of Income tax Act 1961, i considered to be an cligible transfer for the purpose of section 29C of the NI B Act,
1987. "I'he Company has transferred an amount of Rs 367.80 lacs (Previous Year Rs 399,55 lacs) which includes the special reserve in
terms of Section 36(1) (viii) of the Tncome-tax Act 1961,

In terms of the requirement of National Housing Bank’s (N| IB) Circular No. NIHBNID)/DRS/Pol.Circular.61/2013-14 dated
| April 7, 2014, information on Reserve Fund under section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 has been furnished under
note 42.3.

18.1.2 Share Based Payments Reserve
The Company has stock option schemes under which options to subscribe for the Company's shares have been granted to cligible
employces and key management personnel. T'he Share-based Payment Reserve is used to recopnise the value of equity-settled Share-
based Payments,

18.1.3 Retained earnings
Retained carnings represents the surplus in profit and loss account till date after appropriation less any transfers to starutory
reserves. 'The Company recopnises change on account of remeasurement of the net defined benefir liability (assct) as part of retained
earnings with separate disclosure, which comprises of:
{a) actuarial gains and losses; and

(b) return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit labiligy (asser).
/
(-

1

\
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Notes forming part of the

{Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

19  Interest Income
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
On Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost:
Interest on Loans 4,907 .94 6,146.79
Interest on deposits with banks 51.06 115.21
Total 4,959.00 6,262.00
Interest income on loans is recognised basis thFTnme Interest Rate (1EIR), Accordingly Loan origination income (net of direct
incremental costs) is included in Interest on loans on amortization basis.
Interest Income on Stage 3 Asscis s recogniscd on. the et caseying value {the-gronscarryimg value as redteed by the impairmont illowance).
20 Fee and Commission Income
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Other fec income and charges 163.67 68538
Interest on Lease Liability - IND AS . 14.43
Total 163.67 82.82
21 Net Gain/(Loss) on Fair Value Changes
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
On trading portfolio
Investments in Mutual funds 167.52 B1.806
Total Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes 167.52 81.86
Fair Value changes:
Realised 131.07 B1.86
Unrealised 36.44 -
Total Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes 167.52 81.86
22 Finance Costs
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
On Financial Liabilitics measured at Amortised Cost
Interest on borrowings 276.48 1,086.81
Interest on Lease Liability 28,51 .
Total Finance Costs 304.99 1,086.81
23 Impairment on Financial Instruments
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
On Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost
On Loans - Expected Credit Logs 196.25 710.57
On Other Assets - Expected Credit Loss 31.48 52,95
Loans, advances and other receivables written off 19.94 6,71
Total 247.67 770.23
24 Employce benefits expense
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Salaries, wages and bonus L419.11 1B68.23
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 66.73 9713
Contribution to gratuity 14.29 14.79
Share based payments to employees 11.68 24.13
Stafl welfare expenses 17.67 10,09
Total 1,529.48 2,014.36




ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

25 Corporate Social Responsibility expenses

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
- amount required to be spent by the company during the year 37.65 32.70
- amount of expenditure incurred 37.70 3270
- shortfall at the end of the year
- total of previous years shortfall
25.1 |Nature of CSR Activitics As at A ar
' March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Eradicating Hunger, Poverty and Malnutrition 3.95 -
Education 33.50 32,70
Environmental Sustainability 0,25 =
Total 37.70 32.70

Related party transactions during the year in relation 1o CSR expenditure 15 Rs Nil (P

26  Other expenses

revious Year Rs Nil),

Particulars As ar As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rent 6019 37.16
Repairs and Maintenance 0.88 10.68
General Office Expenses 135.27 130.66
Electricity & Water Charges 28.11 26,62
Insurance Charges 13.22 2545
Legal and professional charges 215.05 129.52
Auditor's fees and expenses 6.54 7.0
Rates and T'axes 29.19 326
Director’s fees, allowances and expenses 15,70 17.44
Communication expenses 29.51 40,66
Loss on disposal of property, plant and cquipment (3.13) 1.92
Advertisement and business promotion expenses 15.64 2.20
Travelling and conveyance 57.30 307
Recruitment Bxpenses 2.56 0.27
Miscellaincous expenses 40.50) 51.93
Total 655.54 519.50

26.1 Auditor's remuneration

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
As auditors 6.54 6.54
For other services .55
For reimbursement of expenses -
Total 6.54 7.09

26.2 Expenditure in Foreign currency

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Other lxpenses 13.00
Total 13.00

ALY
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27 Earmings per share (EPS)

Basic IIPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year anriburable to cquity holders of the Company by the wetghted average
number of cquity shares ouistanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is caleulated by dividing the profic attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issucd on conversion of
all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares of the Company,

28

29

30

"The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

(a) Computation of profit attributable to equity shareholders
Net profir after tax attributable to equity sharcholders 1,845.18 134291

(b) Computation of weighted average number of shares

- Basic (In Nos in lacs) 3,850.00 3,850.00
- Diluted (In Nos in lacs ) 3.868.78 3,917.99
(¢) Nominal value of equity share 10.00 10.00

(d) Earnings per share

- Basic (in Rs) 0.48 0.35
- Diluted (in Rs) 0.48 0.34
Segment

The Company has only one reportable business segment, i.¢. lending to borrowers, which have similar nature of products

and services, risk and retum profile, type/class of customers and the nature of the regulatory environment (which is banking), risks
and returns for the purpose of Ind AS 108 on "Segment Reporting' specified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read
with Rule 7 of the Companics (Accounts| Rules, 2014 . A ceordingly, the amounts appearing in the financial statements relate to
the Company’s single business segment. The ( ‘ompany operates in @ single geographical segment e, domestic.

Transfer of financial assets that are derecognised in their entirety where the Company has continuing involvement

The Company has not transferred any assets that arc derecognised in their entirety where the Company continues to have
continuing involvement.

Changes in liabilitics arising from financing activities

The Company does not have any financing activities which affect the capital and asset structure of the Company without the use

of cash and cash cquivalents, ;
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3

Employce Benefits Plan
Direct Benefit Plan
Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefir grani ty plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of

service is eligible for

gratuity on cessation of employment and i s computed ar 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for cach completed vear of service
subject to such limit as prescribed by The Payment of Gratuity Aet, 1972 as amended from time to fimc.

311

312

313

31.4

DS for COmMponents of nct benefits cxpense rece sgnized in the statement of profit and loss and the funde

recognized in the balance sheet for the respective plans based on actuarial valuation is given below:

Statement of profit and loss

Net employee benefit expense recopnized in the em lovee cost
ploy Ploy

d status and amounts

Particulars

As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current service cost 11.27 12,22
Interest cost 2,70 345
Return on plan assets (3.99) (3.40)
Net remeasurement (gain) / loss recognized in the year - -
Net expense 9.98 12,27
Remeasurement (gains)/ loss recognised in other comprehensive income:
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Opening amount recognised in other comprehensive income (34.95) (1.26)
Remeasurement (gain) / loss on obligations arising from changes in financial (0.48) 0.48
assumptions
Remeasurement (gain) / loss on obligations arising from changes in experience (7.43) (26.99)
adjustments
Actual return on plan assers less interest on plan assets (0.28) (7.18)
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income for the year (8.19) (33.69)
Closing amount recognised in other comprehensive income (43.15) (34.95)
Balance Sheet
Net defined benefit lability
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Present value of defined benefit obligation 44.87 43.13
lair value of plan assets 63.75 63.79
Net defined benefit liability recognised in balance sheet (18.88) (20.67)
Changes in present value of the defined benefit obligations:
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Present value of defined benefit obligations s at beginning of the year 43.13 57.50
Current service cost 11.27 12.22
Interest cost 2,70 3.45
Benefits paid during the year (4.31) (3.53)
Actuarial gain on obligations (7.91) (26.51)
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year y 4487 43.13
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the year ended March 31, 2022
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317

31.8

31.9

Changes in fair value of plan asset:
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Iair value of plan assets as at the beginning of the year 63.79 56.74
Actual return on plan assets 4.27 10.59
Contributions - -
Benefirs paid (4.31) (3.53)
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 63.75 63.79
The principle assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company are shown below:
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Discount rare 6.25% 6.00%
Puture salary increase rate 5.00% 5.00%
Mortality TALM 2012-14 TALM 2012-14
Average past service (years) 1.9 Years 25 Years
Average age (years) 341 Years 328 Years
Average remaining working lives of employees (years) 21 Years 23 Years
Attrition rate 20.00% 20.00%

The discount rate is generally based upon the market yicld available on the ¢
that matches that of the labilitics and the salary growth rate takes aceount
facrors on long term basis.

iovernment bonds at the reporting date with a term
of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant

Projected plan cash flow: maturity profile
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Expeceted benefits for year | 510 202
lixpected benefits for year 2 510 219
Lixpected benefits for year 3 2.76 242
bxpected benefits for year 4 273 246
Fixpected benefits for year 5 270 238
xpected benefits for year 5 above 28.98 31.66
Total 47.37 43.13
Expected contribution to fund in the next year
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Fxpected contribution to fund in the next yeiar 19.55 21.65

Sensitivity Analysis
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of
increase rate. Liffect of change in mortality rate is neglipible

the defined benefit oblipation are discount tate and expected salary
- Please note that the sensirivity unalysis presented below may not be

representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely thar the change in assumption would occur in

isolation of one another as some of the

assumptions may be coreclated. The results of sensitivity

analysis are given below

Particulars

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions 44.87 43.13
a) Effect of 1% change in assumed discount rate

1% increase 4% 4%
1% decrease 5% 5%
(b) Liffect of 1% change in assumed salary escalation rare

1% increase 5% 5%
1% decrease -4% 4%
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32 Employee Stock Option Schemes (ESOS)
ART Housing Finance (India) Limited had in the previous years announced and adopted ESOS schemes for its employees wherein cach

option represents one equity share of the Coompany. Nomination and Remuncration Committee consituted by the Board of Dircctors
administers cach of the plans,

32.1 AHFL ESOS - MAY'2017

The sharcholders of the Company at their meeting dated May 29, 2017 approved the '"AATIEFL BESOP - MAY'2017 scheme consisting of

2500,000.s10ck options rep sy 2,300,066 fully paid up cquity shiares of Rs 10 cach of the Company o Be issucd n onc or more
tranches to eligible employees of the G impany. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee constitured by the Board of Directors of
the Company has, at its meeung held on dated May 29, 2017, November 3, 2017 and December 8, 2017, pranted, following the ntrnsic
method of accounting as is preseribed in the Guidance Note issucd by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India on Accounting for
Employees Share Based Payments (“the Guidelines™). However, the Company has increased the overall limit of stock OpHONS up o
5,000,000 under the said scheme on recommendations of Nomination and Remunesation Committee and approval of share holders vide
their geneeal meeting held on April 4, 2018. As the options have been granted aintrinsic value, there is no employee stock compensation
expense on account of the same. These options vest with effect from the frst veitng date Le. May 29, 2019, whereby the oprions vest on
each vesting date as per the vesting schedule provided in the Scheme.

Particulars
(1) |Exercisc price

AHFL. ESOS - MAY'2017
The exercise price shall he such price as determined by the Board of Dircetors from time o L,
being not less than the face value of a share of the Company as on date of grant.

(if) |Vesting conditions On expiry of one year- 0% of options granted
On expiry of twa year- 20% of options granted
On expiry of three year- 20% of options pranted
On expiry of four year- 30" of aptions granted
On expiry of five year- 30% of options pranted
5 years from the date of vesting

Continued employment at the vesting date

(iti)
(iv)

(v) [Exercise period

Maximum term of options granted
Vesting requirements

The exereise period shall be determined by the Board of Dircctors in consortium with the liguiclity
cvent,

(vi) |Pricing Formula

32.2 AHFL ESOS - MAY'2019
The sharcholders of the Company at their meeting dated May 9, 2019 approved the 'AATFL TSOP - MAY'2019 scheme consisting of
3,000,000 stock options representing 5,000,000 Lully paid up cquity shares of Rs 10 each of the Company to be issued in one or more
tranches to cligible employees of the Company & its Subsidiary/ Holding Company. ‘he Nomination and Remuneration Committee
constituted by the Board of Direciors of the Company has also at its meeting held on dated May 6, 2019 granted the same, following the
intrinsic method of accounting as is prescribed in the Guidance Note fssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India on
Accounting for Employees Share Based Payments (“the Guidelines™), As the options have been geanted at intrinsic value, there s no
employee stock compensation expense on account of the same, ‘These options vest with effect from the first vesting date i.e, May 29, 2020,
wherchy the options vest on each vesting date as per the vesting schedule provided in the Scheme,

Caleulaton is based on fair value method

Particulars
1) [Vxercise price

AHFL ESOS - MAY'2019

The exercise price shall be such price as determined by the Board of Dircetors from fme o time,
being not less than the face value of 4 share of the Company as on date of grant.

On expiry of one year- 20% of options granted

On expiry of two year- 20% of options pranted

On expiry of three year- 30%0 of opuons granted

On expiry of four year- 30% of options granted

4 years from the date of vesting

Continued employment at the vesting date

The exercise period shall be determined by the Board of Dircetors in consortium with the liquidity
event,

Caleulation is based on fair value method

(ii) [Vesting conditions

(i) |Maximum term of oprions granted
(iv) |Vesting requirements
(v) |Fxercise period

Pricing 'ormula

()

(vi) Option movement during the year AHFL ESOS - MAY'2017 AHFL ESOS - MAY'2019

Particulars For the year | For the year | For theyear | For the year
ended March | ended March | ended March | ended March
31, 2022 31, 2021 31, 2022 31, 2021
No. of options outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,164,500 4,272,000 713,500 2,526,500
No. of options granted during the year < = = 3]
No. of options forfeited/lapsed during the year (408,500 (3,107,500) (313,000) (1,813,000)
No. of options exercised during the year - - - -
No. of options outstanding at the end of the year 756,000 1,164,500 400,500 713,500
No. of stock exercisable at the end of the year = - = s
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33 Disclosure under “The Micro, Small and Medi wim TEmterprises Development (‘MSMED?) Act, 20067

Based on the intimation received by the ¢ ‘ompany, somac- of the suppliers have confirmed to be regstered under “The Micro,

Small and Medium Enterprises Development ("MSINELD ™) Act, 2006”. Accordingly, the disclosures relating to amounts unpaid

as at the year ended together with intere s paid /pa wable: mre fumished belows

Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

"The principal amount remaining unpaid to supplice as a .t whe end of the year 0.43 1.37

The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to supp Lier aes it the end of the year -

‘The amount of interest paid in terms of Section 16 alomge with the amount of -

payment made to the supplier beyond the appointe-cd daw  eluring the year

The amount of interest due and payable for the yeams of «diclay in making payment

(which have been paid but beyond the appomted d=ay duismng the year) but withour

adding the interest specified under this Act

The amount of interest accrued during the year ancl renma i ning unpaid at the end of - -

the year

The amount of further interest remaining due and Prayable cven in the succeeding

years, until such date when the interest ducs as abo=we are actually paid to the small

enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a dedwmactilele expenditure under section

23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Linterprise Dews clopsrement Act, 2006

34  Contingent liabilities and commitments

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Contingent liabilities

(a) Claims against the company not acknowledged m s delb o - -

(b) Disputed Income Tax Demunds not provided fe sr 140.85 141.05

Commitments

(¢) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be- execiated on capital account and - -

nat provided for

(d) Loan Commitments towards Partly Disbursed  Loan = & Sanction Undisbursed 1,924.36 2,050.49

Loans
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35 Disclosures as required by Ind AS 116 - Leases are stated below:
351 Lease liability movement

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Opening Balance 218.20 804.70
Addition during the year 139.41 -
Interest on Lease Liability 28:51 {14.43)
T . - [Deletion during the year {122.41) (384.73)
Lease rental payment (139.30) (187.33)
Balance as on March 31, 2022 124.42 218.20

35.2 Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Asset wise depreciation charge of right-of-use assers 133,14 189.02
Interest expense (included in finance cost) 28.51 (14.43)
lixpense relating to short-term leases (included in rent expenses) 54.21 35.77
Total 215.85 210.36
35.3 Future Lease Cash Outflow for all leased assots:
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Not later than one year 117.83 136.04
Later than one year but not later than five years 15.90 108,50
Later than five years - -
Impact of discounting and other adjustments (9.32) (26.34)
Total 124.42 218.20

35.4 Maturity Analysis of Lease Liability:

Particulars As art As at
! March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Within 1 Year 110.13 11513

Within 2 Years .35 103.07

Within 3 Years 5.94

After 3 Years - -

Total . 124.42 218.20

'/. [ \ \

/ N \
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36 Disclosure of transactions with related parties as required by Ind AS 24

1

Holding Company
Parent of the Holding Company
Ultimate Holding Company

Subsidiary Company

ART Business & Consumer Finance (India) Private Limired

ART Capital (India) Private Limited

Yes Capital (India) Private Limited

ART Distribution (1) Private Limited

| Key management personnel (KMP)

Vipin Jain, Managing Dircctor & C12O

Rahul Kumar Pandey, Independent

Director

Atul Hasmukhrai Mchra, Independent Director

Shrenik Suresh Shah, Independent Director

Ritika Bhatia, Whale Time Director and Company Scerctary

Bharat Dhall, Chicf Financial Officer (From July 01,2021)

Enterprises that directly or indirectly are
under common control and with whom
transactions are done during the year

ART Capital (India) Private Limited

Yes Capital (India) Pyt Ltd

Post Employment Benefit Plans

AR Housing Finance (India) 1, Limployce's Gratuity Trost

Transactions with related parties during the year

Particulars Nature of transaction|  For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Transaction [ Outstanding | Transaction Outstanding
value amount value amount
Key management personnel
Vipin Jain Remuneration paid 104.37 - 45.00 -
Ritika Bhatia Remuneration paid 29.85 - 30.36 -
Atul [Tasmukhraj Mehta Sitting Iee paid 5.23 - 5.67 -
Rahul Kumar Pandey Sitting lee paid 523 528 -
Shrenik Suresh Shah Sitting lce paid 5.23 4.80
Bharat Dhall Remuneration paid 23.88
Other entities in which key management
personnel or their relative has  significant
influence
Aditya Khanna lixpenses - 14.77
Reimbursement
AR Capital (India) Private Limited Iixpenses Paid 124.93 -
Yes Capital (India) Private Limited Inter-corporate 9,500.00 6,500,00 -
deposits placed
Inter-corporate 3,000.00 -
deposits repaid
Interest receivable on 701.51 548.94 -
1CD
Interest received on 152.57
1€

Note:

The remuneration to the key manaperial personnel doces not include the provision m

actuarial basis for the Company as a whole.

ade for gratuity, as it is determined on an
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37 Fair value measurement

Set out below, is & comparison by category of the Company's financial instruments

371 Fi ial instruments (Fi ial Assets amd Financial Liabilitics) by category

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

FVTPL | FVOCI | Amortised | FVTPL | FVOCI | Amortised

Cost Cost

Fi o =
Cash and cash equivalents - - 606.12 - - 2,118.90
Bank Balance other than above 2,056.60 - - 1,043.86
lLoans - . 37,424.12 . - 41,266.45
Investments 4. 9000.40 - 5.00 107,47 - 5.00
Other Financial assets - . 314.29 - - 124.10
Total 4,900.40 - 40,406.14 107.47 - 44,558.31
Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables - - 11.20 - - 19.31
Borrowings (Other than Debt Sccurities) - 1,997.33 - 349232
Other financial liabilitics 06,50 - - 422,70
Total - - 2,415.09 - - 3,934.33

37.2 Valuation Principles
Fair value is the price that would be reccived to sell an nsset or paid to transfer a hability
advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i
directly obseevable or estimated using a valuation rechnigue.

m an orderly transaction in the principal (or most
¢y an exit price), regardless of whether that price is

37.3  Fair value hierarchy

In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, Fair

value of the financial instruments is classified in various fair value hierarchics based on the following three levels:

Level I: Valuaton based on quoted market price:

financial instruments with quoted prices for identieal instruments in active markets that
the company can access at the measurement date,

Level 2: Valuation using observable inputs: financial insteuments with quoted pric
prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive
observable.

vs for similar instruments in active markets or quoted
markets and finuncial instruments valued using maodels where all significant inputs are

Level 3: Valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs: finaneial instruments v
more of the significant inputs is not based on abservable marker data, the faie value is det
based on a analysis, with the most significant inputs being the discount eate that refleets

alued using valuation techniques where one or
ermined using generally accepred pricing models
the credit nisk of counterparty.

lor assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financil statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers
have oceurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as i whaole) at the end of each reporting year,

37.3.1 Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Level-1 | Level-2 | Level-3 Level-l | Level-2 Level-3
Investments in Mutual funds 4.900.40 - - 107.47 «

37.3.2 Fair value of financial instr ts not ed at Fair value as at:

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Level-l | Level-2 | Level-3 Level-l | Level-2 |  Level-3
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalenis 66,12 - - 2,118.90 - -
Other bank balances 2.056,60) = 2 1.043.86 = =
Loans - - 37 42412 - . 41,266.45
lovestments - - 5.0 - . 5.00
Orther Financial assets - - 31429 - - 124.10
Total 2,662.72 - 37,743.41 3,162.76 - 41,395.55
Financial Liabilities
T'rade Payables - - 11.20 - - 19.31
Borrowings (Other than Debt Sccurities) - - 1,997.33 - 349232
Other financial liabilitics - - 400656 - - 422.70
Total - - 2,415,09 i -
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38 Transfer of Financial assets
Assignment Deal

During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company has sold some loans and advances measured at amortised cost as

deals, as a source of finance. As per the terms of these deals, since subsiant
the buyer, the assets have been derecognised From the Company's balance sheer.

per assignment

al nisk and rewards related o these assets were transferred 1o

The management has evaluated the impact of assynment transactions done durng the year for its business model. Based on the future
business plan, the company business model remains 1o hold the assets for collecting contractual cash flows,

The table below summarises the carrying amount of the derecognised financial assets measured at amortised cost and the gain on

derecognition,
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Carrying amount of derecognised financial assers T058.61 -
Gain from derecognition 323.05

39 Capital Management

lor the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes 1ssued equity capital, Sceuritics premium and all other equiry

reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company net of intangible
management is safety and security of share capital and maximize the sharcholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure in light of changes in economic eonditions and the

assets. The primary objective of the Company’s capital

requirements of the financial covenants.

The company monitors eapital using a gearing ratio, which is total debt divided by net worth. The Company’s policy is to keep the guaring
ratio at reasonable level of 6-8 times in imminent year while the Housing Finance Companies (National Haousing Bank) Directions, 2010

| (the “NTIB Directions”) currently permits 1HFCs 10 borrow up to 12 times of their net owned funds (“NOIF), “The Company includes

with in debt, its all interest bearing loans and borrowings.

Debt to net worth ratio

Particulars As ar As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Debts 1,997.33 349232
i Net worth 43,645.51 41,788.05
' Debt to net worth (in times) .05 0.08

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it mects financial

covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure

covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the curcent year,

‘The Company’s Principal financial liabilities comprise Toans and borrowings, I'he main purpose
P P £ purp

the company’s operations. At the other hand company’s Principal financial assets clude loans and cash and

dircetly from its operations,

requirements. Breaches in meeting the
I financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately eall loans and borrowings, There have been no breaches in the financial

of these financial liabilities is to finance

sh equivalents that denive

:
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Risk Management Objectives and Policies
Risk Management Framework

The Company’s Principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings. The main purpose of these finan
the Company’s aperations. At the other hand company’s Principal financial ;

direetly from its operations,

As a lending institution, Company is exposed to various

Prinetpal ©bjective in Company

Iliabilitics is to finance
ssets include loans and cash and cash equivalents thar derive

risks that are related to lending business and operating coviconment. “Lhe
s risk management processes 1s to measure and monitor the various risks that Company
and 1o follow policies and procedures to address such rsks. Comp
subcommittee

s subject 1o

any s risk management framework is driven by Board and its
s including the Audit Committee, the Asser Liability Management Committee, Risk Management Committee, and 11
Strategy Committee. Company gives due imy
mitigation, which include venification of cred
and residence, technical and legal verifications, conservative loan
Company face in businesses are credit risk, liguidity risk, interest

Jortance to prudent lending practices and have implemented suitable measures for dsk
it hi:aiur_\- from credit information burcaus, personal verification of a customer's business
ta value, and required term cover for insurance, The major types of risk
rate risk.

A summary of the major risks faced by the Company, its measurement, monitoring and management are described as under:

Nature of
Risk

Arising from

Executive
governance

Measurement, monitoring and management of risk

Liquidity and
funding risk

|Liquidity risk arises from mismatches

in the timing of cash flows.
liunding risk arises due to

- inability to rise incremental
borrowings to fund business
requirement

- when long term assets cannot be
funded at the expected term resulting
in eashflow mismatches;

- amidst volatile market conditions
impacting sourcing of funds from
banks and money markets

Board appointed
Asset Liability
Committee

(ALLCOY

Liquidity and funding risk is:

- measured by identifying gaps in the structural and dynamie
liquidity statements,

- assessment of incremental borrowings required for the
Company's business plan in line with prevailing market
conditions,

- monitored by assessment of the gip between available
liquidity and the near term liabilities given current market
liuidity conditions and constant calibration of sources of
funds in line

- managed by the Company’s treasury team under the
guidance of ALCO through various means like liquidity
buffers, maintaming cash re

serves, sourcing of long term
funds, positive assct liability mismatch, keeping strong
pipeline of sanctions and approvals from banks,

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss
arising out of a customer or
counterparty failing to meet their
repayment obligations to

the Company

Board appointed
Risk
Management
Committee

Credit risk is:

- measured as the amount at risk due to repayment default of
i eustomer or counterparty to the Company, Various metrics
such as EMI default rate, overdue position, collection
cfficicncy, customers non-performing loans cte. are used as
leading indicators to assess credit risk,

- manitored by Risk management committee using level of
credit exposures, portfolio monitoring, and geographic,
customer and portfolio concentration risks

- managed by a robust control framework by the ¢
department which continuously align eredir policics, obtaining
external data from credit burcaus and reviews of portfolios
and delinquencies by senior and middle management team
comprising of risk, analytics, collection

and fraud containment along with business. The same is
periodically reviewed by the Board appointed risk
management committec.

Interest Rate
Risk

Interest rate risk stems from
movements in market factors, such
as interest rates, credit spreads which
impacts investments, income and
the value of portfolios.

Board appointed
Asset Liability
Commitlee

(ALCO)

Interest rate
- measured by identifying gaps in the interest rate sensitivity
statements

- monitored by assessment of probable impacts of interest raty
sensitivities change in interest rates for assets and liabilitics

- managed by the Company's treasury team under the
guidance of ALCO
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401 Liquidity and funding risk

The Company's ALCO monitors asset liability smismatches to ensure there are no imbalances A1 exeessive concentrations on ther
sude of the balance sheet.

The Company continuously monitors bguidity 1 the market: and as a part of s ALCOY strategy, it maintains a hgudivy buffer
managed by an active investment desk to reduce this sk

The Company mamtains a judicious mix of cquity and borrowmngs. The Company continues to diversify its sources of borr WIngs
with an emphasis on longer tenor borrowings. “This strategy of balancing vaned sourees of funds and long tenor bormwings has
helped the Company maintan a healthy asset liabaility position.

40.1.1 The table below summarises the matunty profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Cy smpany's financial liabilites,
40.1.1.1 Maturity profile of Fi ial liabilities

Particulars As ar March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Within 12 After 12 Taotal Within 12 After 12 Taotal
months months muonths maonths
Bormwings 1,997.33 1,997.33 SO00IHY 299232 349232
Payables 11.20 11.20 19.31 . 1931
Orther Financial Liabihiies 39227 14.29 .56 39.63 103,07 422.70
Total 403.47 2,011.62 2,415.09 838.94 3,005.39 3,934.33

40.1.1.2 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilitics

“The table below shows an analysis of assets and Tiabilitics analysed according to when they are expeeted to be tecovered or settled.

Particulars As ar March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Within 12 | After 12 Total Within 12 After 12 Total
months months months months
Asscts
Cash and cash equivalents 006,12 - K. 12 2,118,910 2,118.90
Bank balance other than above 2,156,600 2,156.60 1,043, 86 1 143,86
Loans 100,470,177 26,953,095 3742412 TT7.67 3416878 41,266.45
Investments 4,900,40) 5.0 4,905,410 107 47 500 11247
Other financial assets 41.55 27274 314.20 T6.40 47.70 124,10
Non-financial Assets
Current tax assets (Net) 12078 - 120.78 16,71 - 1671
Dicferted tax assets (Mer) 167.66 167,66 32104 32104
Propery, plant and cquipment - 191,93 12193 - 32517 Y2517
Other intangible assets - 7404 7404 138.29 138.29
Right-of-use assets 107,62 107.62 223.75 22375
Other non-financial assets 320105 = 32005 166.60 - 16666
Tortal Assets 18,515.67 27,772.94 46,288.61 10,627.67 35,229.73 45,857.40
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
Payables
(I)Trade Payables
() total outstanding dues MSMIE 043 .43 1.37 i 1133,
(1) total outstanding dues of 1077 . 77 17.94 - 17.94
creditors other than MSME
Borrowings (nther than Debt 1,997.33 1L997.33 SO0 299232 349232
secunties)
Other financial liabilitics a2y 14.29 400,56 963 10307 42270
Non-financial liabilitics
Provisions 0.21 2 11.21 214 - 214
Other non-financial liabilites 227.80 . 227,80 13228 132.28
Total linbilitics 631.48 2,011.62 2,643.10 973.36 3,005.39 4,068.75
Net 17,884.19 25,761.32 43,645.51 9,654.32 32,134.33 41,788.65

o
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40.1.1.3 Analysis of financial Assets and Liabilities by remaining contractual maturities

The table below summarises the matunty profile of the undiscounted eash lows of the Company's financial assets and labihines o
cach year end. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months eyual
their carrying balances as the impact of discounting 1s not significant:

Contractual maturities of Asscts As ar March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
and Liabilities Within 12 | After 12 Total Within 12 After 12 Toral
months manths months months
e = Sl B
Cash and cash equivalents 616,12 - o, 12 211890 - 211890
Bank balance other than above 205660 2,1156.60 1,043,856 . 1,013,806
Loans 10470.17 26,953.95 3742412 T097.67 3416878 +1,266.45
Investments 4,900.440) 5.00 4,%05.40) 107.47 5.0 11247
Other finaneial assets 4155 27274 114.29 76400 47.70 124.10
Total Financial Assets 18,074.84 27,231.69 45,306.53 10,444.30 34,221.48 44,665.78
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
Payables
(I)Trade Payables
() to MSMIis 0.43 ; 043 1.37 : 137
(1) to other than MSMEs 10,77 = 10.77 17.94 - 17.94
Borrowings (othee than Debt - 1,997.33 1,997.33 SINLUHY 299232 3,492.32
securitics)
Other fnancial liabilitics 3vz.27 14.29 406,56 319.63 307 422,70
Total Financial liabilities 403.47 2,011.62 2,415,09 838,94 1,095.39 3,934.33
Net | 17.670.37 [ 2522007 |  42,891.44 | 9,605.37 | 31,126.09 | 40,731.45

(R
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40.2 Credit risk

Credit Risk anses from the risk of loss that may occur from the default of Company’s customers under loan agreements. Customer

defaults and inadequate collateral may lead to higher credit impaired assets. Company address credit risks by using a sct of credit
norms and policies, which are approved by Board and backed by anulytics and technology. Company has implemented a structured
and standardized credir approval process, including customer selection critert

comprehensive credit risk assessment and cash flow
analysis, which encompasses analysis of relevant quantitative and qualitative information to ascermain the credit worthiness of a

p l-eustomer. Acrual eredit expostres, credit imits and assct quality arc regularly monitored and analysed at various levels,
Company has created a robust credit assessment and underwriting practice that enables to fairly price eredit risks.

The company has implemented a four prong system of credic assessment comprising underwriting, legal assessments, technical
assessments and a fraud/risk containment unie.

The Company's credit officers evaluate eredit proposals on the basis of active credit policies as on the date of approval. The eriteria
typically include factors such as the borrower's income & obligations, the loan-to-value ratio and demographic parameters subject to
regulatory guidelines. Any deviations need to be approved at the designated levels. The various process controls such as PAN
Number Check, CERSAT database scrubbing, Credit Burca Report analysis are undertaken prior to approval of a loan. In addition
lixternal agencies such as field investigaion agencics facilitate a comprehensive due diligenee process including visits to offices and
homes.

The Company analyses the portfolio performance of each product segment regularly, and use these as inputs in revising our product
programs, target market definitions and credit assessment critera to meet our twin abjectives of combining volume growth and
maintenance of assct quality,

40.2.1 Classification of financial assets under various stages
The Company classifics its financial assets in three stapes having the following characteristics:

Stage 1: Loans with DPD between 0-30 days are classificd as Stage 1. These are unimpaired and withour significant increase in credit
risk and 12 month ECL is recognised on these loans.

Stage 2: Loans with DPD between 31-90 days are classified as Stage 2. There s a significant increase in credit rsk and lifetime 1701
is recognised on these loans.

Stage 3: Loans with DPD > 90 days are classified as Stage 3. There is a objective evidence of impairment, and are therefore
considered to be in default or otherwise eredit impaired and lifetime 1C is recognised on these loans,

Unless identified at an carlier stage, all financial assets are deemed to have su ffered a significant increase in eredit risk when they are
30 days past due (‘DPIY’) and are accordingly tansferred from stage 1 to stage 2. For stage 1 an HCL allowance is caleulated based
on a 12-month probability of default (P1’). Uor stage 2 and 3 assets a time ECL is caleulared based on a lifetime PD.

40.2.2 Impairment Loss Allowance - Expected Credit Loss (ECL)

ixpected Credit Loss (CL) is a caleulation of the present value of the amount expected not to be recovered on a financial asset, for
financial reporting purposes. Credit risk is the potential that the obligor and counterparty will fail to mect its financial obligations to
the lender. This requires an effective assessment and management of the eredit risk at both individual and portfolio level

The key components of Credit Risk assessment are as below along with with an adjustment considering the forward macro cconomic
scenario;

- Probability of Default (PD): represents the likelihood of default over a defined time horizon,

- Hxposure at Default (EAD): represents the pross exposure at the time of default,

- Loss Given Default (1L.GD): represents the proportion of EAD that is likely loss post-default.

‘T'he definition of default is raken as more than 90 days past due for all individual and other loans.

FEAD s the rotal amount outstanding including interest due as on the reporting date.
The ECL is computed as a product of PD, LGD and BAD,

linancial instruments other than loans were subjected to simplified CL approach under Ind AS 109 - ‘Financial instruments” and
accordingly were not subject to sensitivity of future CLONOMIc cong
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40.2.3 The table below summarises the pgross carrying values and the associated allowance for expected eredir loss (HCL) stage wise for loan

portfolio:
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Gross carrying value 36,755.87 1,092.26 1,020.78 38,906.84 2,529.52 1,074.92
Allowance for 2], 425.38 469.91 5349.50 166.83 651.17 426.82
ECL coverapge ratio : . L.16% 43,028 53.83% D430 2579 IVTT%

40.3 Analysis of risk concentration
The Company’s concentrations of risk are managed based on Loan to value (1'1'V) segregation, loan products, customer types as well
as geographical spread. The following tables stratify credit exposures from housing and other loans to customers by range of loan-to-
value (ITV) ratio and customer types. LTV is caleulated as the ratio of gross amount of the loan to the value of the collateral. The
value of the collateral for housing and other loans is based on collateral value at origination.

40.3.1 LTV wise bifurcation (Secured Loans):

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

LTV bucket Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2| Stage 3 Total
0%-40% 6,632.35 644,83 161.22 7,438.40 9,123.52 1,527.63 165.09 10,816.24

H1%-60% 8,829.17 153.54 195,31 9,178.02 13,110.39 37163 192.43 13,674.46

61%5-80%, 12,287.51 22773 519.43 13,034.66 14,760.78 543.19 505.61 15,809.58

More Than 80% 1,957.91 66.18 144.82 2,168.90 1,912.15 87.08 211.78 2,211.00

Grand Total 29,706.93 1,092.26 1,020.79 31,819.98 38,906.84 2,529.52 1,074.92 42,511.27

40.3.2 Customer profile (Secured Loans):

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

LTV bucket Stagel)  Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2|  Stage 3 Total
HI. - Salaried 11,511.56 128.67 167.75 11,807.97 14,951.24 326.45 141.47 15419.16

HIL - Self Employed 14,470.43 793.83 615,32 15,869.59 18,788.80 1,463.82 013,08 20,865.70

HL Total 25,982.00 922.51 773.06 27,677.56 33,740.04 1,790.27 754.55 |  36,284.86

NHI. - Salaried 463.38 14.58 477.97 485.67 590 4.31 495.88

NI - Self Employed 3,261.55 16Y.76 233.15 3,664.45 4,681.12 733.35 316.05 5,730.53

NHL Total 3,724.93 169.76 247.73 4,142.42 5,166.79 739.25 320.37 6,226.41

Total HL + NHL 29,706.93 | 1,092.26 1,020.79 31,819.98 ﬁﬂﬂﬁ.&% 2,529.52 42,511.27
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40.4

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash lows of a financial instrument will Auctuate because of changes in
market factors. Such changes in the values of financial instments ay result from changes in the inrterest eates, credit,
Liquidity and other market changes. The Company’s exposure o market risk s prmarnly on account of interest rate rish,

40.4.1 Interest Rate Risk

“The company s subject to interest rate risk, primarily since it leads 1o customers ar rates and for maturity vears that may differ
from funding sources. Interest rates are highly sensitive 1o many factors beyond control, including the manetary policies of
the Reserve Bank of India, deregulation of the finaneial sector in India,

domesne and international cconomic amd political
condit

s, mflation and other factors. In order 1o manage inrerest rate risk, the company seck to optimize borrowing profile

‘betweenshon-teom. and long:tecarluanse He- company- adoprs famding steategies o cnstre diversificd TEROTCC TSN

options to minimize cost and maximize stability of funds. A ssets and liabilitics arc categonized into vanous time buckers based
on their maturities and Asset Liability Management Commitiee SUPLIVISC N INTCTCSt rare sensitivity report periodically for
assessment of interest eate risks,

Due to the very nature of housing finance, the company 1s exposed to moderate 1o higher Interest Rate Risk. This risk has a
major impact on the balance sheet as well as the income statement of the company. Interest Rate Risk anses due to;

i) Changes in Regulatory or Market Conditions affecting the interest rtes

if) Short teem volatility

iii) Prepayment risk translating info a reinvestment risk

iv) Real interest rate nisk.

In short run, change in interest rate affects Company’s carmings (measured by NIT or NIM]) and in long run it affeets Market
Value of Lquity (MVE) or net worth, It 15 essential for the company to not only quantfy the mterest rate nsk but also o
manage it proactively, The company mitigates its interest rate nisk by keeping a balanced portfolio of fixed and varable rate
loans and borrowings. liurther company earries out maturity gap analysis at quartedy intervals to quantify the risk,

40.4.2 Operational risk

41

41.1

41.2

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and system or from external
events, Operational risk is associated with human error, system filures and inadequate procedures and conteols. 1t is the risk
of loss ansing from the potential that inadequate information system; technology failures, breaches in internal controls, fraud,
unforeseen catastrophes, or other operational problems may result in unexpected losses or reputation problems. Operational
risk exists in all products and business activities, 'The Company rect pnizes that operational risk event types that have the
potential to result in substantial losses includes Internal fraud, Fxtemal fraud, cmployment practices and workplace safety,
clients, products and business practices, business disruption and system failures, damage to physical assets, and finally
exceution, delivery and process management. The Company cannot expect to chminate all operational asks, but it eadeavours
to manage these risks through a control framework and by monitoring and responding 1o potential risks, Controls include
effective segregation of dutics, access, authosisation and reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes,
such as the use of inteenal audit.

Impact of COVID-19

COVID -19 pandemic had led to significant decrease in global and local cconomic activites, which may persist. Considering
the possibility of fourth wave, overall stress on affordable sepment customers, company has used the principles of prudence to
prowvide for the impact of pandemic on the financial statement specifically while assessing the expected eredit loss on financial
assets by applying management ovedays, approved by Board of Directors, This has resulted in an additional provision of Rs
864.62 lncs in the year ending March 31, 2022 (Previous Year: Rs 534,02 lacs).

In Accordance with the insteuctions of RBI Circular no. RBI/2021-22/17/DORSTRIEC.A/ 21.04.048/2021-22 dated April
07, 2021, the HIC shall shall refund /adjust "interest on interest” o all borrowers including those who had availed of working
capital facilitics during the moratorium period, irrespective of whether moratodum had been fully ar partially availed, or not
availed. Pursuant to these instructions, the methodology for caleulation of the amount of such "interest on interest” has been
circulated by the Indian Banking Assocation (IBA). Accordingly e impany has appropriated the "inierest on interest” value in
respective loans, Subsequent to receipt of clim from Gove, liability of 4523 lakh ereated in previous year is reversed in
current financial year.

Disclosure a8 tequired in terms of creular on Resolution Framework — 2.0: Resolution of Covid-19 related stress of
Individuals and Small Businesses - RBI/2021-22/31/DORSTRREEC11/21.04.048/2021-22 d. May 115, 20021

8.No. Description Individual Borrowers Small Businesses
Personal Loans | Business Loans
(A)  [Number af requests received for invoking resolution 3l -
process under Part A
(B)  [Number of accounts where resolution plan has been 3 - -
implemented under this window
(C)  |Exposure to accounts mentioned at (B) before 33103 - -

implementation of the plan

1) |OF (©), aggregate amount of debt that was converted . - .
into other seeurities

(1) |Additonal funding sanctioned, if any, including] -
between invocation of the plan and implementation

(1) Increase  in provisions  on account  of  (he 1012 - =
implementation of the resolution plan




ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR laes, unless otherwise stated)

42

The following additional disclosures have been have been prepared on the basis of previous Ind AS and given in terms of Master
Dircction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Iousing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Dircedons, 2021, Notification no.
lJ(JRJ"IN,I1["{".,(1.'.Nn.I2!]/’03.1”.136/202“1] dated February 17, 2021 issued by REI and is given below:

42.1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The accounting policics regarding key arcas of operations are disclosed a5 note 3 of accounting policy to the Financial Statement
for the year ended March 31, 2022,
42.2 Capital
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022| March 31, 2021
() Capital to Risk Asset Ratio - CRAR (%) 163.94%, 184.32%
(ii) CRAR-Ticr | Capital (%) 162.69% 183.73%
(iil) CRAR-Tier 11 Capital (%) 1.25% 0.59%
(iv) Amount of subordinated debt rised as Tier- 11 Capital Nil Nil
(v) Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments Ml Ml
42.3 Reserve fund under section 29C of National Housing Bank Act, 1987
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022| March 31, 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year
a) Statutory reserve under section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 168,23 168.23
b) Amount of special reserve under section 36(1)(viiy) of Income-tax Act, 1961 tmken into account BH3.61 44406
for the purposes of statutory reserve under Section 29C of the NI Act, 1987
c) Total 1,051.84 652.29
Addition/ appropriation/ withdrawal during the year
Add:
a) Amount teansfereed under section 29C of the NHIB Act, 1987 B3.05 -
b) Amount of special reserve under section 36(1)(viii) of Income-tax Act, 1961 taken into account 284.75 390.55
for the purposes of statutary reserve under Section 29C of the NI B Act, 1987
Less:
a) Amount appropriated from the statutory reserve under section 20 of the NI Act, 1987 Nil Nil
b) Amount withdrawn from the special reserve u/s 36(1)(viit) of Income-tax Nl Nil
Act, 1961 taken into account which has been taken into account for the purpose of provision u/s
29C of the NHIB Act, 1987
Balance at the end of the year
) Statutory reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 251.28 168.23
b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viil)of Income -tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the 1,168.36 B83.61
purposes of statutory reserve under Section 29C of the NIHB Act, 1987
c) Total 1,419.64 1,051.84
The Company has not withdeawn any amount from Statutory Reserve ereated u/s 29C of the Natonal lousing Bank Act, 1987
during the current year and previous year,
42.3 Investments
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022| March 31,2021

Value of investments
(1) Gross value of investments

(a) In India 4,905.40 11247
(b) Outside India Nil Nil
(i) Provision for depreciation

(n) In India Nil Nil
(b) Outside India Nil Nil
(111) Net value of investments

(@) In India 4,905 40 11247
(b) Outside India Nil Nil
Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on iny t

(i) Opening balance Nil Nil
(if) Add: Provisions made during the year Nil Nil
(iii) Less: Write-off / written-back of excess provisions during the year Nil Nil
(iv) Closing balance Nil Nil
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42.4 Derivatives
42.4.1 Forward Rate Agreement (FRA) / Interest Rate Swap (IRS)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
i) The notional principal of swap agreements Nil Nil
(i1) Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfil their obligatons under the Nil Nil
(iit) Collateral required by the housing finance companies upon entering into swaps Nil Nil
(iv) Concentraton of credit sk ansing from the swaps il Bl
TR e valie of the swap book Nil Nil
Note: There are no dervative transactions during the year/ previous year
42.4.2 Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivative
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022) March 31, 2021
(1) Notional principal amount of exchange traded 1R dedvatives undertaken during the year Nil Nil
{instrument wise)
(ii) Notional principal amount of exchange aded IR dervatives outstanding as on end of year Nil Nil
(instrument-wisc)
(1i1) Novonal principal amount of exchange traded 1R deavatives outstanding and not "highly Nil Nil
effective” (instrument-wise)
(iv) Mark-to-market value of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and nor *highly Nil Nil
cffective” (instrument-wise)
Note: There are no denvative transactions during the year/ previous year
42.4.3 Disclosures on risk exposure in derivatives - Qualitative Disclosure
The Company has no transactions/exposure in derivatives in the current and previous vear.
42.4.4 Disclosures on risk exposure in derivatives - quantitative discl
Particulars Currency( Interest Rate
Derivatives|  Derivatives)
(1) Denvarives (Notional Principal Amount) Nil Nil
(i) Marked 1o marker positions [1] Nil Nil
(m) Assers (+) Nil Nil
() Liability (-) Nil Nil
(iii) Credit exposure (2] Nil Nil
(iv) Unhedged exposures Nil Nil
Note: There are no derivative transactions during the cuecent year/ previous year.
42.5 Securitisation
42.5.1 |Particulars Numbers Amount
1. Number of Special Purpose Eatties (SPV's) sponsored by the [ousing Finance Company Nil Nil
(HIFCY) for securitisation transactions
2. Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPVs sponsored Nil Nil
3. Total amount of exposures retained by the HEC towards the Minimum Retention Requirement Nil Nil
(MRR) as on the date of balance sheet
Iy Off-balance sheet exposures owards eredit concentration Nil Nil
(1) On-balance sheet exposures towaeds credit concentration Nil Nil
4. Amount of exposures to seeuritisation transactions othee than MRIR Nil Nil
1) Off-balance sheet exposures towards credit concentration Nil Nil
a) xposure to own securitizations Nil Nil
b) Exposure to third party sccuriisations Nil Nil
(1) On-balance sheet exposures towirds eredit concentration Nil Nil
1) Ixposure to own securitizations Nil Nil
b) Fxposure to third party securitisations ‘ Nil Nil

Note: There are no Secuntization transacnons during the current year/ Previous year, !l ’
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ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
{Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

42.5.2 Details of fi ial sold to Securitisation/ Reconstruction company for Asset Reconstruction
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022] March 31, 2021
(1) No. of accounts Nil Nil
(i) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold 10 Secudtisation Company / il Nil
(i) Ageregate consideration Nil Nil
(iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in caddier vears Nil Nil
|t Agprepme g/ 1688 over net book value Nil Nil
Note: There are no securitization transactions during the current year/ previous year
42.5.3 Details of assignment transactions undertaken by HFCs
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(1) Number of accounts 1,143 Nil
(1) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts assipned 7,058.61 Nil
() Aggregate consideration 7,1158.61 Nil
(iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in carlier years Nil Nil
(v) Aggregate gain / loss over net ook value 312305 Nil
42.5.4 Details of non-performing fi ial ts purchased / sold
A. Details of non-performing financial assets purchased:
Particulars As at As at
. March 31, 2022| March 31, 2021
L. (a) Number of accounts purchased during the year Nil Nil
(b) Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
2. (a) OF these, number of accounts restructured during the year Nil Nil
(b) Ageregate outstanding Nil Nil
B. Details of non-performing financial assets sold;
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022] March 31, 2021
1. Number of accounts sold Nil Nil
2. Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
3. Aggregate consideration received Nil Nil
42.6  Assets Liability Management
Maturity pattern of certain items of Assets/ Liabilities As on March 31, 2022
Liabilities | 1t07 8told4 |I5daystoOverone| Over2 | Overd | Over6 |Overl year to| Over 3years | Over 5 Total
days days 30/31 | month to| months | months | months to 3 years to 5 years years
days (one | 2 months | upto 3 to 6 I year
maonth) months | months
Deposits - ¥ - - - . - -
Borrowings - - - - - - - 1,997.33 - 1,997.33
Foreign - - - - - - - -
Currency
liabilities
Total - - - - - - - 1,997.33 B B 1,997.33
Assets
Advances 455.57 165.92 165.92 63110 | 760196 | 1,183.71 1,794.42 2,669.74 1337.98 | 2412836 | 40,134.67
Investments | 1,900.40 | 2,000.00 | 1,000.00 500 4,905,440
Foreipgn < - 4 - - E -
Currency
Total 2,355.97 | 2,165.92 | 1,165.92 63110 [ 7,601.96 | 1,183.71 | 1,794.42 6,664.40 1,337.98 | 24,133.36 | 49,034.73

*Maturily of adiances incledes the loan commiiments
Node: Farejgn currency labilities and foreion cuorvency agssels wre Nif




ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Maturity pattern of certain items of Assets/ Liabilities

As on March 31, 2021
Liabilities 1w?7 8wld |15daysto| Overone| Over2 | Over3d | Over6 |Overl year to| Over 3 years | Over5 Total
days days 30/31 | month to| months | months | months to 3 years to 5§ years years
days (one | 2 months | upto 3 twh 1year
month) months | months
Deposits - - - - - -
B nps De—— = - - . 500,00 2,000.00 999,65 - 3,499.65
Fareign #: # = - - - - -
Currency
liabilities
Total - - - - - - 500.00 2,000.00 999,65 - 3,499.65
Assets
Advances 30056 | 300.56 560.34 640.21 695.71 | 1,631.86 | 3,417.33 2,787.42 296158 | 3121532 | 44,560.89
Investments 107,47 - - = - 5.00 112.47
foreign - -
Currency
assels
Total 408,02 | 300.56 560.34 690.21 695.71 | 1,631.86 4,417.33 6,787.42 4,960.88 | 31,220.32 | 51,672.66
*Matrrity of advances includes the loan Iments

Note: Foreign curvency liabilities and forcign curremy assels care Nil
42,7 Exposure
42.7.1 Exposure to Real Estate Sector

Category As at As ay
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

a. Direct exposure

i) Residential mortgages-
Lending fully securcd by mortgages on residential property that is or will be occupied by the 30,483.72 40,518.24
borrower or that is rented. Lxposure would also include non-fund based (NI13) limits.

ii) Co ial real estat.
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estate {office buildings, retail space, U36.26 1,993.03
multipurpose commercial premiscs, multifamily residential buildings, multi tenanted commercial
premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development and construction,
ete.). ixposure would also include non-fund based (NEFB) limits,

- Non l'und Based Exposure to CRI

iii) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) & other securitised exposures

a. Residential Nil Nil
b. Commercial Real listare Nil Nil
b. Indirect exposure

Iund based and non-fund based exposures on National | lousing Bank (NIB) and [Housing Nil Wil
liinance Companies (111°Cs)

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector a 31,819.98 42,511,27

6. <@ * AN
b (&7 \\/‘2 \
(2

'\\JM I';.-‘I /

e

2\ Limgg

]
)

- - >j
YY) aoue”/
e —




ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

42.1.2 Exposure to Capital Market

The Company has no cxposure (o capital market directly or direetly in the current and previous year

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022| March 31, 2021
(1) direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity Nil Nil
oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporare debt
(1) advances against shares / bonds/ debentures or other securitics o o cleas. basiste individuals| il Nii
for investment in shares (including IPOs/ ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures,
and units of equity-oriented mutual funds
(iii) advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures Nil Nil
or units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary secunty
(iv) advances for any other purposes to the extent secuged by the eollateral security of shares or Nil Nil
convertible bonds or convertible debentuees or units of equity oriented mutual funds e, where
the primary security other than shares / convertible bonds { convertible debentures / units of
equity oriented mutual funds docs not fully cover the advances
(v} secured and unsecured advances 1o stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of Nil Nil
stockbrokers and market makers
(vi) loans sanctioned o corporates against the security of shares / bonds / debentures or ather Nil Nil
securities or on clean basis for mecting promoter’s contribution to the cquity of new companies in
anticipation of raising resources
(vii) Bridge loans 1o companies against expected equity lows / issucs Nil Nil
(viii) Underwriting commitments taken up by the NBECs in respect of primary issue of shares or Nil Nil
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds
(ix) Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading Nil Nil
(x) Al exposures to Alternative Investment Funds:
(i) Category | Nil Nil
(i) Category 11 Nil Nil
(iii) Caregory 111 Nil Nil
Tatal exposure to Capital Market Nil Nil
42.7.3 Details of Financing of | t pany products
There is no financing of parent company products.
42.7.4 Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the
The Company has not exceeded the Single Borrower Limit and G wp Bocrower Limit as preseribed by NITH.
42.7.5 Details of Unsecured Advances
Company has given the unsecured advances for which disclosure has been provided n nate no. 6(h).
42.7.6 Exposure to group companies engaged in real estate business
Deseription Amount (Fin | % of owned
Lakhs) fund
1) Fxposurc to any single entity in a group engaged in real estite business Nil Nil
1) Hxposure to all endties in a group engaged in real estare business Nil Nil
42.8 Other disclosures
42.8.1 Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators
The Company has not obiained registration from any other Finance sector rogulator
42.8.2|Discl of Penalties imposed by NHB and other regulators As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1) Demils of penalty levied by National housing bank ((refer nowe 42.8.2(2)) Nil 1.86
1) Adverse comments by the National housing bank on regulatory compliances Nil Nil
i) Percentage of outstanding loans granted against collareral of gold jewellery to total outstanding Nil Nil
assets - The Company has not granted any loans against collateral of gold jewellery
A




ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stared)

42.8.2 Current Year: Penalty NI

(a) During the previous year 2020-21, NHB in exercise of the powers vested wath it under the Nanonal Housing Bank Act, 1987 has
imposed penalty of:-
1. Rs 1,60,000/- on April 21, 2020 on account of non-compliance of Para 2(1)(zc) of the HEC (NHB) Directions 2010 and
Policy Circular 55 and Policy Cireular 83 wrt inspection of positon as of March 31, 2019

2, Rs 1,000/~ on May 26,2020 for Non- compliance with the provisions of paragraph 44(2) (i) of the Hausing Finance Companics
(NHB) Dircetions, 2010,

3. Rs 25,000/- on Sej tember 16, 2020 on account of non:compliance of Paca 3(c) of Llousing Finance Companies on Approval of
Reqiiisition or 1 mns[er of Control 2016.

42.8.3 Related Party Transactions

Details of all material transactions with related parties are disclosed in Note 36 10 Financial Statements.

42.8.4 Group Structure

"Yes Capital (India) Private Limited (Ultimare | lolding Company)

l
ART Capiral (India) Pavare Limited (Parent of the |l lding Company)
l
ART Business and Consumer Finance (India) Private Limited (Holding Company)
l

ART Housing Finance (India) Limited (Company)
ART Distribution (India) Private Limited (Subsidiary Company)

The Group has filed a scheme of amalgamation with National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), New Delhi between the holding
Company, intermediate holding company with the Uldmate |Holding Company. As on the date of the approval of the financial
statement, the NCLT' has dirceted the petitioners to serve notice of the proposed scheme on the concerned Regional Director,
ROC, Official Liquidator, Income Tax department, CIC Division of RBI and other sectoral regulators having significant bearing in
the aperations of the petitioner companies.

42.8.5 Rating assigned by Credit Rating Agencies and migration of rating during the vear

During the year, CARE has reaffirmed the rating of 'BB+' (BB Plus) Stable Outlook {Long “l'erm Pacilities- Rs 50 crores) on
MNovember 01, 2021,

42.8.6 Remuneration to Dircctors

Remuneration to Dircetors of the company covered under the Companics Act, 2013 and relevant provision of Accounting
Standard. Such details are disclosed in Note 36 above and will also be disclosed in Form No, MG - 9 as part of Director Report.

42.8.7 Mangement
Refer to the Management Discussion and Analysis report for the relevant disclosures,

42.8.8 Net Profit or Loss for the period, prior period items and changes in accounting policies
There are no prior period items that have impact on the current year's profit and loss,

42.8.9 Revenue Recognition

There have been no instances in which revenue recognition has been postponed pending the resalution of sipnificant uncertainties.

f

42.8.10 Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS)
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As per Ind AS 110, Financial Statements are being consolidated at holding company leve - ‘>
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ART Housing Finance (1 ndia) Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amaunt in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated )

42.8.11 Provisions and Contingencies

Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022| March 31, 2021
1. Provisions for depreciation on investment Nil Nil
2. Provision made towards income-tax 550,62 SUH.44
3. Provision towards sub standard, doubtful and loss assels 122.08 184,91
4. Provision for standard assets (with details like easer loan, CRE, CRIE-RIT cre)
Leaser loans. Nil Nil
CRIE 16.26 (51.96)
CRE -RH (16.07) 131.43
Other standard assets 54.30 22290
5. Other provision and contingencies (with details)
Expected Credir Loss (Expenses) on Loan Commitment- Ind AS 19.00 2281
On Other Receivables - Expected Credit 1oss 31,48 52.95
Gratuity, compensated absences 14,29 14.79
Employee benefis 10000 120,00
Provision for expenses B3.68 4721

42.8.12 Break up of loan and advances and provisions thereoan
Particulars Housing loans Non-Housing loans
As at As ar As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Standard assets
a) Total outstanding smount 20,904.50 553032 10,943.63 5,906.04
b) Provisions made T13.74 5H3.01 181.55 23439
Sub-standard assets
a) Total outstanding amount 37478 594.13 130000 28H.67
b} Provisions made 188,70 21011 65.46 102,00
Doubtful assets - Category-1
a) Total outstanding amount 355 HE. 14 91.04 AL.70
b} Provisions made 151.33 31.18 45.84 11.21
Doubtful assets — Category-11
a) Total outstanding amount 26,16 26.69
b) Provisions made 13.17 - 1344 -
Doubtful assets — Category-111
a) Total outstanding amount - - -
b) Provisions made - = -
Loss assets
a) Toral vutstanding amount T71.57 72.24
b) Provisions made 71.57 72.24 - -
Total
a) Total outstanding amount 27,677.56 36,284.86 11,191.36 5,906.04
) Provisions made 1,138.51 £97.14 306,28 -
42.8.13 Draw Down from Reserves
There has heen no draw down from reserves during the year ended March 31, 2022 (Previous Year: Nil).
42.9 Concentration of public deposits, advances, exposures and NPAs
42.9.1 Concentration of public deposits (for public deposit taking/holding HICs)

Particulars As at As ar

March 31, 2022) March 31, 2021

Total deposits of twenty largest depositors

Percentage of deposits of tweaty largest depositors ta ol deposits of the HEC

The Company 1s non public
deposit taking housing finance
company and has not aceepted
any public deposits during the
current '\'t‘iLr oar I‘l'L'\'IUI.IF }'{_‘:ll’ﬂ.
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ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

42.9.2 Concentration of loans and advances

Particulars As ar As at

March 31, 2022| March 31, 2021
Total loans and advances 1o twenty largest borrowers 8,274 49 2,215.32
Percentage of loans and advances o twenty largest Borrowers to ol advances of the HI'C 21.29% 5.21%

42.9.3 Concentration of all Exposure (including off-balance sheet exposure)

March 31, 2022] March 31, 2021

Total exposure to twenty largest borrowers/ customiers 8,274.49 2,222.60
Percentage of exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers 1o total exposure of the HFC on 20,50 490"

borrowers/ customers

42.9.4 Concentration of NPAs

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022] March 31, 2021
‘Total exposure to top ten NPA accounts 26847 3008

42.9.5 Sector-wise NPAs - Percentage of NPAs to total advances in that sector
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022] March 31, 2021

A, Housing loans:

1. Individuals 285% 2.13%
2. Builders /Troject loans Mil Mil
3, Corporates Nil Nil
4. Others (specify) Nil Nil
B. Non-Housing loans:
1. Individuals 5.98% 0.00%
2. Builders/ Project loans Nil Nil
3. Corporates Nil Nil
4. Others (specify) Nil Nil
42.9.6 Movement of NPAs
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(T) Net NPAs to net advances (%) 1.23%, 1.55%
IT) Movement of NPAs (Gross)
a) Opening balance 1,074 972 148,79
b) Additions during the year 1,486.72 L6100
¢) Reductions during the year 1,540.84 13487
d} Closing balance 102079 1,074.02
(III) Movement of net NPAs
a) Opening balance 648.0Y 106,88
b) Additions during the year 1,263.00 66411
¢} Reductions during the year 1,439.81 126.90
d) Closing balance 471.28 645,00
1V) Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets)
) Opening balance 420,62 41.91
b) Provisions made during the year 223,71 39289
¢j Write-off/write-back of excess provisions 10103 747

d) Closing balance 549.50 42642




ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stared)

42.10

42.11

——

Overseas assets
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022| March 31, 2021
The Company has not held any overscas assets Nil Nil
Off-balance sheet SPVs sponsored (which are required to be consolidated as per accounting Norms)
Particulars____ o g
March 31, 2022] March 31, 2021
The Company does not have any SPVs sponsored which is required to be consolidated as per, Nil Nil
accounting norms.

4212

Discl of compl

Summary information on complaints received by the Company from customers and from the Offices of Ombudsman

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022] March 31, 2021

Complaints received by the Company from its customers

1. No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 0 ]
2. No. of complaints received during the year 1 18
3. Number of complaints disposed during the year 10 18

31 OF which, number of complaints rejected by the NBEC ] 0
4. No. of complaints pending at the end of the year ] 0

i




ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
{Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stared)

42.13 Liquidity Risk Manag t Framework
(i) Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings)

Particulars As at
March 31, 2022
Number of significant counter partics 1
Amount 1,997.33
Percentage of funding concentration to total deposits NA
Percentage of funding concentration to toral liabiities* 1 15.57%

— —=Youiabilitey cxcludos net worh .
(ii) Top 20 large deposits

Particulars As at
March 31, 2022

Total amount of top 20 deposits NA

Percentagze of amount of top 20 deposits to toral deposits NA

(iii) Top 10 borrowings

Particulars As at
March 31, 2022

Total amount of top 10 borrowings 1,997.33

Percentage of amount of top 10 borrowings to total borrowings 100,00,

(iv) Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/ product

Particulars As at % of Total
March 31,2022 | Liabilities*
Rorrowings from Bank 1,997.33 75.57%
Barrowings from National Housing Bank (N11B) - NA
Debr Securitics - NA
Subordinated habilities - NA
Securitsation - NA
Borrowings from Insurance Companics - NA
* Total liabilities excludes net worth
(v) Stock Ratio
Particulars As at
March 31, 2022
Commercial paper as a percentage of total public funds NA
Commercial paper as a percentage of total liabilities NA
Commercial paper as a percentage of wtal assets NA
Non convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a peseentage of toral public funds NA
Non convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as 4 percentage of total liabilities NA
Non convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as 1 percentage of total assels NA
Other short term liabilities as a percentage of ol public funds NA
Other short teem liabilities as a percentage of ol liabilities* 19.72%
Other short term liabilities as a percentage of total asscts 1.13%

* Total liabilities excludes net worth

(vi) Institutional set-up for liquidity risk Management
The company has an Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCOY to monitor asset liability mismatches to easure that there is
no imbalances or excessive concentration on the cither side of the balance sheet, The company maintains a judicious mix of
borrowings in the form of Term Loans, Refinance, Capital Marker Instruments, Securitization, Working Capital and continues 1o
diversify its source of borrowings with the emphasis on longer tenor borrowings, The company has diversificd mis of
investors/lenders which includes Banks, Nutional Housing Bank, Development Financial Instination, Mutual lrunds, Insurance
Companies cle,
The Liquidity Risk Management (LRM) of the company is poverned by the LRM Dolicy approved by the Board. The Asser
Liability Commitee (ALCO) is responsible for implementing and monstoring the hgquidity nsk management strategy of the
company in line with its sk management objectives and ensures adherence 1o the risk tolerance/limits set by the Hoard,
Refer note no40 of financials statements.

42.14 Loans against security of single product - gold jewellery
Refer w the note no. 6(d) of Loans.

42.15 Loans against security of shares Y,
Refer to the note no. 6(¢) of Loans,
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43  Disclosure for comparison between provisions required under IRACP and impairment allowances made under Ind AS 109

W s 1 cakehis

Asset Classification as per RBI Norms Asset Gross Loss Net Carrying | Provisions | Difference
classifica | Carrying Allowances Amount required as [berween Ind
tion as per| Amount as | (Provisions) as per IRACP|  AS 109
Ind AS 109| per Ind AS |required under norms provisions
Ind AS 109 and IRACP
norms
(1) ()] 3) ) (5)=(3)-(4) (®) (M= )-
(6)
Performing Assets
Standard Stage 1 36,721.06 425,34 36,295.67 115.60 309.78
Stage2 | 1,127.08 469.91 657.17 6.00 463.91
Subtotal 37,848.13 895,29 36,952.84 121.61 773.69
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 50478 25416 250.62 75.72 17844
Doubtful - up 1o 1 year Stage 3 391.59 197.16 194.42 97.90 99.27
1 to 3 years Stage 3 52.85 26,61 26.24 21.14 547
More than 3 years Stage 3 = >
Subtotal for doubtful = 44443 223.77 220.66 119.04 104.74
Loss Stage 3 71.57 71,57 . 71.57 -
Subtotal for NPA 1,020.79 549.50 471.28 266.33 283.18
Other items such as guarantees, loan commitments, ete. which are in the Stage 1 1,924.36 19.09 1,905.27 19.09
scope of Ind AS 109 but not covered  under curcent Income Stage 2
Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning (1 RACP) norms
Stage 3
Subtetal
‘Total Stage | | 38,645.41 444.47 38,200.94 115.60 328.87
Stage 2 1,127.08 469.91 657.17 6.00 463.91
Stage 3 1,020.79 549,50 471.28 266.33 283.18
Total | 40,793.28 1,463.89 39,329.39 387.93 1,075.95
44  Schedule to the Bal Sheet of an HEC As at March 31, 2022
Particulars Amoum Amount
Ouistanding Overdue
Liabilities side
(1) Loans and advances availed by the HEC inclusive of interest acerued thercon but not paid:
(1) Debentures + Secured
: Unsecured
(other than falling within the meaning of public deposits) -
(b) Deferred Credits -
(€) Term Loans 1,997.33
() Inter-corporate loans and borrowings -
() Commercial Paper
() Public Deposits
&) Other Loans (Cash ceedit, Securitization and Subordinited Liabilitics)
(2) Break-up of (1)(f) above (Outstanding public deposits inclusive of interest acerued thercon but not pad): NA NA
() In the form of Unsecured debentures NA NA
(€} _In the form of partly secured debentures i.¢. debentures where there is a shortfall in the value of security NA NA

R AN
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amountin INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Amount Outstanding as
at March 31, 2022

Assets side
(3)  Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables |other than those included in {4) below]:
(#) Seeured
{b) Unsecured
(4} Break up of Leased Assets and stock an hire and other assets counting towards asset financing actvitics

(i bensemsersinelading Tease rentals under sundry debrors
(a) Financial lease
(b} Operating lease
(it) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debiors
{a) Asscts on hire
(b} Repossessed Assets
(i) Oyther loans counting towards asser financing activities
(1) Loans where assets have been repossessod
{b) Loans other than (a) above
(5) Break-up of Investments
Current [nvestments
1 Quoted
(i) Shares
(@) Liquity
(b) Preference
(i) Debentures and Bonds
(i11) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others
2 Unquoted
(1) Shares
() Fejuity
(b) Preference
(it} Debentures and Bonds
(i) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government Securities
(v} Orthers
Long Term investments
1 Quated
(1) Shares
(a) liquity
{b) Preference
(i) Debentures and Bonds
(1) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government Securitics
(v) Uhthers
2 Unguoted
(i) Shares
() Vquity
(1) Preference
(i) Debentures and Bonds
(i) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government Securitics
(v) Others

31,819.98
T048.94

4900140

5.00

(6) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (3) and (4) above:

Category

Amount net of provisions
as at March 31, 2022

Secured Unsecured Toral

1. Related Parties
(1) Subsidianes
(b) Campanies in the same group
(c) Onther relaied parties

2. Other than related parties

702074 | 7,020.74

30,403.38 30,403.38

Total

30,403.38 | 7,020.74 | 37,424.12
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise staied)

(7) Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securitics (both quoted and unguoted):

As at March 31, 2022
Category Market Value / Break up or|  Book Value (Net of
fair value or NAV Provisions)
1. Related Parties
{a) Subsidiaries 5.000 5,00
(b) Companies in the same group
(g} Other related parues
2. Other than related parties . 5
Total 5.00 5.00

(8)  Ohther informaton
Particulars

Amount Outstanding
as at March 31, 2022

() Gross Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related parties -
(b) Oither than related parties 1,020.79
(ii) Net Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related parties
(b) Other than related partics

471.28
(iii) Assets acquired in satisfacton of debt

211.43

45  Principal Business Criteria for HFCs

Housing finance company” shall mean a company incorporated under the Companies Aet, 2013 that fulfils the fallowing conditions:
() Tt is an NBFC whose financial assets, in the business of providing finance for housing, constitute at least 60°

walits total assets (netled off by intangible
assets).

(h) Qut of the total assets (netted off by intangible assets), not less than 50" should be by way of housing financing for individuals,
The Company meets the aforesaid principal business criteria for 11Cs,

Particulars As at
March 31, 2022
Total Assets 46,288.61
Less: Intangible Asscts 565.42
Toral Assets (net of Intangible Assets) 45,723.19
Housing Finance 27,677.56
Individual Housing Finance 27,143,090
Pereentage of housing finance to total assets (netted off intangible assets) 60.53%,
Percentage of individual housing finance 1o total assers (netred off intangible assets) S9.37%
Percentipe of hnancial assets to total assets (netted off mangible AsSLLs) 93.27%
Percentage of income from financial assets to gross income 97.75%
Percentage of individual housing finance to housing finance Y8.07%

46 Disclosure of frauds as per NHB (ND)/DRS/Policy Circular No.92/2018-19 dated 05 February, 2019

There was Nil fraud detected during the financial year ended 315t March 2022 (Previous Yeur 2020-21: Rs 38.20 lucs),

47 Previous year's figures have been regrouped, re-ar ranged and reclassified wherever necessary o confirm 1o the current year classification as per Ind AS.
This is the Notes to Accounts refereed to in our report of even date
ForSM M P & Company

Firm Registration Number: 120438W
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

\

Chintan Shah Ra umar Pandey Vipin Jai
Partner Chairperson Managing Director & (1O
Membership No: 166729 DIN: 00250437 DIN: 03456031
Place: Mumbai ‘__%——

Date: April 19, 2022

Bharat Dhall
Chief Financial Officer
PAN: AFDPDGB12M

Wholetime Dircetor &
Company Secretary
12IN: 08741012

Mem No ACS 24016

” : [ M U.‘.ﬂﬂ}“ Place: Curugram

Date: Apil 19, 2022




Form AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-secticn (3) of Section129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statements
of subsidiaries or associate companies or joint ventures

Part A: -Subsidiaries

[Fhe date-sinee-when subsidixrywas acquired

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different
from the holding Company’s reporting period

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of
the relevant financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaties

Share capital
Reserves and surplus
Total assets

Tortal Liabilities
Investments
Turnover

Profit before taxation
Profit after taxation
Provision for taxation
Proposed Dividend
Extent of shareholding (in percentage)

Particulars TR
Number of subsidiary One
Name of the subsidiary ART Distribution (@ Privite Limited

Incorporated on August 11, 2015
Same as of holding Company: April 1, 2021 to March 31, 2022

INR (Rs)

Rs 5,00,000/-
Rs (4,56,423)/-
Rs 1,28,577/-
Rs 85,000/
Rs Nil

Rs Nil

Rs (97,459)/-
Rs (97,459)/-
Nil

Nil

100%

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidared or sold
during the year

ART Distribution (1) Private Limited

NIL

Part B:- Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act,
2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

Sinee the Company does not have any Associate or Joint venture
Company the disclosure under this section is not applicable.

For SM M P & Company
Firm Registration Number: 120438W
Chartered Accountants

-

Chintan Shah
Partner
Membership No: 166729

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 19, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
\

ul Kumar Pandey Vipin Jain
Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 03456031

Director

DIN: 00250437

Bharat Dhall
Chief Financial Officer
PAN: AFDPD6812M

Wholetime Director &
Company Secretary
DIN: 08741012

Place: Gurugram Mem No ACS 24016
Date: April 19, 2022




Management Discussion & Analysis

Global Outlook of Financial Institutions

In the third year of a global pandemic, the financial services industry appears o be get used 1o
a new certainty, Many temporary measures put in place are now controlled to become stable,
and a new industry structure is evolving,

In this year’s Global Outlook of Financial Institutions, the BFM subject-matter experts in the
IBM Industry Academy and the global industry leadership team revealed based on their
experience with clients over the last 12 months and their new set expectations for the coming
year (based on last two challenging years) Their collective point-of-view highlights the top
industry imperatives in 2022:

Real industry reinvention. Initiate real reinvention —now —to solve the structural weaknesses
that constrain financial performance.

Customer-centric business models. Build new customer-centric platform business models to
arrange and incorporate the many needs of ecosystemn participants in a more frictionless
environment.

End-to-end digitization. Apply end-to-end extreme digitization to reshape operations and
drive novelty. To triumph the battie to all things digital is the new way, financial institutions
are adopting new ways of exploiting exponential technologies such as automation, hybrid
cloud, and Al to accommodate future needs.

Operational resilience. Act with urgency to increase resiliency for better risk management and
to abide by regulatory guidelines,

Viable sustainability. Find viable sustainability models so financial institutions can launch
initiatives to meet market expectations, regulatory requirements, and corparate ethical
objectives —all with an acceptable cost-benefit case.

Transformed use of data and AL Deploy Al factories and transformed data environments that
put data in action to accelerate transformation.

New workforce and new workplaces, Embrace the reality of a new workforce in new
workplaces that redefine how, where, and when work is performed.

MNew ecosystem architectures. Engage an ecosystem of partners to accelerate innovation and
efficiency.

Emerging digital assets. Join the growing momentum far digital assets by working to create
new customer and partner ecosystems, new products and services, and new use cases.
Security and fraud. Ensure cyber security as bad actors become increasingly sophisticated,
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The global financial services market is expected to grow from $20,490.46 billion in 2020 to
$22,515.17 billion in 2021 at a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 9.9%.

The reason for this substantial growth is mainly due to the companies rearranging their
operations and recovering from the COVID-19 impact, which had earlier led to restrictive
containment measures involving social distancing, remote working, and the closure of
commercial activities that resulted in severe operational challenges.

The market is expected to reach 528,529.29 billion in 2025 at a CAGR of 6%,

Industry Outlook {on all HFCs as a whole

MNon-banking financial companies (NBFCs) consolidated their balance sheets with credit
deployment pgaining  traction, improved asset quality and enhanced capital buffers
notwithstanding the testing challenges imposed by the pandemic. NBFCs are government/
public/ private limited companies engaged in purveying credit to key and niche sectors of the
economy; viz., from infrastructure o the unbanked sections of the society, HFCs specialize in
huus'tng finance to individuals, co-operative societics, corporate bodies, and lease commercial
and residential premises to support housing activity in the country, NBFCs, Micro Finance
Institutions (MFIs) and other specialized segments and institutions. PDs act as market makers
in the government securities (G-secs) market, besides ensuring subscription to primary
issuances,

Timely measures on monetary, fiscal, and regulatory fronts by the Reserve Bank and the
government alded their revival, eased financial conditions and bolstered market sentiments,
From Q2:2020-21 onwards, the situation improved, aided by policy support. Many NBFCs also
recalibrated their business strategies, leveraging on digital technology with a strong emphasis
on data analytics. The NBFC sector faced headwinds again when the second wave hit the
country by March 2021, With the passing of the second wave, the outlook is brightening again;
however, downside risks remain significant. As the impact on the real sector spilled over to
tinancial markets, NBFCs witnessed a sharp drop in collections and disbursements and a
substantial increase in the cost of their borrowings even as access to market funding became
restricted. The provision of moratorium also had an impact on their cash inflows, resulting in
reduction in collections.

While the RBI has, on Febroary 15, 2022, deferred the implementation of the revised norms
puertaining to upgradation of NPAs to September 3, 2022, this is unlikely to have much impact
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because most HFCs have already switched to the new way of caleulating, Yet, they are well-
positioned to improve their GNPA ratio to ~3% by the end of this fiscal,

The two RBI clarifications — on daily stamping of accounts, and upgradation of NPAs — have
definitely impacted HFCs. However, the extent of this impact diverged based on asset class
and borrower segments. Those with relatively more-vulnerable customer profiles, a higher
proportion of affordable home loans, self-employed borrowers, and/ or loans against property
have been impacted more.

Affordable housing finance companies have secn a higher 140 bps impact on average due to
the revised recognition norms. Their borrowers tend to have limited financial fexibility and
volatile cash flows, Therefore, their bounce rates are higher typically. Also, most can't repay
their entire arrears in one go, which could lead to stickier GNPAS in the segment

RBI's increasing role in HFCs

The Reserve Bank of India's (RBI) revised regulatory framework for the housing finance
companies (HFCs) will help them improve risk management and governance and thus become
tinancially sound to withstand market turbulence,

The RBI, which has taken over the regulation of HFCs about a vear ago, has come up with a
revised regulatory framework for the HFCs. Among other things, the RBI has fixed the
minimum net-owned fund (NOF) for commencing housing finance business at Rs 20 crore and
specified a timeline for meeting the NOF by the existing HFCs with lesser capital.

The guidelines also make HFCs equal to NBFC {non-banking financial company) guidelines in
terms of net-owned funds, exposure Lo individual and group companies, risk capital, ligquidity
ete, These measures will make HFCs stronger in risk management, governance and financially
sound, BBl has also given a transition timeline and specific criterion for transition. With the
adherence of these, HFCs will be in a better position to withstand market turbulence.”

Commenting on another aspect of the revised regulation that HFCs will not be allowed to
impose  prepayment  charges, would  provide relief o the  borrowers,
Usually, HFCs charge penalty anywhere between 14 per cent on the outstanding principle.
But, this notification by the KBl will bring in some relief. It has also been provided that the
HFCs will not impose foreclosure charges, pre-payment penalties on any floating rate term
loan sanctioned for purposes other than business to individual borrowers, with or without co-
obligates
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However, the move may not be as good for HECs for whom the foreclosure charges were an
income line, There are many HFCs who continue to face a host of issues including a liquidity
crisis.

Meanwhile, CARE Ratings in a recent report said that overall, the regulations pertaining to
HECs have been harmonized with the extant NBFC regulations. The inclusive definition of
housing loan and restrictions on financing of group companies are significant positives,

With the carlier reduction in risk weights, the capital requirements would be muted from
capital adequacy perspective,

According to the RBI norms,

» HFCs lending against the collateral of listed shares shall maintain a loan-to-value (LTV)
ratio of 50 per cent for loans granted against the collateral of shares.

o Any shortfall in the maintenance of the 50 per cent LTV occurring on account of
movement in the share prices shall be made good within seven working days,

» The revised framework further said HFCs will be required to maintain an LTV ratio not
exceeding 75 per cent for loans granted against the collateral of gold jewellery, and shall
put in place a board-approved policy for lending against gold.

e All HFCs will be required to maintain a prescribed minimum percentage of total assets
towards housing finance and individual housing finance.

The Reserve Bank of India (RBI), therefore, proposed to take over the regulation of Housing
Finance Companies (HFCs) by amending the National Banking Act from the National Housing
Bartk (NHB). The NHB had been set up as an apex institution to regulate housing finance in
1988.

RBI and NHB regulate below aspects of housing finance sector:

REBI takeover of the regulatory role of NHB as the chief regulator of the housing finance
sector in 2019, NHB performs two primary functions as of date-

Formulation of schemes for the extension of housing credit, such as schemes for providing
refinance assistance to HFls for specific purposes like affordable housing or for extending
concessional housing loans to households affected by natural calamity in the state of Kerala.
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Acting as the Central Nodal Agency for the disbursement of loans under credit linked subsidy
as part of the Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana (PMAY)- Urban,

The overall mandate given to the NHB is to make retail housing finance affordable to all
sections of the society. The RBIL in Movember 2019, issued a notification withdrawing
exemption given to HFCs which allowed the NHB to regulate them. HFCs came under the
purview of the RBI through Section HIB of the RBI Act.

Covid Effect in Housing Finance Sector

Haousing finance companies are likely to witness-a porttolio growth at 8-10 per cent in the
current fiscal and 9-11 per cent in FY 2022-23, according to a report, After an impact on their
disbursements in Q1 FY2022, non-banking financial companies-housing finance companies
(NBFC-HFC) saw a sharp recovery in the second quarter. Their on-book portfolio is estimatid
at Rs 11.6 lakh crore, up 9 per cent year-on-vear, in the first half of Fy2022,

The sales momentum is expected to sustain, with the sales in top seven cities expected to grow
by 3% in 2022-23, on high base of 2021-22. The growth in volumes in the financial year 2022
has been complemented by improvement in average realization as a result of changing product
mix and price hikes implemented.

Homing in on new habitat

The one-year extension of the income-tax credit for affordable housing for both developers and
buyers has boosted demand for this housing lot even more. Gol's ‘Housing for All"initiative,
which began in 2015, had planned to offer inexpensive housing to the urban poor and construct
2 crore affordable homes by March 31, 2022, Asset quality in the HFC sector is expected to
remain better than other NBFC segments, Any further waves of the Covid-19 pandemic, and
their spread, intensity and duration, will bear watching.

S0 as the world has adopted post Covid ways to deal and survive, Housing Finance has its
own well defined path.
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Discussion on financial performance with respect to operations.

A, Income

Your Company posted total income of Rs 56.53 crores during the year, as compared to Rs 66,08
crores in the previous year, which represents a decrease of 14.45% year-on-year, Out of this,
interest income on loans has decreased by 20.81%, from Rs. 62,62 crores in the previous year
2020-21 to Rs, 4959 crores in FY 2021-22. This is primarily due to decrease in loan portfolio as
compared to previous year. Total Income also consists unrealized gain on assigned loan of
3,23 Cr. which is derived from deal with Hinduja Housing Finance.

B. Expenses

Expenses including financial costs for the year stood at Rs 31.12 crores, as compared to Rs 49,08
crores for the previous year representing, a decrease of 36.60%. Major Reduction was observed
in finance cost - 71.94% as well as in impairments cost - 67 84'%.

C. Profils

Company earned a Profit before Tax of Rs 25.41 as against Profit before tax of Rs 16.99 crores
(increase of 49.54%). Profit after tax of Rs 18.39 crores for the year as against Profit after tax of
Fs 13,17 crores in the previous year (increase of 39.64%).

(In Crores)

Total Expenditure 31.12 44908

Profit before Taxation (PBT) 254 16.99

Less: Provisions for Tax/ Deferred Tax 7.02 3.82

Net Profit after Taxes (PAT) 18.39 13.17

Other comprehensive income (net of tax) 0.06 0.26
 Total comprehensive income for the year 18.45 13.43

Earnings per share (Face Value Rs. 10/ each)
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Basic (Rs.) 0.48

Diluted (Rs.) .48

Internal control systems and their adeguacy

The Internal control systems of the Company are commensurate to the size of its business and
the nature of its operations, The Company ensures that the internal control systems are well-
designed to ensure safeguarding of assets, reliability of financial and operational information,
compliance with all the applicable laws and statutes and proper recording and reporting of the
transactions.

Opportunities, Threats, Risks and Concerns

The Company evaluates and contributes to the improvement of risk management, control, and
governance systems through various departments of the company which work encompasses
a systematic, disciplined approach for evaluating and improving the adequacy and
effectiveness of risk management & ensure compliance to all statutes & regulation and the
guality of performance in carrying out assigned responsibilities.

The purposes of evaluating the adequacy of the existing risk management, control, and
povernance processes ina company is to provide réasonable assurance that these processes are
functioning as intended and will enable the objectives and goals of the company to be met, and
ko provide recommendations for improving the operations, in terms of both efficient and
effective performance,

The Company has robust mechanism to achieve above Goal through FCU, Credit, Operations,
Compliance and others departments including Risk management & Internal Audit team.”

Material developments in Human Resources / Industrial Relations front, including number

of people employed.

For having pro employee friendly policies and a good working environment, ART Housing
Finance has been certified as a Great Workplace in February 2022 by the renowned "Great
Place to Work” institute, This certification in itseli reaffirms our strong conviction to build AHF
based on a culture which encompasses the basic ingredients of Trust, Performance and
Camaraderie within our Teéam.
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With a workforce of 211 team members { as on 31% March, 2022), we intend to scale our te
size ensuring the best per person productivity in the housing finance sector.

With the working paradigms changing post Covid era, we are now more focussed towards
digitization and using technology for increasing efficiency of our workforce. We have di pitized
the entire HR function with the implementation of a more user friendly HRMS platform for
our team.

Parallelly for knowledge enhancement and up skilling our team, a hybrid - learning model
has been adopted to ensure that our team is ready to meet the challenges of the external
environment. A total of 58 learning sessions were organized during the FY 2021-22, out of
which 60% sessions were successfully conducted in live virtual environment.

With limitations in travelling, regular interface with team members at remote locations are
ensured through virtual video connect sessions,

Over the statutory compliance part, AHF stands fully complied today as per the prescribed
Covernment norms,

nt-wise or product-wise ormance

The Company operates in single line of business i.e. providing Housing loans in affordable
segment of the Society. The performance of the business is covered in the report.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the Ninth (9%) Annual Report together with the Audited
Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022 of ART Housing Finance (India)
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company” "your Company” ar “ AHFL")

FINANCIAL REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

A, lncome

Your Company posted total income of Rs 56.53 crores during the year, as compared to Rs 66,08
crores in the previous year, which represents a decrease of 14.45% year-on-year. Out of this,
interest income on loans has decreased by 20.81% from Rs. 62.62 crores in the previous year
2020-21 to Rs. 49.59 erores in FY 2021-22, This is primarily due to decrease in loan portfolio as
compared to previous year,

B. Expenses

Expenses including financial costs for the year stood at Bs 31.12 crores, as compared to Rs 49.08
crores for the previous year representing a decrease of 36.60%;

C. Profits

Company earned a Protit before Tax of Rs 2541 as against Profit before tax of RBs 16.99 crores
(increase of 49.54%). Profit after tax of Rs 18.39 crores for the year as against Profit after tax of
Rs 13,17 crores in the previous year (increase of 39.64%).

{in Crores)

Paslas | T T 0 | moenr [ CFX2R0AL |

Total Revenues 56.53 b8 |
[ Total | Expenditure 31.12 4908

Profit before Taxation (PBT) 541 | 1699 _
I_Lﬁ‘.g‘-:‘r_._ll_"rﬂvlﬂlﬂm for Tax/ Deferred Tax 702 382

Net Profit after Taxes (PAT) 18.39 1317

_Other comprehensive income (net of tax) 0.06 (.26

Total comprehensive inr.'r.-me * for the year 18.45 1343

| Earnings per share (Face Value Rs. 10/- each)
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Basic (Rs.) 048

| Diluted (Rs.) ] 0.48 |

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

During the year, the company has disbursed Rs 43.18 Crores as compared to previous yvear Rs
9.62 Crores. Also, the company is being able o reduce our NPA from Rs 10.75 Crores, to Rs
1021 Crores even after the impact of second and third wave of COVID-19 and series of
lockdowns across various states and national level but the company has managed to increase
in the profits with reduction in expenses. The Company has also opened fresh branches to
enhance the business during the year.

a) Sanctons

During the year, the Company has sanctioned loans amounting to Rs 49.00 crores as compared
tir Rs (L.75 crores in the previous year.

b} Disbursements

During the year, the Company has disbursed loans amounting to Bs 43,18 crores as compared
to Rs 9,62 crores in the previous year. The Company has managed to increase in disbursements
even after the impact of second and third wave of COVID-19.

c] Non-Performing Assets (NPA)

Given the impact of Covid 19, your Company has also witnessed increased delinquencies
during the year. The Gross NPAs stands at 2.63% as on March 31, 2022 as compared to 2.53%
as of March 31, 2021. The Net NPAs stands at 1.23% as on March 31, 2022 as compared o 1,52%
as of March 31, 2021.The Company continues to lavie strong, focus of collections and recovery
mechanism.

The Company continued to review its porttolio quality periodically to avoid any
delinquencies, and apply course corrections if any required, apart from maintaining high
lending standards to mitigate risks.

During the year under review, the company has made a provision for Expected Credit Losses
(ECL) for Rs 2.02 crores towards the credit impaired loans and other loans. The Company has
also considered additional likely economic impact on customers’ cashflows due to COVID-19,
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d) Portfolio of the company

The total gross loan outstanding portfolio of your Company stood at Rs 388 69 crores as on
March 31, 2022 as against Rs 425.11 crores in the previous year. AUM as on March 31, 2022
stanids at Rs 441.09 crores. Company has generated new portfolio of 43.2 crores in current
financial year. During the year, Company has completed a Direct Assighment transaction of
Rs 71058 Crores and these assets are de-recognised from the books of accounts being the True
sale and transfer of risks. The average ticket size of retail portfolio is similar with Rs, 8 Lacs in
line with previous year.

BRANCH NETWORK

Your Company’s branch network spread across 26 locations across 6 States (Delhi, Haryana,
Rajasthan, Maharashtra, Gujarat and Uttar Pradesh) as on 315 March, 20122,

Details of the branches of the Company as on March 31, 2022 are given below:

Haryana
Rajasthan
Maharashtra
Gujarat

Uttar Pradesh
Total

DIVIDEND

Your Board does not recommend any dividend for the financial year under review.
TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Pursuant to the requirement of Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987, an amount of Rs 3.68 crores
have been transterred to Special Reserves maintained which includes the reserves under
section 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, for the financial year ended March 31, 2022. For details
of Reserves and Surplus of the Company, please refer Statement of Changes in Equity for the
year ended on March 31, 2022 of the audited financial statements of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2022

STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS

The key parameters and milestones of the Company has been summarized below:
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. The team strength stands at 211 as on March 1, 2022

2. The Company operates through 26 physical brarnches across 6 States

3. Company has also invested in strengthening the collections team for early controls on
the delinguencies

4. The Company has made significant investment, both knowledge and financial, in
digitisation of the business workflow activities,

2. The gross loan portfolio as on March 2022 stood af Rs 38B.69 crore as against Rs 418 60
crore as on March 2021, AUM as on March 31, 2022 stands at Rs 441.09 crores,

b. The Capital Adequacy Ratio as on March 2022 is 163.949 well above the curront
regulatory limit as stipulated by RBI/ NHB for housin B finance companies,

7. Your company has continued to maintain asset quality with a Gross NPA at 263% on
March 31, 2022 and Net NPA at 1.23%, in-spite of difficult economic environment and
eftect on customer cashilows due to impact of Covid 19,

8. During the year, Company has completed a Direct Assignment transaction of Rs 7() 58
crand these assets are de-recognised from the books of accounts being the True sale and
transfer of risks,

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITM ENTS

No material changes and eommitments, affecting the financial position of your Company have
occurred between the end of year under review and date of this Director’s Report,

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS
There has been no change in the nature of the main Bu siness of the Company,
SUBSIDARY COMPANY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Your Company has 1 (One) wholly owned subsidiary as on March 3, 2022 {e. ART
Distribution (I) Private Limited. Your Company does not have any joint venture(s)/ associate
company(ies) within the meaning of Section 2(6) of the Act. Pursuant to the provisions of
section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2016 and all other applicable sections hereafter as amended from time to time, the company
shall not be required to consolidate its financial statements in case its ultimate or any
intermediate holding company files consolidated financial staterments with the Registrar which
is in compliance with the applicable Accou nting Standards. Henceforth, the Company has not
consolidated its financial staterments with its wholly owned subsidiary company ie., ART
Distribution (1) Private Limited,

During the year under review, there has been no material change in the nature of the business
of the subsidiary company and no Company has become or ceased to be subsidiary, Joint
Venture or Associate Company of the Company,

{ A

IHRECTOR'S REPORT 2021-22




SHARE CAPITAL

(i) AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

On March 31, 2022, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company stood at Rs
10,00,00,00,000/ - (Rupees One Thousand Crores Only) divided into 100,00,00,000 (One
Hundred Crores) Equity Shares of Rs 10/ - (Rupees Ten Only) each.

{ii) ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL

On March 31, 2022, the Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of the Company
stood at Rs 38500,00,000/- (Rupees Three Hundred and Eighty-Five Crores Only)
divided into 38,50,00,000 (Thirty-Eight Crores Fifty Lakhs) Equity Shares of Rs 10/-
(Rupees Ten Only) each.

Your Company has not issued any equity shares with differential rights as to voting,
dividend or otherwise.

BORROWING POWERS OF THE COMPANY

Pursuant to section 180(1)(¢) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’), the borrowing limits
approvid by the shareholders which may be exercised by the Board, presently stand at Rs, 750
CTOTES,

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

Your Company being a non-deposit accepting Housing Finance Company as per the Non-
Banking Financial Company-Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 has
not accepted, renewed or held any public deposits during the year under review and shall not
accept any deposits from the public without obtaining prior approval of the NHE and
accordingly requirements under Chapter V of the Act read with Rule B(5)(v) and 8(3)(vi) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 as well as requirement of maintaining liquid assets as
specified under Section 298 of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 are not applicable to your
Company.

FINANCE
During the year under review, the Company has not obtained any further borrowings,
The aggregate bank borrowings, i.e., term loans plus overdraft, at the end of the financial year

stood at Rs 20.00 crores as compared to Rs 35.00 crores at the end of the previous year, Further,
overall borrowings are within regulatory ceiling,
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The overall cost of borrowings (average) was 9.50% p.a, for the yvear ended March 31, 2022,

CREDIT LINKED SUBSIDY SCHEME

Your Company and its management team is highly committed to the "Housing for all’ mission.
Keeping this in mind, the Company participated in Government initiatives to facilitate benefits
of the 'Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojna: Credit Linked Subsidy Scheme’ (PMAY-CLS5) from NHB
for its customers across urban and semi-urban India.

During the year, the Company successfully delivered subsidy of Rs 3.23 crores to its customers
under the PMAY-CLSS5 scheme under different scheme,

CREDIT RATING
During the year, the Company’s rating remained to "CARE BB+ with Stable outlook”,
COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

Your Company is in compliance with the Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the Board of
Directors and the Secretarial Standards on General Meeting issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.

EXTRACTS OF ANNUAL RETURN

In terms of provisions of Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, the extract of Annual Return of the Company as at
financial year ended March 31, 2022 as in the prescribed Form MGT-9 is attached here as
Annexure- A and the same is also available on the website of the Company at www arthfc.com.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The composition of the Board of Directors of your Company as on March 31, 2022 is mentioned
as below:

| Name of Director Category

Mr, Atul Mehta | Independent Director

Mr. Rahul Kumar Pandey Independent Director
| Ms. Ritika Bhatia Whole Time Director

M. Shrenik Shah lndn.pendent Director

Mr. Vipin Jain Managing Director & CEO
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CESSATION/ APPOINTMENTS:

During the vear under review, no Director appointed or ceased to/ from the Board of the
Company.

DIRECTOR(S) DISCLOSURES

Based on the declarations and confirmations received in terms of the provisions of the Act,
circular{s) / notification{s) / direction(s) issuced by the National Housing Bank (NHB
Eegulilﬁumi} and other applicable laws, none of the Directors on the Board of your Company
are di_qqu.tliﬁw_{ from being appuinturj as Direclors,

Pursuant to Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has received declaration
from Mr. Atul Mehta, Mr. Rahul Kumar Pandey and Mr. Shrenik Shah, Independent Directors
of the Company affirming compliance with the criteria of independence as specitied in Section
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013,

The Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors of the Company possess requisite
qualifications, experience, and expertise. All the Independent Directors of the Company have
registered their names with the data bank created for Independent Directors.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

In terms of the Act; the following persons are the Key Managerial Personnel ("KMP”) of the
Company as on March 31, 2022

o Mr. Vipin Jain - Managing Director & CEO
* Mr Bharat Dhall - Chief Financial Officer
= Mrs. Ritika Bhatia - Whaole Time Director & Company Secretary

DIRECTOR RETIRING BY ROTATION

In terms of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Articles of Association of the
Company, Mrs. Ritika Bhatia retired by rotation and being eligible, offered herself tor
reappointment and was reappointed by the way of passing Ordinary Resolution at the AGM
held on May 18 ,2021.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors adopted a Board

Performance Evaluation Policy and detailed process for facilitating performance evaluation of
the Board, as a collective entity, that of its Committee(s) and individual Directors including the

Chairperson.
{ A {
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In terms of the requirement of Schedule IV of the Act, a Separate meeting of U“Jd'-'[l-l.'m:lfjl’r
Director was held on February 24, 2022, 1o review the performance of Non-Independent
Directors including the Chairperson and the Board, as a collective entity, Performance
evaluation was carried out by way of obtaining feedback from independent Director through
astructured questionnaire prepared and in accordance with the Board Performance Evaluation
Policy and Performance Evaluation Process.

Based on the questionnaire circulated and discussions at the independent Directors mecting,
the independent Director expressed satisfaction with the overall performance of the Board and
Non-Independent Directors including the chairperson,

REMUNERATION POLICY

In terms of Section 178 of the Companies Act 2013, the Board of Directors the Company has
constituted Nomination & Remuneration Committee whose scope of work covers the
performance evaluation of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management
of the Company, The evaluation and appraisal are done in line with the Performance
Management Policy of the Company.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel are given in MGT-9 (Annexure A),

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:
AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Board of Directors had constituted the Audit Committes pursuant to provisions of Section

177 of the Companies Act, 2013 on 21st August, 2015, The Committee consists of the following
Directors as on 31st March, 2022

Name of Director - Member Designation

Mr., Atul Mehta Independent Director
Mr. Rahul Kumar Pandey Independent Director
_M r, Shrenik Shah II“IdL‘E.'I-Ih"IdL’I.‘It Director
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors had
constituted  the Nomination and Remuneration Committee on 21st August, 2015. The

Committee consists of following Directors as on 31st March, 2022

N ame of Director - iﬂIEI;lhEr

Designation

Mr. Atul Mehta
"Mr. Rahul Kumar Pandey

Independent Director

Independent Director

|i M. Shrenik Shah

—

Independent Director

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The Board has constituted Corporate Social Responsibility Committee on January 16, 2018,

The Committee consists of following Directors as on March 31, 2022;

Name of Director - Member Designation

Mr. Rahul Kumar Pandey Independent Director

Mr. Atul Mehta Independent Director |
'Mr. Shrenik Shah in&epen-r!::nt Director

Me, Ritika Bhatia’ ‘Whole Time Director &
| Company Secretary

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Board has constituted Risk Management Committee on August 04, 2016, The Committee

consists of following Directors as on March 31, 2022

-

Name of Director/Member Designation

Mr, Rahul Kumar Pandey Independent Director

Mr. Atul Mehta Independent Director

Mr, Shrenik Shah Independent Director

M. Vipin Jain Managing Director & CEO

Ms, Ritika Bhatia ‘Whole Time Director &
Company Secretary

Mr. Vikas Rana Head -Operations, Customer
Service and Risk

Mr. Mahesh Adhikari Chief Credit Officer

A
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| Mr, Bharat Dhall | Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Puneet Jindal | Business Head
Mr, Dushyant Sharma Collection Head
IT STRATEGY COMMITTEE

The Board has constituted [T Strategy Committee on September (4, 2008, The Committee consists of
following Directors as on March 31, 2027

MName of Director - Member Uesig_'naﬁm

Mr. Rahul Kumar Pandey Independent Director I

Mr. Atul Mehta Independent Director

Mr. Shrenik Shah Independent Director —
Wﬂain Managing Director & CEO

NUMBER OF MEETINGS HELD DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2021-22:

Table containing details of the Board Meetings and Committees Meetings held during the year
under review, along with dates are as below. The Board meetings were held in a manner that
not more than 120 days intervened between two consecutive meetings. The required quorum
was present at all the above-mentioned meetings.

5. Name of Committee No. of Meetings | Date of Meetings
No
1. Board Meetings B(six) | 1. May 11, 2021
2 June 23, 2021
3. August (14,2021
4, November 11,2021
5. February 10, 2022
6. February 24, 2022
2. | Audit Commiltee MFour) | 1. May 11,2021
2. June 22, 2021
3. November 11, 2021
| 4. February 24 2022

< ﬂ S
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:, Nomination and 2(Two) 1. May 11, 2021
Remuneration 2, Juﬁu 22, 2021
Committee o . |
4. Corporate Social 1 (One) 1. February 24, 2022
Responsibility
Committee 1
B Independent Director 1 {ome) 1. February 24, 2022
Meeting
. IT Strategy Committee 2Two) 1. June 22,2021
| 2. February 24, 2022
7 | Risk Management 2(Twao) 1. June 22,2021
Committee 2. February 24, 2022

During the year under review, the Annual General Meeting for Financial Year 2020-21 was
held on May 18, 2021,

ATTENDANCE OF DIRCTORS/ MEMBERS AT THE BOARD AND COMMITTEE
MEETINGS AS PER COMPANIES ACT, 2013

. rl'-l'l'p'lﬂ-'ﬂll'-ﬂi:ltil]“—l:r Strategy | Wisk
Board T ORton Rt e Hespamsibilily | Commitled Management
i Mame Meoetin Urmamlitoy Hemuameration il Commilics
B Meeting Coemalites ' -
. n : !
Beeli | e | M) vt | M| end | MO | e | M| e | Mo |
held i harlel held held Tnelid el
1 [ Al i P 1 i | 2 2 1 | p] 3 7 -5
Adehta
2 | Rawi i f s 4 F] 2 1 | Fl 2 | 2 2
Kumar
Pandey
v | Shnmik & n i | a 2 3 1 i 2 ) ) 2
Sarirsh
Shals
i | Rilikn 3 & : . : : 1 == & Il 3 i
[Fhaidia
5 | Yipin s [ | x . = - || 5 7 7 3 ¥
] Jadn
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AUDITORS' REPORTS

Statutory Audit Report

M/s.5M M P & Company, Statutory Auditors in their report(s) on the annual audited Ind AS
financial statements of your Company tor the financial year ended March 31, 2022, have not
submitted any qu..'||:ifi|:.i.ltim1:-i and reservations. Clarifications, wherever Necessary, have becn
included in the "Notes to Accounts” section of the Annual Report. Furthermore, a Report
Pursuant to the Master Direcion - |"'-.|nr‘|-|'."|-.-1r||x.i:‘|;|; Financial {fumpan}' = l-[nug.,jnH Finance
Il:.'ump'dn:.-' (Keserve Bank) Directions, 2027 s attached and is m*]l‘—m;p]a natory,

Secretarial Audit Report

In terms of Section 204 of the Act, the Board of Directors had appointed M/ s Ritu kathuria and
Associates, Practicing Company Secretary, to undertake secretarial audit of the Company for
the financial year ended March 31, 2022 The report of M/s Ritu Kathuria and Associates,
Practicing Company Secretary in prescribed Form MRE-3 shall be subsequently annexed to this
Director’s Report.

Maintenance of cost records

Your Company is not required to maintain cost records in terms of Section 148(1) of the Act,

RISK MANAGEMENT

Your Company has set up a strong operating framework and developed robust credit appraisal
policies to evaluate income and repayment capabilities of customers. The Company continues
to practice PI‘LI'IJI..'H{'L' in terms of its lL'ndinE practices and uses effective checks and balances to
mitigate risk exposure, This includes a credit history check from credit bureau data, an
1T plu:r'mi:nt, business and residence check El'll"l.11.lj._:';h |:'||.'r!-iur|:|[ discossions, and in=house ]q:gﬂ],
technical and fraud checks inaddition to agency verifications.

Company's Risk Management framework provides the mechanism for risk assessment and
mitigation. The Board has delegated responsibility of overseeing Risk Management framework
to the Risk Management Committee, The Risk Management Committee (RMC) of your
Company is comprised of all Independent Director, MD & CED, Whole Time Director &
Company Secretary and other senior management members, The Risk Management committee
is responsible for reviewing the risk associated with the business of the company, its root
causes and the efficacy of the measures taken to mitigate the same, determining implications
on quality and review of returns and reports to NHB pertaining to the risk monitoring
function,
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and
complexity of its operations.

The Internal Audit Department monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal
control system in the Company, its compliance with operating systems, accountin g procedures
and policies at all locations of the Company.

Further based on the report of internal audit function, process owners undertake corrective
action in their respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls. Significant audit
observations and recommendations along with corrective actions thereon are presented to the
Audit Committee of the Board.

To maintain its objectivity and independence, the Internal Audit function reports to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Board.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, and according to the information and explanations
abtained by us, and based on the report{s) of Statutory Auditors and submission(s) by Internal
Auditors of the Company for the financial vear under review, the Directors are of the view that
the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements of the Company were
adequate and operating efficiently,

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

Your Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy and established a mechanism for
Directors and Employees to report concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected
fraud, or violation of code of conduct. The mechanism also provides for adequate safeguard
against the victimisation of employees who avail the mechanism and allows direct access to
the Chairperson of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases. The whistle blower policy is
available on the website of the Company at https:/ /www arthfc.com/ policies. html.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY

In terms of Section 135 of the Act, the Board of Directors adopted a *CSR Policy’ which helps
towards contribution and furtherance of your Company’s objective to create value in the
society and community in which it operates, through its services, conduct and initiatives, so as
to promote sustained growth for the society and communily, in fulfilment of its role as a
socially responsible corporate citizen,

The OSKE Policy of the Company inter-alia indicates the CSR activities that can be undertaken
by the Company and defines the roles and responsibilities of the Board of Directors and CSR
Committee in implementing and monitoring CSR projects identified and supported by the
Company. The Annual report on CSR is given as Annexure B, The CSR Policy of the Company
is available on the website of the Company at https:/ / www.arthic.com/ policies. html.

A 17
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During the Financial Year under review the Company has contributed an amount aggregating
1o Rs, 37,6500 /- (Rupees Thirty-Seven lakhs Sixty Five Thousand Only).

The responsibility statement of the CSE committee on the implementation and monitoring of CSR

policy 18 given as Annexure E.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Considering the nature of industry in which the Company operates, transactions with related
parties of the Company are in the ordinary course of business which are also on-arm's length
basis. The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties as referred in section
188(1) of the Act is attached to this Report in prescribed form AOC - 2 as Annextire C,

Your Directors draw attention of the members to Note 36 of the financial statement which sets
out related party disclosures. The Company’s Policy on dealing with related party
transactions, as approved by the Board is available on website of the Company at
https:/ /www arthfc.com/policies hitml.

GUIDELINES ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In order to adopt best practices and greater transparency in the operations of the Company
and in compliance with the Directions issued by Reserve Bank of India ie. "The Master
Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2021, the Board of Directors of the Company approved and adopted the "Internal
Guidelines on Corporate Governance”. The Guidelines are on Corporate Governance are
available on the website of the Company at hitps:/ / www.arthfe.com,/ policies html.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

In terms of Section 186(11) of the Act read with Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers)
Rules, 2014, the Company being a housing finance company registered with NHB, the
Company is exempt from complying the provisions of Section 186 in respect of loans macle,
guarantees given or securities provided by the Company, Further, details of the investments
made by the Company please refer Note 7 of the standalone (audited) financial statements of
the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2022,

EMPLOYEE STOCK OFTION PLAN AND SCHEME

Your Company believes that its success and ability to achieve objectives is largely determined
by the quality of its workforce and recognises that not only good employment opportunities,
but also additional motivating mechanisms are needed to incentivise employees and aligning
their interest with the interest of the Company. In recognition of the said objective, the
Company adopted and implemented AAHF Employee Stock Option Plan 2017 (*ESOP 20177)

| - (f
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pursuant to the approval of the shareholders, at their meeting held on May 249, 2017 and
Employee Stock Option Plan 2019 (“ESOP 2019") pursuant to the approval of shareholders, at
their meeting held on May 9, 2019,

Below is the summary regarding ESOP 2017 & ESOP 2019 as on March 31, 2022,

2007 2018 Hi9
A pprovied 3 10043043, 000
HeaB Panl 2,500,000 2,500, (KK S000,000 | 5,000,000
(Granted | 1,800,000 | 305000 | 2,988,000 294,000 5AR7.000 | 2631000 [ B118000
[ Lapsed {during I
P grant | 1195000 | 235200 | 21,5550 15,500 3,891,200 | 1,901,300 | 5,792,500
_Pr!rlnﬁj _ [
Net Grant BOS000 | 69,800 HA2,500 #5000 1,595,800 | 729,700 2,325,500
Net Vesting 537,500 | 77,550 588,900 1500 | 1226450 | 489400 | 1715ES0
Fxetcised i il ] 0 0 il 0 -
Yetobevesied | oo a0y ] 243,600 f, (KD %9350 | 240300 |  s0mss0
Balance i ]
avallable
including 1
lapsed aptions 3408200 | 4200 ) o sras0n
al Varicais
| stages -

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT THE
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has formed a robust Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy (‘Policy”) in line with the
requirements of The Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013, Internal Complaints Committee (1CC) has been set-up to redress
complaints received regarding sexual harassment. The Policy on Sexual Harassment of the

A

q DHRECTOR™S REMORT 2021-22

— ¥




Company is available 0o the websile of the Company
hitps:/ S wwiw.arthic.oomy policies. hitml.

Ihe 1CC of your Company comprises of following Members as on March 31, 2022;

‘Name of Director - Member Designation

‘Ms, Ritika Bhatia Whole-time  Director & Company
____ Secretary

Ms. Mamta Bhardwaj | Chief Manager - HR

Ms. Vinkeet Kaur | Deputy Manager - HR

Mr. Vikas Rana Head Owperations and Customer
D Service

D Rajat Mitra On behalf of Swanchetan Society for

| Mental Health

Mo cases of sexual harassment have been reported nor investigated by the ICC during the vear
under review.

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Since the Company provides Home Loans, most of the information as required under Section
134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Rule 8 of Companies { Accounts of Companies)
Rules, 2014, is not applicable, However, the information, as applicable, has been given
in Amnexure = D) and forms part ot this report.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The Company has not earned any foreign exchange during the year under review. Further
the amount of foreign exchange outgo is given below:

Earnings: NIL
Outgo NIL

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS

During the year 2020-2021, Provisional Attachment Orders were issued by ED, attaching the
bank accounts and fixed deposits of the Company having a balance of Rs. 5263.59 Lacs. The
Company had, subsequently, filed a petition in Honorable Delhi High Court for release of
these funds. Accordingly, the Honourable Delhi High Court vide order dated 108 June 2020
gave liberty to the Company to operate its bank accounts mentioned in the impugned
provisional atachment order subject to the amount attached by the ED.
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Further, vide another order of the Honourable Delhi High Court, dated 25% September 2020,

an amount of Bs 4285 33 Lacs was roleased I'I}' the bank, in favour of National |'|1.rL;I.l:.i'r':|1!=r Hank
(NHB) towards settlement of loan availed by the Company. As on the close of the current
financial year an amount of Rs, 978.26 Lacs still stands attached by the ED.

CONFIRMATION ON FRAUD, MISFEASANCE OR ANY IRREGULARITY IN THE
COMPANY

There were no instances of fraud, misfeasance or irregularity detected and reported in the
Company during the year under review other than in the normal course of business.

DETAILS OF FRAUD AS PER PROVISIONS OF SECTION 134 (3} (CA), READ WITH
SECTION 143 (12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

There were no instances of fraud reported in the Company as-per provisions of section 134
(3} (ca), read with section 143 (12) of the Companies act, 2003 during the year under review.

DIRECTORS® RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To the best of our L:nnwln:*dg:: and belief and according to the information and n,:xpLanatimw.
obtained by us, pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors hereby
confirm that:

a)

b)

)

d}
e)

in the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and
loss of the Company for that period;

they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

they have prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis; and

the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws while ensuring that such systems were adequate and operating effectively,

APPLICATION MADE UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016
No application has been made or pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016
during the vear under review

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE
TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING
LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE
REASONS THEREOF

S
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I'he above-mentioned disclosure requirement is not applicable to your company.

APPRECIATION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors take this opportunity to express their sincere gratitude to the customers of the
Company for their confidence and patronage; to the Shareholders, regulatory bodies, bankers
and rating agencies for their unyielding support and guidance; and to the employees for their
comimnitment, hard work and zeal during the year.

By order of the Board of Directors

For ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

\
A f
X
ul Kumar Pandey 52 Vipin Jain
Chairperson g Managing Director & CED
DIN: 00250437 _ DIN: 03456031

Date: May 25, 2022
Place: Gurugram
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IPrrsiant to section 9203} of the Congprnies s Acl, 2013 and rule i’l‘“ of the

Companies (Management and Adminisiration) Rules, 2014]

LREGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

Wil

m ,Hﬂmmd Contact

i. | CIN | U65999D12013PLC255432
i, “Date July 16, 2013
iii. | Name of the Company ART Housing Finance Llhdi-!LLItL'
iv. | Category J/ Sub-Category of the | Housing F inance Company
Company |
V. Aq!dm of the Registered office | 107, Best Sky Tower, Netaji Subhash
and contact details_ Place, Pitampura, New Delhi-110034 |
vi No

details of Registrar and Transfer
Agent, if any

Link Intime India Private Limited
Address; C-101, 247 Park, LBS Marg,
Vikhroli (West), Mumbai- 400083,

Contact Person: Mr Vishwas Attavar
Tel:  +91 22 49186000
Fax: +91 22 49186060

Email: vi.sb:.-'._r_q_g_ attavarielinki

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company: -

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

Er [Name and Description of | NIC Codeof the | % to total turnover of
0. main products / services Product/ service the company
1 | Providing Housing Loans & 64920 100%s
Mortgage
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HLPARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Gy, | Name And Address Of | CIN/GLN Holding/ Y of | Applicable
No. | The Company Subsidiary | shares Section
JAssociate held

1. ART Business & U67190DL2M6FTC Holding 100.00 2{46)
Consumer Finance (India) | 292567
Private Limited

2. | ART Distribution (1) UAZI90ODL205PTC | Subsidiary | 10000 | 2(87)(ii)
Private Limited 2B3977

V. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL BREAKUF AS PERCENTAGE OF
TOTAL EQUITY)

i. Category-wise Share Holding

A. Promoter

ders | of the year

No. of Shares held at the beginning

1) Indian

fn) Individualf
HLF

b} Central
Cowvt

) Stabe i =
Govt(s)

fef) Bodies Corp

38,50,00,000

38,50,

S0

1 NRIs. . - = 000 |- - o | -
Individuals

I Oither- a = . 0,00 ELT
Individuals

Bodies Corp. | - . oM | - - (.00 -

A
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'il Promofer
Shareholding 28 50 00
38,50 - 38, 5400, gt

AJ={A) 1)+ 00,000 SO00,000 | 100 | 38.50,00,000 00 100

A2}

B. Public

1. Institutions | - - . 000 |- x 0.00

i} Wit ual - " L .00 000

Funds
by Banks/ Fl - - - LT - = 1.0
g . - 0o |- - 0.00)
) State - - - oo | - .00
Guovi(s)

) Yenture - - - (100 - 0.00
- - (o0 - .00
. - (.00 - - 0.00
- - 0.00 B - .00
- . 0.00 - - f1.00
w! - .06 - - DK
o - 0.00 . . 0.00

s (.00 - - .0

q
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* The Conpary is He wholly otemed subsediary of ART Business & Constaner Finanee (India) Privale Limited
(ABCF) and out of the total shareholding of 38,50,00,000 held by ABCF, the following shares are represented

{B)2)

Shares held
by Custodian
for GDRs &
ADRs

by the following Nominees on behalf of ABCF:

1. Raakhe Kapoor Tandon representing 95 shares on belnlf of ABCF
2, Roslini Kapoor representing 1 share on belwlf of ABCF

3. Rujesh Gandhi representing 1 share on behalf of ABCF

4. Varien Kapur represenling 1 shave on befialf of ABCF

5. Alkesh Tandon representing 1 share on belwalfof ABCF

6. Radla Kapoor Khanna representing 1 share on behalf of ABCF

The Board took note of change in wominees on behalf o f ABCF in the Board Meeting dated 25 May

2022 as below:

B th e Roka =

Raakhe Kapoor Tandon representing 35 shares on behalf of ABCF
Radha Kapoor Khanna representing 1 share on behalf of ABCF
Roshini Kapoor representing 1 stare on behalf of ARCF

Alkesh Tandon representing 1 share on behalf of ABCF

Helay Vora representing 1 share on behalf of ABCF

Rutoa Oza representing 1 share on behalf of ABCF

. LA
» 15 3
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Shareholding of Promoters

I5¢ e
. Shareholding at the Shareholding at the end
ginning year e year
No.of [%of | %of No.of |%of | %of Yo
Shares | total es | Shares |total |Shares |chang
Shar Pledge Shar | Pledge | ein
esof | d/ esof | d/ |share
com | bered com |eredto | NE
L5 pany | to pany | total |durin
1. | ART Business & Consumer Finance | 38,50,00,000 | 100 . 38,50,00.000 | 100 -
(Incia) Private Limited {ARCE)
2o Raakhe Kapoor Tandon {(Mominee il 0 s
Sharcholder representing 95 Shares
on behall of ABCF)
3, | Radha Kapoor ﬁ:ﬂ:minw i 3 il a z
Sharcholder representing 1 share on
behalf of ABCF )
4.| Alkesh Tandon (Nomines o = o = -
Shareholder representing 1 share on
behall of ABCF)
'_5, Koshini Kapoor (Nomines 0 P T = =
Shareholder representing 1 share on
bizhialf of ABCE )
6.| Varum Kapoor (Nominee I 5 - 0 [ = | .
Shareholder representing 1 share on
behalf of ABCF )
7. | Rajesh Gandhi {Nominee 1] . 0 . = =
Sharcholder representing 1 share on
behall of ABCT )
| Totat 385000000 | 100 | - | 385000000 | 100 : -

{

=

A
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itt.  Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

At the End of the year 38,50,00/000 100 36,50,00,000 100

* The Company 15 Hre wholly owned subsidiary of ART Business & Constmer Finance (India) Private Lingited
(ABCE) and oul of the tolal '-I'urrt'l'ar.r.fr-fmg of 38,50,00,000 held by ABCE, the following shares are reprosented
by the follownng Nominees on behalfof ABCF;

1. Rankhe Kapoor Tandon vepresenting 95 shares on belalf of ARCF
2. Reshini Kapoor representing 1 share on belalf of ABCF

3. Rujesh Gandha representing 1 share on belialf of ABCF

4. Varun Kapur representing 1 share on behalf of ABCF

5. Alkesh Tandon representing 1 share on beflf of ABCF

6. Radla Kapoor Khanng representing | share on belwndf of ABCF

The Board took note of change in nominees on behalf o f ABCF in the Board Meeting dated 25™ May
2022 as beloux

7. Raakhe Kapoor Tandon represending 95 shares on belalf of ABCF
8. Raiilin Kapoor Klanna representing 1 share on behalfof ABCF

9. Roshini Kapoor representing 1 share on beholf of ABCF

10. Alkesh Tandon representing 1 share on behalf of ABCF

11. Hetay Vora representing 1 share on behalf of ABCF

12, Rutva Oza representing 1 share on behalf of ABCE

. Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Divectors, Promoters and
Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

 oceboma U G &
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(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Persounel:

= Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year

I;u the beginning of the year

' Date wise Increase [ Decrease in - - -
 Shareholding during the year
specifying  the  reasons  for
increase/ decrease (e.g, allobment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity ete.): | g I
‘At the End of the vear - - - -

V.  Indebtedness

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment:
{Amount in Rs lacs)

: Indebtﬂdnm at the
- beginning of the
financial year

i) Principal Amount 349232 349232
if) Interest due but not
paid

iii) Interest accrued but
not due

Total (i+ii+iii) 349232 Mo2.32
Change in Indebtedness
during the financial
year

= Addition - i = -

- Reduction 149499 1494.99

Net Change

L

[ (
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Indebtedness at the end 1997 33 :
of the financial year |
| i) Principal Amount | 199723 199733
Attt | : _
paid | 5
1ii} Interest acerued but - - - -
not due
Total {i+ii+iii) | 199733 199733 |

VI Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

i. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager

{Amount in Rs)

- others, specify...

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTLY Total
Manaﬁer
Vipin Jain, |
(Managing
Director
and CEQ)
. . ;

Gross salary 104,360,962 | 2984590 | 1,34,21,552

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section

17{1} of the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/fs

17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

{c) Profits in licu of salary under section 17(3)

Income- tax Act, 1961

Sweat Equity Al -

Commission -

- a8 "o of profit

Others, please s

Number of Stock Options

A
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*Ms Ritika Bhatia is having 65,000 ESOPs under ESOP Scheme 2017 and is granted 25,000
aptions under AHFL ESOP Scheme 2019

il Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than Directors

(Amount in Ks)

| Particulars of

5l. no, | Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel

Bharat Dhall

Chief Financial Officer Total

Gross salary . 23,858,083 I 23 88,083
{a) Salary as per
provisions
contained in
section 17(1) of
the Income-tax
Act, 1961
(b) Value of
perquisites
u/s17(2) Income-
tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu
of salary under
section 17(3)
Income-tax Act

_ 1961
2 | Stock Option
3 Sweat Equity
| Commission
- as % of profit
- others,
specify...
thers, please
_ specify
6. | Total 23,88,083 23,88,083
7 [ Stock f}pﬁnn

A
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iii.  Remuneration to Directors Other Than MD Manager /NTD

(Amount in Ks) :

Particulars of ~ Name of Directors Total
Remuneration o Amount
Mr. Atul Mr, Rahul Mr. Shrenik Shah i
Mehta I-‘andey {Independent
(Independent | (Independent Director)
Director) Dirl-_'i:l:ﬂr;l
Independent i
Directors
Fee for attending 5.23,200 5.2% 200 5,23,200 15,689,600
board and committee
Meetings
‘Commission - - - =
-Others, please
| specify
Total (1)
5,23,200 5,253,200 5,23,200 15,694,600
Non-Executive | - - - -
Directors
' Fee for attending
board committee
meelings
‘Commission
*Others, please
specify (Conveyance
Charges)
Total (2). : : : :
Total (Bj=(1+2) : : ol
5,253,200 5.23,200 523,200 15,69,600
Overall Ceiling as Mot exceeding
per the Act Rupees COne
Lakh per
Director per
Meeting of
Board or
Committee
thereof

(a1
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** As per Sub-section (3) of the Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 4 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,

VIL.Penalties / Punishment/ Compounding of Offences:

[Type Section of | Brief Details of Penalty/ | Authority | Appeal made.
the description | Punishment/ [RDY If any (give
' Companies Compounding fees | NCLT/ details)
A Co :
Fenalty" - - = a 3
Punishment . _- 2 . .
Compounding - - - - -
B. Directors
EEI_'IH“}" - - - . -
 Punishment | - : : : -
Compounding - . . : ¥
C. Other Officers In Default

Penalty - - = ” "
Punishment - . = % -
| Compounding : - . - -

By order of the Board of Directors

For ART Housing Finance {India) Limited

Rﬂﬁﬁ{imr Pandey

Chairperson

DIN: D0250437

Date: May 25, 2022
Place: Gurugram

Vipin Jain
Managing Director & CED
DIN: 03456031

A

ENHECTTORS REPCRT 2021-22




Annexure B

Annual report on CSR activities

[Pursunnt to cliuse (o) of sub-section (3) of seclion 134 of the Act and subrule (1) of Rule 8 of the
Companies {Corporate Socinl Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014]
1. A brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

(SR shall be carried out by the Company as per its CSR policy within the broad scope laid
down in Schedule VI to the Act as projects / programmes/ activities, excluding activities in its
normal course of business, CSR activities shall be carried out by the Company by its own
internal CSR team The Company shall specify a suitable monitoring and reporting mechanism.

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee:

Mr. Rahul Kumar
Pandey Director |
2. Mr. Atul Mehta Independent
Director
3. Wir. Shrenik Shah Independent
Director
4. Ms. Ritika Bhatia Whaole Time
Director &
Company
Secretary |

[y

Web-link where Compaosition of CSRE committee, (SR Policy and CSE projects
approved by the Board are disclosed on the website of the company.
https:/ / www.arthic.com/

4. Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3)
of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if
applicable, NOT APPLICABLE

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 20014 and amount
- required for set off for the financial vear, if any.

g S
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6. Average net profit of the company as per section

135(5)

7. {a) Two percent of average net profit of the company
as per section 135(5)
(b} Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or
programmes or activities of the previous financial

(¢) Amount required to be set off for the financial
year, if any
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year
(7a+7b-7c).

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial
year;

: Rs. 1,88, 248,942

- Rs 37,465,000

INIL
: WIL

- s 37,645,000

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against engoing projects for the financial year: NONE

Nil Nt | Nil

Nil il

] 1
LY
T
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(¢) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
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(b) Details of CSK amount spent in the financial year for ongping projects of the
preceding financial year(s): NIL

NIL

10. Details relating to the asset
so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year
(Asset-wise details). NONE

a) Date of creation or acquisition of the
capital asset(s).

b) Amount of CSR spent tor creation or
acquisition of capital Asset.

) Details of the entity or public authority or
beneficiary under whose name such
capital asset is registered, their address
etc.

d) Details of the capital assel(s) created or
acquired (including complete address
and location of the capital asset).

ﬂ( DIRECTOR'S REPORT 2021-22 U




(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads ¢ NIL

{e) Amount spent on Iinpact Assessment, if applicable : Not Applicable
() Total amount spent for the Financial Year (Bb+Bc+Bd +8e) Rs 37,770,000
(g) Excess amount for set off, if any MIL

(i) | Twe percent of average net profit of the company as per | 37,65,000

section 135(5)
(ii) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year 37,70,000
(iii) | Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] Nil

(iv) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or | Nil
activities of the previous financial years, if any

(v) | Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years | Nil
[ (iii}-(iv)]

9, (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NIL

= Name | Amount | Date of
of the | (in Es), | transfer.
_ _ Fund :

_q_, DIRECTOR™S REPORT 2021-22 J




11. Specity the reason{s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average
net profit as per section 135(5). - NIL

By order of the Board of Directors |

For ART Housing Finance {India) Limited

ahul Kumar Pandey

Chairperson ) Managing Direclor & CED
DIN: (0250437 DIN: 03456031
Date: May 25, 2022

Place: Gurugram

A
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Annexure - C

FORM NOL A2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule B(2) of the
Companies ( Accounts) Rules, 2013}

Form for disclosure of partirul‘:tr.n'. of contracts/arrangements entered into by the
Company with related parbes referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso
thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis:

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered during the year ended
March 31, 2022 which were not atarm's It*ngl,h basis.

2, Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

~ (INR in crores)

| Nam | Nature | Nature Duration | Total | Salient Date Amo
e of |of of of Valueof | Termsof |of unt
'the | Relation | Contract/ | Contract/ | Contract/ | Contract/ | Appro | paid
' Rela ship Arrange | Arrangem | Arrange | Arrangem | val by | as
ted ment/ ent/ ment/ ent/ the adva
Part transacti | Transacti | Transacti | transactio | Board | nce,
y on on _ |on n ~|ifany
ART | Group Availing Rs 1.06 Advisory | 31/03/ |-
Capi | Compan | of Crore services | 2022
tal ¥ Services plus
| India applicabl
Priv e taxes
ate
Lirni
I-E"'i =5r - - —
Yes |Parent |Loan/ |12 Rs. 95 ICD up-to | 11/05/ |
Capi | Compan | ICD Months, Crores Rs 95 | 2021
tal ¥ Extendabl | (Prepaid | crores to
| (Indi : Rs, 30 Yies
¢ with i L
i) Crores) Capital
Priv mutual Interest India Pvt
ate consent accrued | Ltd
Limi but not (YCPL) @
bed due om 11.59%
== 23— | | ICDRs ’ =
A
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[ 7.01
Crores,
interest
recerved
Rs1.32
CTOnes

per
annum

By order of the Board of Directors

For ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

Rahul Kumar Pandey

Chairperson
DIN; 00250437

Date: May 25, 2022
Place: Gurugram

Vipin Jain
Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 03456031

A

IMEECTOR'S REPORT 2021-22



Annexure - D

INFORMATION RELATED TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNING AND OUTGO FORMING PART OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT IN TERMS
OF SECTION 134(3)(m) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE (8)(3)
OF THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014

—t—t——3t+—=—4 L % 3 1 } : = 3 L - I L 8 R I 0 ) g bt b bor-dfp-pd-p-n -ttt - p4 4 84 L L S 4t 2 F=_F 1

Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption

The information in Part A and B, pertaining to conversation of energy and technology
absorption are not applicable to ART Housing Finance (India) Limited, as it is a Housing
Loan provider., However, the Company requires energy for its operations and every
endeavour has been made to ensure the optimal use of energy, avoid wastage and
conserve energy as far as possible,

The Company continuously evaluates global innovation and technology as a benchmark
and wherever required, enter into arrangements to avail the latest technology trends and
practices.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The Company has not earned any foreign exchange however the amount of foreign
exchange outgo is given below:

Earnings: NIL
Outge: NIL

i‘lL DMRECTOR™S RECOET 2021-22 @




Amnexure - E

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT OF THE CSR_COMMITTEE ON THE
IMPLEMENTATION AND MONITORING OF CSR POLICY.

The Members of CSR Committee of ART Housing Finance (India) Limited do hereby
certify that the CSR Activities undertaking by the Company is in accordance with the
CSR policy of the Company.

By order of the Board of Direclors

For ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

WA

hul Kumar Pandey P
Chairperson B
DIM: 00250437

- Z __}(f

THRECTORS REPORT 2021-22




b)

c)

d)

Ritu Kathuria & Associates
Company Secretaries

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2022

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

ART HOUSING FINANCE (INDIA) LIMITED,
(U65999DL2013PLC255432)

107, Best Sky Tower, Netaji Subhash Place,
Pitampura New Delhi North West DL 110034,

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by Art Housing Finance (India) Limited, (“hereinafter
called the Company™). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our
opinion thereon.

We report that:

Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and the processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed, provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial statements of the
Company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliances
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of the Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, Secretarial standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination
was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. Further, compliance of The
National Housing Bank Act, 1987 and The Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Directions,
2010, Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021and Rules. regulations, directions and guidelingssseheres

Office Add:- J-94, Kirti Nagar , New Delhi - 110015.
M(9717220606), email id: csritukathuria@gmail.com
PAN: BMGPK6327R
GSTIN: 07BMGPK6327R1ZE
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Ritu Kathuria & Associates
Company Secretaries

the National Housing Bank as are applicable to the Company is limited to verification of filing
of forms and returns thereunder.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of
the Company.

Based on our verification of the Company books, papers, minute books. forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the
Company. its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering
the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 (“Audit Period”) complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022, according 1o the
provisions of:

i.  The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made thereunder;

Based on the information and explanation provided, the Company had no
transactions/events/actions during the period covered under the Audit requiring the
compliance of the provisions of :

i The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (*SCRA’) and the rules made
thereunder

ii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iii. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment
and External Commercial Borrowings:

iv. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015,

¢. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

Office Add:- J-94, Kirti Nagar , New Delhi - 110015.
M(9717220606), email id: csritukathuria@gmail.com
PAN: BMGPK6327R
GSTIN: 07BMGPK6327R1ZE
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Ritu Kathuria & Associates
Company Secretaries

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014,

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993;

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009;

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998; 3

i The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

Further, as represented by the Management, following are some of the laws which are
specifically applicable to the company, viz.:-

i National Housing Bank Act, 1987.
ii.  Housing Finance Companies (“NHB™) Directions 2010 and other applicable rules,
regulations and guidelines made thereunder.
iii.  Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Compeny - Housing Finance Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions., 2021
iv.  Rules, regulations, directions and guidelines issued by the National Housing Bank as
are applicable to the Company.

We have also examined the Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company
Qecretaries of India (¥Secretarial Standards™) with respect to Board Meetings and General
Meetings.

During the period under review and as per the explanations and clarifications given to us and
the representations made by the Management, the Company has generally complied with the
provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, etc. mentioned above, to the extent
applicable.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings. agenda and notes on
agenda were sent within the permissible time limits and a system exists for :

Office Add:- J-94, Kirti Nagar , New Delhi - 110015.
M(9717220606), email id: csritukathuria@gmail.com
PAN: BMGPK6327R
GSTIN: 07BMGPK6327R1ZE

Page 3 of 4 art Howsing Finance (India) Limited

secretarial Audit Report
For T.Y. ended 31* March, 2022




Ritu Kathuria & Associates
Company Secretaries

obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and
for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through are captured and recorded as part of the minutes. We
understand that there were no dissenting members’ views requiring to be captured in minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance
with applicable laws. rules. regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, there were no specific events / actions having a
major bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above.

Date: May 25, 2022 Ritu Kathuria
Place: Delhi CP No. 13101
M. No. F8119
UDIN: F0081 19D000396287

Office Add:- ]-94, Kirti Nagar, New Delhi - 110015.
M(9717220606), email id: csritukathuria@gmail.com
PAN: BMGPK6327R
GSTIN: 07BMGPK6327R1ZE
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Poi ART

HOUSING FINANCE
NOTICE OF 9" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING Own your dreams

NOTICE is hereby given that the 9% (Ninth) Annual General Meeting of ART Housing
Finance (India) Limited will be held on, May 26, 2022, at 5 P.M through electronic mode ata
slorter notice to transact the following businesses:

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2022, the Directors’ Report and
Auditors’ Report thereon and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or
without modification, the following Resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Annual Audited Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of the
Company ie., Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2022 along with the Statement of Profit &
Loss and Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the financial
year ended on that date and Notes annexed to and forming integral part of financial
statements along with the Director’s Report and Auditor’s Report be and are hereby
approved and adopted.”

2. To reappoint Mr. Vipin Jain (DIN 03456031), Managing Director and CEO, who
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment and in this
regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modif ication, the
following Resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Ac(,2013, the approval of the members of
the Company be, and is hereby accorded for the reappointment of Mr. Vipin Jain
(DIN 03456031) as a director, to the extent that he is required to retire by rotation.”

Special Business:

3. To consider and approve revision in remuneration of Mr. Vipin Jain (DIN:
03456031), Managing Director & CEQ of the Com pany for the Financial Year 2022-
23 and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, pass with or without
modification the following Resolution as Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 196, 197, 198 read with
Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and
all such approvals as may be required, the consent of the shareholders be and is
hereby accorded for revision in remuneration structure of Mr. Vipin Jain (DIN:
03456031), Managing Director & CEO of the Company, with effect from April 1,
2022 on the following terms & conditions:

ART HOUSING FINANCE (INDIA) LIMITED
Registered Office: 107, Best Sky Tower, Netaji Subhash Place, Pitampura, Delhi— 110034 | Regional Hub: 49, Udyog Vihar, Phase - IV, Gurugram — 122015, Haryona
CIN: U65999DL2013PLC255432 | Phone: +91 124 6622200 | E-mail: contact@arthfc com | Website: www.arihfc.com

GREAT PLACE TO WORK CERTIFIED" I1ISO 27001:2013 & ISO 9001:~



WA ART

HOUSING FINANCE

Own your dreams

Particulars - Mr. Vipin Jain, Managing '
............................................................................. Director& CEO
LT T MU S 2868744
Tlouse Rent Allowance T v 11 234,372
cupplementary Allowanee | T —m—" 409,780
o R 2400 oo
‘Car running expenses; allowance 200,004
Driver BXpenses oo o 180,000
Entertainment Reimbursemgn_t _______________________ 60:90{]
Sotertainmer cimburse e N — 5
Prguident Fund T
Gratuity T I 137,988
s st

- Variable Pay/ Annual Bonus of Rs 25,50,000/- to be paid for the year ended March
31, 2022,

- He will be paid Variable pay for year 2022-23 ranging from 20 % to 40 % of the
CTC based on evaluation of his performance for the year 2022-23,

- He will be issued ESOPs as and when approved by Board of Directors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the other terms and conditions  of
appointment of Mr Vipin Jain as Managing Director & CEO as approved by the
Board during the time of appointment shall remain same.

RESOVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to alter and
vary the terms and conditions of appointment and/ or remuneration, subject to the
same not exceeding the limits specified under section 197, read with schedule V of
the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modifications or re-enactments (s)
thereof, for the time being in force) on the basis of the recommendation and review
of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director of the Company or Company
Secretary, be and are hereby authorized severally to file the necessary e-Forms and
papers with the Registrar of Companies, and any other regulatory authority and
further authorized severally to sign all such papers, documents ete. and to do all
such acts, deeds etc. for and on behalf of the Company as may be required in order
to give effect to the above Resolution.”

4. To consider and approve revision in remuneration of Mrs, Ritika Bhatia (DIN:
08741012), Whole Time Director & Compan Secretarl)‘ ?1[ Bhe Company for the
ART HOUSING FINANCE (INDIA) LIMITE e ——
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Financial Year 2022-23 and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, pass with or
without modification the following Resolution as Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 196, 197, 198 read with
Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and
all such approvals as may be required, the'consent of the shareholders be and is
hereby accorded for revision in remuneration structure of Mrs. Ritika Bhatia (DIN:
08741012), Whole Time Director & Company Secretary of the Company, with effect
from April 1, 2022 on the following terms & conditions:

M‘i’articulars Mrs. Ritika Bhatia, Whole-time
i Directoré& Company Secretary
Basic Salary e 949,224
_House Rent Allowance " 474612
Supplementary Allowance 1,059,204
CEA e 2400
| Car running expenses/ allowance 200004 o
Driver Expenses 180,000
Entertainment Rcimbursemel]ﬁ o 60,000
LTA 79,068
ProvidentFund 113,904
ettt S 45600
Total CTC 3,164,076

- Variable Pay/ Annual Bonus Rs 351,564/~ to be paid for the year ended March
31, 2022.

- She will be paid Variable pay for year 2022-23 based on evaluation of her
performance for the year 2022-23.

- She will be issued ESOPs as and when approved by Board of Directors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the other terms and conditions of
appointment of Mrs. Ritika Bhatia as Whole Time Director & Company Secretary
as approved by the Board during the time of appointment shall remain same.

RESOVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to alter and

vary the terms and conditions of appointment and/ or remuneration, subject to

the same not exceeding the limits specified under section 197, read with schedule

V of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modifications or re-
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enactments (s) thereof, for the time being in force) on the basis of the
recommendation and review of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director of the Company or Company
Secretary, be and are hereby authorized severally to file the necessary e-Forms
and papers with the Registrar of Companies, and any other regulatory authority
and further authorized severally to sign all such papers, documents etc. and to
do all such acts, deeds etc. for and on behalf of the Company as may be required
inorder to give effect to the above Resolution.”

For ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

Rahul Kumar Pandey
Chairperson
DIN:00250437

Date: May 25, 2022
Place: Gurugram

NOTES:

1. In view of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has,
vide General Circular No, 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, General Circular No.
17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 ,General Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020

ART HOUSING FINANCE (INDIA) LIMITED ot
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, General Circular No. 02/2021 dated 13th January, 2021, General Circular No.
10/2021 dated December 8,2021, General Circular No. 21/2021 dated
December 14 ,2021 and General Circular No. 02/2022 dated May 05, 2022
(collectively “MCA Circulars”), permitted companies to conduct Annual General
Meeting (AGM) through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means,
subject to compliance of various conditions mentioned therein.

3. A statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to certain
Special business to be transacted at the 9" AGM is annexed hereto, All documents
referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement shall be
available for inspection clectronically. Members seeking to inspect such documents
can send an email to ritika.sati@arthfe.com/ secretarial@arthfe.com.

4. Members who are body corporate intending to appoint their authorised
representative(s) to attend the Annual General Meeting are requested to send
to the Company on ritika.sati@arthfc.com [ secretarial@arthfc.com, a certified
copy of the resolution of its Board of Directors / other governing body
authorizing their representative(s) to attend and vote on their behalf at the
AGM, pursuant to Section 113 of the Act.

5. Members are requested to notify the change in the Registered Address, if any,
along with the Pin code number immediately to the Company,

6. Shorter notice consent is attached with this notice for approval of members to
call this meeting at shorter notice then required under the Companies Act,
2013 and the articles of the Company. Members are requested to send the same
on or before May 25, 2022, to enable the Company to hold the meeting on May
26, 2022, (if the consent is received from 95% of members who are entitled to
vote at the meeting) as required under the Secretarial Standard issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries (ICSI) and as mandated with effect from 1st
July 2015 as per section 118 of the Companies Act 2013,

ART HOUSING FINANCE (INDIA) LIMITED . } 22015, ey
d Office: 107, Best Sky Tower, Netaji Subhash Place, Pitompura, Dalhi - 110034 | Regional Hub: 49, Udyog Vihar, Phase — IV, Gurugram - 7
Registere ce: p .
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7. Members are requested to note that the resolutions set out in the Notice will
be decided through show of hands or by conducting poll, in case demanded
by the Members,

8. In case of any query, the members are requested to contact on
ritika.sati@arthfc.com/ secretarial@arthfc.com,

9. The process of participation in the Meeting through electronic mode is as
follows:

* Microsoft Teams Link will be shared by a separate E-mail.
* Youneed to click on the link and join the Meeting

Network Connectivity Check:

Wi-fi: If using Wi fi, make sure your signal is strong, and stay as close as
possible to the Wifi access point. Wired/ethernet cable is preferable, when

possible, as it offers a more stable connection,

* Hotspot: In the absence of Wifi you can connect on mobile. If you wish to
connect on Laptop using mobile data, turn on Hotspot under “Network and
Internet” settings on mobile. And switch on wi fi on laptop (The name of “wi-
fi” would be your mobile model if no prior set-up is done) and follow the
standard procedure.

* Laptop Battery: For laptops, make sure your computer isn’t in a low battery
state. Plugin the power cord and if using windows, change your power
settings to “high performance”.

* Limit Household Bandwidth in Use: Try to avoid having other activities
competing for Internet use at the same time during the meeting. For instance,
if you have quality issues, ask others in the household to refrain from
watching streaming videos, downloading files, or playing online games
during your meetings.

Tips for seamless meeting:

* UseaHeadset: Internal microphone can sometimes pick up background noise
hence headphones with inbuilt boom mic can help while providing better
audio quality.

ART HOUSING FINANCE (INDIA) LIMITED
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* Lighting: Light can play a major role in how others are seeing you. Make sure
the light source is not behind you and your room is well lit.

* Background: When joining from home, background is important as others
could see what is happening. Choose a spot with neutral background which
doesn’t distract your pa rticipants.

* Quiet Location: Try to avoid noisy common areas. Instead, join from a quiet
location whenever possible,

* Poor Connection Tips: In a case of a poor connection try disabling your video
to conserve bandwidth.

 Camera Angle: By using self-view, you can test the angle of your camera and
position yourself. Look into the camera lens while talking to make eye contact
with your audience.

* Mute: Keep your mic muted whenever you are not speaking,

* Sharing the content: Moderator would be sharing the content throughout the
meeting,

[T Help Desk:

Escalation 1:
Pankaj Kumar, Contact No: 9818925291
Aftab Ali, Contact No. 7291092565

Escalation 2:

Dominic Vijay, Contact No : 9711809793

Note:

As everyone is aware of the present load on digital communication systems and

stressed bandwidth due to pandemic situations few technical glitches may as
mentioned below may arise.

Jittering of images
Buffering

Delay in voice transmission
Delay in body moments
Delay in PPT change over

g

These technical issues when encountered, users are advised to disconnect and

re-login to join the call. Technical issues may arise as we will be working on
open and shared internet bandwidth.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES

ACT, 2013

Item No. 1

Based on recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the
Board of Directors shall approve the revision in the remuneration to be paid to Mr.
Vipin Jain, Managing Director & CEO of the Company (DIN 03456031) in their
meeting scheduled on May 25, 2022, as mentioned herein, w.e.f April 1, 2022, subject
to the approval of the shareholders in the General Meeting,

Mr. Vipin Jain has 22 years of experience in the Banking and Financial services

industry. He has previously held senior

and leadership roles at Habitat Housing

Finance, Lakshmi Vilas Bank, Citi Bank and Deutsche Postbank Home Finance. He

has been one of the founding members of

ART Housing Finance and was associated

with the company as CFO from 2013 to 2018. The details of Mr. Vipin Jain in
pursuance of the provisions of the Secretarial Standards are mentioned in Annexure

1.
Item No. 2
Based on recommendation of the Nomin

Board of Directors shall approve the revis
Ritika Bhatia, Whole Time Director & C¢

ation and Remuneration Committee, the
ion in the remuneration to be paid to Ms.
Ympany Secretary of the Company (DIN

08741012) in their meeting scheduled on May 25, 2022, as mentioned herein, w.e.f,
April 1, 2022, subject to the approval of the shareholders in the General Meeting.

Ms. Ritika Bhatia is an Affiliate of ICSI and a Law alumna with over 13 years of
experience in Insurance, Banking & Finance Sector. She carries with herself a
profound understanding of all Regulatory, Control & Legal frameworks under

various laws like Corporate Laws, IPR, IR

DA, NHB, SEBI. The details of Ms. Ritika

Bhatia in pursuance of the provisions of the Secretarial Standards are mentioned in

Annexure 2.
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The additional information forming part of the explanatory statement as required
by Schedule V to the Act is given below:

I. General Information

i.  Nature of Industry: The Company is in the finance industry and engaged
in the business of providing loans for the purpose of purchase/
construction of housing properties in India to individuals and others,

ii.  Date or expected date of commencement of commercial production: The
Company is incorporated on 16 July, 2013 and has started its Housing
Finance business post getting the license from National Housing Bank on
August 13, 2014. It does not own any manufacturing unit.

iii.  In case of new companies, expected date of commencement of activities as

per project approved by financial institutions appearing in the prospectus:
Not Applicable

iv. A brief of financial performance of the Company as per the audited
financial statements (IND AS) for the FY 2021-22 is as follows:

(in lacs)

Total es
Total Expenditures
Profit before Tax PBT

Profit after Tax PAT! |

V. Foreign Investments or collaborators, if any: None

3111.82

II.  A) Information about the appointee Mr. Vipin Jain
L. Background Details: As provided above in Explanatory Statement
ii. Past remuneration: Rs 85,00,000/ - plus Annual Bonus of Rs 22,50,000/ -
iii.  Recognition/ Awards: As provided above in Explanatory Statement
iv.  Job Profile and their suitability: Mr. Vipin Jain, has 22 years of experience
in the Banking and Financial services industry. He has previously held

senior and leadership roles at Habitat Housing Finance, Lakshmj Vilas
Bank, Citi Bank and Deutsche Postbank Home Finance, He has been one
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of the founding members of ART Housing Finance and was associated
with the company as CFO from 2013 to 2018.

V. Remuneration Proposed: As per the details as fully set out in Item No. 1 of
this Notice.

vi.  Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of the
Company, profile of the position and person (in case of expatriates the
relevant details would be with respect to the country of his origin): Taking
into consideration the operation and size of the Company, the profile of
the Managing Director & CEO, the responsibilities shouldered by him and
the industry benchmarks, the remuneration proposed to be paid to
Managing Director & CEO of the Company, is commensurate with the
remuneration packages paid to similar senior level appointees in the
previous year.

vii.  Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the Company or
relationship with the Mmanagerial personnel, if any: No direct pecuniary
relationship with the Company apart from withdrawing the above
proposed remuneration.

[II.  B) Information about the appointee Ms. Ritika Bhatia
i.  Background Details: Ag provided above in Explanatory Statement
ii.  Past remuneration: Rs 28,12,500/- Plus Annual Bonus of Rs 3,12,500 /-
iii.  Recognition/ Awards: As provided above in Explanatory Statement

iv.  Job Profile and their suitability: Ms. Ritika Bhatia, is an Affiliate of ICSI and
a Law alumna with over 13 years of experience in Insurance, Banking &
Finance Sector. She carries with herself a profound understanding of all
Regulatory, Control & Legal frameworks under various laws like
Corporate Laws, IPR, IRDA, NHB, SEBI.

V. Remuneration Proposed: As per the details as fully set out in Item No.2 of
this Notice.

vi.  Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of the
Company, profile of the position and person (in case of expatriates the
relevant details would be with respect to the country of his origin): Taking
into consideration the operation and size of the Company, the profile of
the Whole Time Director & Company Secretary, the responsibilities

shouldered by her and the industry benchmarks, the remuneration
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Proposed to be paid to Whole Time Director & Company Secretary of the
Company, is commensurate with the remuneration packages paid to
similar senior level appointees as per industry benchmarking,

vii.  Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the Company or
relationship with the managerial personnel, if any: No direct pecuniary
relationship with the Company apart from withdrawing the above
proposed remuneration.

In view of the above, approval of the shareholders is sought for increasing
the remuneration to Rs. 9,562,500 and other terms and conditions, as
mentioned herein above, w.e.f, April 1, 2022 for Mr. Vipin Jain, Managing
Director & CEO and for increasing the remuneration to Rs. 3,093,768 and
other terms and conditions, as mentioned herein above, w.e.f. April 1, 2022
for Mrs. Ritika Bhatia Whole Tj me Director & Com pany Secretary

The said resolution is recommended for members’ approval as Special
Resolution.

None of the Directors other than M. Vipin Jain or his relatives or Managers
or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are in any
way, concerned or interested in item 1 Resolution.

None of the Directors other than Mrs. Ritika Bhatia or her relatives or
Managers or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives
are in any way, concerned or interested in item 2 Resolution.

ART HOUSING FINANCE (INDIA) LIMITED

5 Y - i i = L - 1220 5, aryona
Regist d Office: 107, Best Sk Towar, Netuji Subhash PII:ICB, Fiiﬂmpurﬂ; Delhi 110034 I Raglonrﬂ Hub: 4'?’ Udyug \f|hc|r’ Phase |\f"r GUrUg om -1 1 H Ty
egisiare: : v 3 v

CIN: U65999DL2013PLC255432 | Phone: +91 124 6622200 | E-mail: contact@arthfc.com | Website: www.arthfc.com
GREAT PLACE TO WORK CERTIFIED™ 1SO 27001:2013 & I1SO 9001:2015 CERTIFIED



Yo ART

HOUSING FINANCE

Own your dreams

Annexure 1
Annexure to the Notice of Annual General Meeting:

Details of Mr. Vipin Jain whose remuneration proposed to be revised, as per the
Secretarial Standards:

Name | Mr. Vipin Jain

Age 44 years

Qualification Chartered Accountant .
Experience Mr. Vipin Jain has 22 years of experience in the Banking and

Financial services industry. He has previously held senior
and leadership roles at Habitat Housing Finance, Lakshmi
Vilas Bank, Citi Bank and Deutsche Postbank Home Finance.
He has been one of the founding members of ART Housing
Finance and was associated with the company as CFO from
2013 to 2018.

Terms and Conditions | Appointed for a tenure of five years as Managing Director &
of appointment or re- | CEO of the Company

appointment  along
with the details of
remuneration sought
to be paid
Remuneration last | Rs 85,00,000 /- plus Annual Bonus of Rs 22,50,000/ -
drawn
Date of first | March 2, 2021
appointment on the

Board

Shareholding in the | NIL

Company

Relationship with | Mr. Vipin Jain is the Managing Director & CEO of the
other Directors, Company

Managers and other

Key Managerial

Persons of the

Company

The number of [ 6
meetings of the Board
attended during the
| YEaE SEE—
Directorship in other | 1
Companies

. — e e
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Annexure 2
Annexure to the Notice of Annual General Meeting:

Details of Mrs. Ritika Bhatia whose remuneration proposed to be revised, as per
the Secretarial Standards:

Ndme: i Ms. Ritika Bhatia

Age 37 years o R
Qualification CS,, B.Com,L.LB. _
Experience Ms. Ritika Bhatia is an Affiliate of ICSI and a Law alumna

with over 13 years of experience in Insurance, Banking &
Finance Sector. She carries with herself a profound
understanding of all Regulatory, Control & Legal
frameworks under various laws like Corporate Laws, IPR;
IRDA, NHB, SEBI.

Terms and Conditions | Appointed for a tenure of five years as Whole Time Director
of appointment or re-
appointment  along
with the details of
remuneration sought
to be paid
Remuneration last | Rs 28,1 2,500/ - Plus Annual Bonus of Rs 3,12,500/ -
drawn
Date of first May 9, 2020
appointment on the

Board
Shareholding in the | NIL
| Company
Relationship with | Ms. Ritika Bhatia is Whole Time Director & Company
other Directors, Secretary of the Company
Managers and other
Key Managerial
Persons of the
Company

The number of | 6
meetings of the Board
attended during the
year

Directorship in other | 1
Companies

|
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ROUTE MAP FOR AGM VENUE AND ATTENDANCE SLIP

MCA vide its General Circular No. 14 /2020 dated April 8, 2020, General Circular No.
17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 ,General Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020 ,
General Circular No. 02/2021 dated 13t January, 2021, General Circular No. 10/2021
dated December 8,2021 General Circular No. 21 /2021 dated December 14,2021 and
General Circular No. 02/2022 dated May 05, 2022 had permitted companies to hold the
AGM through electronic mode exempting physical presence of members at the venue
of AGM, till December 31, 2022. In persistence, the meeting is being convened
through electronic mode and the proceedings of the General Meeting shall be
deemed in compliance with the Secretarial Standards on General Meeting (S5-2).
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